
 

The mission of the City of Sedona government is to provide exemplary municipal services 
that are consistent with our values, history, culture and unique beauty. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2021 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER S 

102 ROADRUNNER DRIVE, SEDONA, AZ  

 

 

AGENDA   4:30 P.M. 
NOTES:  

• Public Forum: 
Comments are generally limited to 3 
minutes. 

• Consent Items: 
Items listed under Consent Items 
have been distributed to Council 
Members in advance for study and 

will be enacted by one motion.  Any 
member of the Council, staff or the 
public may remove an item from the 

Consent Items for discussion.  Items 
removed from the Consent Items 
may be acted upon before 

proceeding to the next agenda item. 

• Meeting room is wheelchair 
accessible. American Disabilities Act 
(ADA) accommodations are available 

upon request. Please phone 928-282-
3113 at least two (2) business days in 
advance. 

• City Council Meeting Agenda Packets 

are available on the City’s website at: 

www.SedonaAZ .gov 

GUIDELINES FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

PURPOSE: 

• To allow the public to provide 
input to the City Council on a 

particular subject scheduled on the 
agenda. 

• This is not a question/answer 
session. 

PROCEDURES: 

• It is strongly encouraged that 

public input on agenda items 
be submitted by sending an 
email to the City Clerk at 

sirvine@sedonaaz.gov in 
advance of the 4:30 p.m. Call 
To Order. 

• Fill out a “Comment Card” and 

deliver it to the City Clerk. 

• When recognized, use the podium/
microphone. 

• State your: 

1.  Name and 

2.  City of Residence 

• Limit comments to  
3 MINUTES. 

• Submit written comments to the 
City Clerk. 

DUE TO CONTINUED PRECAUTIONS RELATED TO COVID-19, SEATING FOR THE PUBLIC WITHIN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS IS ARRANGED IN COMPLIANCE WITH CDC GUIDELINES FOR PHYSICAL DISTANCING 

AND IS VERY LIMITED. THOSE WISHING TO COMMENT ON SCHEDULED AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE ASKED 

TO WAIT OUTDOORS OR IN AN ALTERNATE LOCATION IF THERE IS NOT ADEQUATE SEATING IN 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS. COMMENTS IN ADVANCE OF THE 4:30 P.M. CALL TO ORDER ARE STRONGLY 

ENCOURAGED BY SENDING AN EMAIL TO SIRVINE@SEDONAAZ.GOV AND WILL BE MADE PART OF THE 

OFFICIAL MEETING RECORD. THE MEETING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE AT 

WWW.SEDONAAZ.GOV OR ON CABLE CHANNEL 4. 

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE/ROLL CALL 
 

 2.  CITY’S VISION 
 

 3.  CONSENT ITEMS - APPROVE                                    LINK TO DOCUMENT =  

a. Minutes - January 26, 2021 City Council Special Meeting - Executive Session. 

b. Minutes - January 26, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting. 

c. AB 2652 Approval of the reallocation of Sustainability Program funds. 

 

 

 

 4.  APPOINTMENTS   

a. AB 2648 Discussion/possible action regarding the reappointment and 

appointment of Historic Preservation Commissioners. 
 

 5.  SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS BY MAYOR/COUNCILORS/CITY MANAGER 
 

 6.  PUBLIC FORUM (This is the time for the public to comment on matters not listed on the agenda. The City Council may 

not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.01(H), action taken as a 

result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding to any criticism, or scheduling the matter 

for further consideration and decision at a later date.) 

 

 7.  PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS & AWARDS - None.  

a. Recognition of Bradley Viereck by the Sedona Police Department for his 

willingness & bravery in assisting officers with the arrest of a violent suspect. 
 

 8.  REGULAR BUSINESS  

a. AB 2651 Presentation/discussion regarding the Annual Audit findings and 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Sedona for 

Fiscal Year 2019-20. 

b. AB 2649 Discussion/possible action regarding the donation of a bronze 
sculpture from Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial Sculptural Park to be placed 

within Jack Jamesen Memorial Park. 

c. AB 2646 Discussion/possible action regarding proposed State legislation and 

its potential impact on the City of Sedona. 

d. AB 2571 Discussion/possible direction regarding issues surrounding the 

COVID-19 pandemic and the City's response. 

e. Reports/discussion regarding Council assignments. 

f. Discussion/possible action regarding future meeting/agenda items. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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The mission of the City of Sedona government is to provide exemplary municipal services 
that are consistent with our values, history, culture and unique beauty. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2021 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER S 

102 ROADRUNNER DRIVE, SEDONA, AZ  

 

 

AGENDA   4:30 P.M. 
 Page 2, City Council Meeting Agenda Continued 

 9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

If an Executive Session is necessary, it will be held in the Vultee Conference Room at 106 
Roadrunner Drive.  Upon a public majority vote of the members constituting a quorum, the 
Council may hold an Executive Session that is not open to the public for the following 

purposes: 

a. To consult with legal counsel for advice on matters listed on this agenda per A.R.S. § 

38-431.03(A)(3). 

b. Return to open session. Discussion/possible action on executive session items. 

10.    ADJOURNMENT 

Posted: 02/04/2021  _________________________________________ 

By: DJ Susan L. Irvine, CMC 
City Clerk 

Note: Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02 notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to the general 
public that the Council will hold the above open meeting. Members of the City Council will attend either in person or by 
telephone, video, or internet communications. The Council may vote to go into executive session on any agenda item, 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for discussion and consultation for legal advice with the City Attorney.  
Because various other commissions, committees and/or boards may speak at Council meetings, notice is also given 

that four or more members of these other City commissions, boards, or committees may be in attendance. 

A copy of the packet with materials relating to the agenda items is typically available for review by the public in the 
Clerk's office after 1:00 p.m. the Thursday prior to the Council meeting and on the City's website at 
www.SedonaAZ.gov. The Council Chambers is accessible to people with disabilities, in compliance with the Federal 
504 and ADA laws. Those with needs for special typeface print, may request these at the Clerk’s Office. All requests 

should be made forty-eight hours prior to the meeting. 
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Action Minutes 
Special City Council Meeting 

Virtual Meeting, Sedona, Arizona 
Tuesday, January 26, 2021, 2:30 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Moriarty called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. 

2. Roll Call 

Council Present: Mayor Sandy Moriarty, Vice Mayor Scott Jablow, Councilor Bill 
Chisholm, Councilor Kathy Kinsella, Councilor Tom Lamkin, Councilor Holli Ploog, 
Councilor Jessica Williamson. 

Staff in attendance: City Manager Justin Clifton, City Attorney Kurt Christianson, City 
Clerk Susan Irvine. 

3. Special Business 

Motion: Councilor Williamson moved to enter into Executive Session at 2:31 p.m. 
Seconded by Councilor Ploog. Vote: Motion carried unanimously with seven (7) in 
favor (Moriarty, Jablow, Chisholm, Kinsella, Lamkin, Ploog, and Williamson) and 
zero (0) opposed. 

a. Discussion/consideration regarding the employment, assignment, and 
appointment of a new City Manager including the recruitment and selection 
process. This matter is brought in executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(1). 

Reconvened in open session at 4:06 p.m. 

b. Return to open session. Discussion/possible action regarding executive 
session items. 

No action was taken. 

4. Adjournment 

Mayor Moriarty adjourned the meeting at 4:06 p.m. 

I certify that the above are the true and correct actions of the Special City Council 
Meeting held on January 26, 2021. 

 
 
________________________________   __________________________ 
Susan L. Irvine, CMC, City Clerk    Date 
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Action Minutes 
Regular City Council Meeting 

Virtual Meeting, Sedona, Arizona 
Tuesday, January 26, 2021, 4:30 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence/Roll Call 

Mayor Moriarty called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 

Council Present: Mayor Sandy Moriarty, Vice Mayor Scott Jablow, Councilor Bill 
Chisholm, Councilor Kathy Kinsella, Councilor Tom Lamkin, Councilor Holli Ploog, 
Councilor Jessica Williamson. 

Staff Present: City Manager Justin Clifton, Assistant City Manager/Director of 
Community Development Karen Osburn, City Attorney Kurt Christianson, City Clerk 
Susan Irvine. 

2. City’s Vision 

A video of the City’s Vision was played. 

3. Consent Items 

a. Minutes - January 12, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting. 
b. Minutes - January 13, 2021 City Council Special Meeting. 
c. AB  2644 Approval of a lease agreement between the City of Sedona and 

Daniel Saunders for Saunders’ use of the real property, owned by the City 
of Sedona, located at 430 Forest Road Sedona Arizona, APN 401-16-071. 

Motion: Councilor Chisholm moved to approve consent items 3a, 3b, and 3c. 
Seconded by Councilor Ploog. Vote: Motion carried unanimously with seven (7) in 
favor (Moriarty, Jablow, Chisholm, Kinsella, Lamkin, Ploog, Williamson) and zero 
(0) opposed. 

4. Appointments – None. 

5. Summary of Current Events by Mayor/Councilors/City Manager 

Councilor Chisholm gave an update on Hope House of Sedona. They have selected a 
contractor for construction and are now doing a stick-built home. A donor has offered a 
dollar-for-dollar match on donations up to $100,000. 

6. Public Forum - None. 

7. Proclamations, Recognitions, and Awards – None. 

8. Regular Business 

a. AB 2642 Discussion/possible action regarding a Resolution and Ordinance 
amending the Sedona City Code Title 8 (Health and Safety) by adopting 
amendments to Chapter 8.05 (Methods of Garbage and Trash Removal) 
related to the proper storage, placement, and disposition of residential waste 
and waste containers. 

Presentation by Karen Osburn and Kurt Christianson. 

Questions and comments from Council. 
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Motion: Councilor Kinsella moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-03 a Resolution of 
the Mayor and Council of the City of Sedona, Arizona establishing as a public 
record that document titled “2021 Amendments to Article 8 (Health and Safety), 
adding Chapter 8.05, Article II. Garbage and Solid Waste Containment” and specify 
that this pertains to residential waste put out after 12:00 p.m. on day preceding pick 
up and removed by 11:59 p.m. on the day of pick up. Seconded by Vice Mayor 
Jablow. Vote: Motion carried with six (6) in favor (Moriarty, Jablow, Kinsella, 
Lamkin, Ploog, Williamson) and one (1) opposed (Chisholm). 

Motion: After 1st reading, Vice Mayor Jablow moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-
02 as read by the City Attorney. Seconded by Councilor Kinsella. Vote: Motion 
carried with six (6) in favor (Moriarty, Jablow, Kinsella, Lamkin, Ploog, Williamson) 
and one (1) opposed (Chisholm). 

b. AB 2646 Discussion/possible action regarding proposed State legislation 
and its potential impact on the City of Sedona. 

Presentation by Kurt Christianson and Justin Clifton. 

Questions and comments from Council. 

Presentation and discussion only. 

c. AB 2571 Discussion/possible direction regarding issues surrounding the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the City's response. 

Presentation by Justin Clifton. 

Questions and comments from Council. 

Presentation and discussion only. 

d. Reports/discussion regarding Council assignments 

Councilor Chisholm stated that he is on the NACOG Advisory Council on Aging 
Subcommittee and gave some statistics from the prior fiscal year related to their services. 
He advised that minimum wage increases are impacting the ability of NACOG to provide 
services because the cost of providing the services is increasing and the federal poverty 
level has not changed. 

e. Discussion/possible action regarding future meeting/agenda items 

Mayor Moriarty advised that the City Council Retreat will be held next week, and Justin 
stated that the agenda and materials should be released tomorrow. 

9. Executive Session 

Upon a public majority vote of the members constituting a quorum, the Council 
may hold an Executive Session that is not open to the public for the following 
purposes: 

a. To consult with legal counsel for advice on matters listed on this agenda per 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 

b. Return to open session. Discussion/possible action on executive session 
items. 

No Executive Session was held. 
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10. Adjournment 

Mayor Moriarty adjourned the meeting at 6:34 p.m. without objection. 

I certify that the above are the true and correct actions of the Regular City Council 
Meeting held on January 26, 2021. 
 
 
________________________________________ _______________________ 
Susan L. Irvine, CMC, City Clerk  Date 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2652 
February 9, 2021 

Consent Items 

 

Agenda Item: 3c 

Proposed Action & Subject:  Approval of the reallocation of Sustainability Program funds. 

 

Department City Manager’s Office 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item 

N/A 

Other Council Meetings September 9, 2020, January 13, 2021 

Exhibits None. 

 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 
KWC 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 20,000 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

Approve reallocation of 
Sustainability Program 
Funds. 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 22,500 

Account No. 
(Description) 

10-5220-09-6543 

(Utilities – Electric) 

10-5220-09-6513 

(Marketing) 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 

Background: To better prepare for predicted climate changes in Sedona and support the City 
Council’s priority of environmental sustainability, the City of Sedona is developing Sedona’s first 
community Climate Action Plan (CAP). In order to effectively plan and budget projects for the 
next few years, staff requests to reallocate Sustainability Program decision package funding to 
utilize consultant services to prioritize potential actions based on effectiveness and identify costs. 
While this request is under Council procurement authorization guidelines, it involves reallocating 
funds from planned sustainability efforts outlined in decision packages. 

Timeline: City Council approved a decision package for $40,000 for the development of a high-
level communitywide CAP in the FY2020 budget. 

Key Considerations: In FY 2021, City Council approved a decision package for $12,500 to 
purchase renewable energy for City operations. Staff has not utilized these funds as Arizona 
Public Service will not be offering new utility-scale renewable energy purchasing opportunities 
until next fiscal year. City Council also approved a decision package for $10,000 for ongoing 
marketing efforts for environmental behavior initiatives. This effort has been delayed due to the 
pandemic. 
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On January 13th, City Council identified a community greenhouse gas emission target of 50% 
reduction by 2030. In order to prioritize and assign potential program costs in a timely manner 
to make progress towards this target, consultant assistance is required. Staff requests to 
reallocate up to $20,000 of these combined decision packages for use this fiscal year. 

There is a strong consensus that residents are concerned about climate change and that they 
want the City to take action to reduce emissions and improve community resiliency. In the 
Climate Action Plan survey conducted in June 2020, 68.9% of respondents said that they are 
quite or very worried about climate change; 68.4% of respondents said that it is quite or very 
important that the City take action on climate change, and 72.4% of respondents felt that the 
City should be very invested or moderately invested in taking climate action. The full survey 
results can be found at Climate Action | City of Sedona (sedonaaz.gov). 

Community Plan Consistent: Yes - No - Not Applicable 

According to the Community Plan, “Protection of the environment is the community’s top priority, 
and sustainability is a fundamental goal of the Plan.” The Environment Chapter of the Community 
Plan Section 5 cites goals including preserving and protecting the natural environment and 
developing an action plan that focuses on reducing harmful emissions and improving energy 
conservation. The Environment Chapter also focuses on expanding renewable energy and 
reducing the use of single-occupancy vehicles.  

Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 

Alternative(s):  

MOTION 

I move to: approve the reallocation of up to $20,000 in FY2021 funds from Account No. 10-
5220-09-6543 (Utilities – Electric) and Account No. 10-5220-09-6513 (Marketing) 
to Account No. 10-5220-09-6405 (Professional Services). 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2648  
February 9, 2021 

Appointments 

 

Agenda Item: 4a 
Proposed Action & Subject:  Discussion/possible action regarding the reappointment 
and appointment of Historic Preservation Commissioners. 

 

Department City Clerk 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item 

2 minutes 
 5 minutes 

Other Council Meetings N/A 

Exhibits A. Applications 

 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 
KWC 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 0 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

NA 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 0 

Account No. 
(Description) 

N/A 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
Background: The Historic Preservation Commission advertised seeking applicants to fill two 
(2) open seats on the Commission with an application deadline of October 22, 2020. The 
vacancies are the result of the expiration of terms for Allyson Holmes and James Curry on 
November 30, 2020. Incumbent Allyson Holmes applied for reappointment, and a total of one 
(1) additional application was received for these vacancies. 

A third seat on the Commission became vacant as the result of the resignation of Steve 
Segner effective October 8, 2020. Although the Historic Preservation Commission continues 
to advertise seeking applicants, no additional applications have been received. In an effort to 
reach a full Commission, the decision was made to schedule interviews for the applications 
received.  

On January 20, 2021, the Selection Committee, made up of Mayor Sandy Moriarty, Vice 
Mayor Scott Jablow, and Chair Brynn Burkee Unger, interviewed the applicant and reviewed 
the application of the incumbent. The Selection Committee unanimously recommended the 
reappointment of Allyson Holmes, along with the appointment of Robert (Bob) Huggins to 
seats on the Historic Preservation Commission. The term for each appointee is three years 
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beginning immediately and expiring November 30, 2023 or until a successor is appointed, 
whichever is later.  

Community Plan Compliant: Yes - No - Not Applicable 
 
Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 
 
Alternative(s): Council may request that the vacancies be reposted. 

 

MOTION 

I move to: reappoint Allyson Holmes and appoint Robert (Bob) Huggins to the Historic 
Preservation Commission with terms beginning immediately and ending 
November 30, 2023 or until a successor is appointed, whichever is later. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2651 
February 9, 2021 

Regular Business 

 

Agenda Item: 8a 
Proposed Action & Subject:  Presentation/discussion regarding the Annual Audit 
findings and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Sedona for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20. 

 

Department Financial Services 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item 

20 minutes 
30 minutes 

Other Council Meetings N/A 

Exhibits A. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
B. Annual Expenditure Limitation Report 
C. Governance Communication 
D. Single Audit Act Reports 
E. HURF Audit Report 
F. PowerPoint Presentation 

 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 
KWC 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 0 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

Presentation and 
discussion only. 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 0 

Account No. 
(Description) 

N/A 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
Background: An annual audit of municipal operations is required by State law and must 
include a financial statement of all accounts and funds of the City. It is the responsibility of the 
contracted independent public accounting firm to audit the City in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the U.S. and those contained in the Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the U.S. The standard that the audit firm must 
meet is reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
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The required audit reports included as exhibits are as follows: 

• Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
o Purpose:  Presents the audited financial statements and related disclosures with 

the auditors’ opinion regarding the presentation of the financial statements.   
o Results:  The auditors’ opinion was that, in all material respects, the financial 

statements fairly present the City’s financial position and financial activities for 
fiscal year 2019-20. 

• Annual Expenditure Limitation Report  
o Purpose:  Presents the results regarding the City’s compliance with expenditure 

limitation requirements.   
o Results:  The City was well under the expenditure limit for fiscal year 2019-20. 

• Governance Communication 
o Purpose:  Communicates to those charged with governance, the City Council 

and Senior Management, the scope of audit procedures performed, significant 
findings, and other information, such as disagreements with management, audit 
adjustments, and significant estimates, that are not communicated in the audited 
financial statements.  

o Results:  No issues were identified by the auditors during the fiscal year 2019-
20 audit. 

• Single Audit Act Reports  
o Purpose:  Presents the results regarding the City’s compliance with the Single 

Audit Act requirements. The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 were enacted 
to streamline and improve the effectiveness of audits of federal awards expended 
by states, local governments, and not-for-profit entities, as well as to reduce audit 
burden. Single Audits are relied on by federal agencies as part of their 
administrative responsibilities for determining compliance with the requirements 
of federal awards. While the City must always comply with the requirements of 
any federal awards received, this is the first time the City met the Single Audit 
threshold of $750,000 or more in federal awards expended. 

o Results:  No audit findings or questioned costs were identified by the auditors 
during the fiscal year 2019-20 audit. 

• Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) Audit Report  
o Purpose:  Identifies the auditors’ opinion regarding the City’s compliance with 

HURF regulations. 
o Results:  The auditors’ opinion was that the City complied, in all material 

respects, with the HURF requirements for fiscal year 2019-20. 

Much of the language in these reports is prescribed. For instance, the auditors’ opinion must 
include the caveat, “in all material respects.” This language is required whether there are 
immaterial issues found or not. An audit is not designed to provide absolute assurance that all 
issues would be found. Such assurances would be impractical and cost prohibitive. 

The CAFR is available to the public on the City’s website and the Electronic Municipal Market 
Access (EMMA) website of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB). The CAFR 
plus the Annual Expenditure Limitation Report have also been submitted to the Arizona State 
Office of the Auditor General. 

Sandy Cronstrom of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP will be present to discuss the City’s CAFR and 
audit reports with the City Council. A presentation also will be made regarding an overview of 
the City’s financial status as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

Community Plan Consistent: Yes - No - Not Applicable 
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Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 

Alternative(s): N/A 

MOTION 

I move to: for presentation and discussion only. 
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December 29, 2020

102 Roadrunner Drive
Sedona, AZ 86336
TDD (928) 204-7102
www.SedonaAZ.gov

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of Sedona, Arizona:

We are pleased to submit to you the fiscal year 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 

the City of Sedona, Arizona (the City) in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 9-481.

7KLV�GRFXPHQW�UHSUHVHQWV�PDQDJHPHQW¶V�UHSRUW�WR�LWV�JRYHUQLQJ�ERG\��FRQVWLWXHQWV��OHJLVODWLYH�DQG�

oversight bodies, and investors and creditors. Copies of this report will be sent to elected officials, 

management personnel, bond rating agencies, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) 

Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website, and other agencies that have expressed an interest 

LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�PDWWHUV��&RSLHV�RI�WKLV�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�ZLOO�DOVR�EH�SODFHd in the local library and on 

WKH�&LW\¶V�ZHEVLWH�IRU�XVH�E\�WKH�JHQHUDO�SXEOLF�

Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the 

presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City. The City has established 

and maintains a comprehensive internal control framework WKDW�LV�GHVLJQHG�ERWK�WR�SURWHFW�WKH�&LW\¶V�

assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of 

financial statements. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the 

objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free 

of any material misstatements.

We believe the data, as presented in this report, is accurate in all material respects, and is presented in a 

manner which fairly sets forth the financial position and results of operations of the City on both a citywide 

and fund basis. Furthermore, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 

XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�DFWLYLW\�DQG�ILnancial stability have been included.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for local governments as prescribed by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants (AICPA).

An independent firm of certified public accountants, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, whose report is included 

herein, has audited the basic financial statements and related notes. As stated in the independent 

DXGLWRUV¶�UHSRUW��WKH�JRDO�RI�WKH�LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLW�ZDV�WR�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�

statements of the City of Sedona, Arizona for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are free from material 

misstatement. The independent audit involved procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the 

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing accounting principles used and significant 

estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
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independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 

XQPRGLILHG��³FOHDQ´��RSLQLRQ�WKDW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�&LW\�RI�6HGRQD��$UL]RQD�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDr 

ended June 30, 2020, are fairly presented, in all material respects, and are in conformity with GAAP. The 

LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLWRUV¶�UHSRUW�LV�SUHVHQWHG�DV�WKH�ILUVW�FRPSRQHQW�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VHFWLRQ�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�GLVFXVVLRQ�DQG�DQDO\VLV��0'	$��LPPHGLDWHO\�IROORZV�WKH�LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�DQG�

provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A 

complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the City

The City of Sedona incorporated in 1988 as a Council-Manager form of government with a seven-member 

City Council, consisting of a Mayor and six Council Members, all of whom are elected at large. The 

position of Mayor is elected to a two-year term with Council Members being elected to four-year staggered 

terms. The City Council is vested with policy and legislative authority and is responsible for passing 

ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committee, commission, and board members, and appointing 

the positions of City Manager, City Attorney, and Magistrate Judge. The City Manager is responsible for 

carrying out the policies and enforcing the ordinances of the City Council, as well as overseeing the day-to-

day operations of the City.

The City encompasses approximately 19 square miles and is located in both Yavapai and Coconino 

Counties. The estimated current population is approximately 10,315. The City has attempted to manage its 

JURZWK�LQ�D�ZD\�WR�PDLQWDLQ�LWV�FKDUDFWHU��7KH�&LW\¶V�SRSXODWLRQ�KDV�GHFreased slightly since its peak of 

11,436 in 2009. Based on current projections, population growth trends are expected to continue to be 

relatively flat or possibly decline. The state legislature passed Senate Bill (SB) 1350 restricting Arizona 

cities from prohibiting short-WHUP�UHQWDOV��:LWK�WKH�UHPRYDO�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�SURKLELWLRQ��WKH�VKRUW-term rental 

market has exploded. When the results of the 2020 census are available, the extent that short-term rentals 

have displaced full-time residents will be better known.

The City provides a wide range of municipal services, including police protection, sewer services, 

construction and maintenance of streets, traffic control, on- and off-street parking, recreational and cultural 

events, planning and zoning services, and general administrative services. Sedona offers community 

facilities including a swimming pool, a community park, and neighborhood parks.

In an attempt to provide a greater range of services, the City has partnered with six local non-profit 

organizations to provide various community services that otherwise would not be cost-effective to operate 

as a City function. Partner-operated functions include library services, community center operations, 

special needV�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ��DQLPDO�VKHOWHU�VHUYLFHV��YLVLWRU¶V�FHQWHU�DQG�WRXULVP�EXUHDX��DQG�UHF\FOLQJ�

services.

Water distribution services are predominantly provided by a private water company, with a smaller area 

served by a legally separate special district. Refuse collection is not franchised and provided by a number 

of private companies. Fire protection is provided by a legally separate special district.

The City of Sedona, like all cities in the State of Arizona, is subject to numerous budget and related legal 

UHTXLUHPHQWV��$UWLFOH�,;��6HFWLRQ�������RI�WKH�$UL]RQD�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�VHWV�OLPLWV�RQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�OHJDO�EXGJHW�

capacity. The City currently operates under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation ± Home Rule option. 

This option allows the City Council to establish the budgetary limits locally. In order to maintain the Home
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Rule option, the voters must authorize this option every four years. The citizens of Sedona reauthorized it 

in August 2018 and is effective for fiscal years 2020 through 2023.

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 

appropriated operating budget approved by the Mayor and Council. Activities of all funds are included in 

the annual appropriated budget. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures 

cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is the total operating budget, as adopted by the City 

Council. The City additionally exercises management control and oversight of the budget at the 

department level within each fund. In addition to maintaining budgetary control via a formal appropriation, 

the City maintains an encumbrance accounting system. Encumbrances are made against appropriations 

upon the issuance of a purchase order. Encumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end and are re-

budgeted as needed in the next fiscal year.

Local Economic Condition and Outlook

7KH�&LW\¶V�HFRQRP\�LV�KHDYLO\�WRXULVP�IRFXVHG�ZLWK�VDOHV�DQG�EHG�WD[HV�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�WKH�PDMRULW\�RI�ORFDO�

operating revenue. The stunning natural red rock surroundings, numerous outdoor activities, luxury 

resorts, spas, art galleries, and boutique wineries attract an estimated 3 to 3.5 million visitors per year. An 

HVWLPDWHG�����RI�WKH�WRWDO�VDOHV�DQG�EHG�WD[�UHYHQXHV�DUH�JHQHUDWHG�E\�WKH�&LW\¶V�WRXULVP�LQGXVWU\�

The median age in the community is 59, and the community consists largely of retired citizens, second 

homes for part-time residents, and short-term rental properties for investors. Economic development 

initiatives are underway to improve and diversify opportunities for local business owners; however, lack of 

affordable housing results in most employees commuting from other locations within the Verde Valley area 

and beyond. Creating enough incentives for employees to commute is a consideration due to the 

competition for a limited employee base in the Verde Valley area.

Mandated closures in response to the COVID-19 pandemic occurred during mid-March to mid-May, which 

LV�W\SLFDOO\�WKH�&LW\¶V�EXVLHVW�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�\HDU�IRU�WRXULVP��+RWHO�RFFXSDQF\�UDWHV�KLW�ERWWRP�LQ�$SULO�ZLWK�

an 83% decrease. Since reopening, much of the tourism activity has returned. The first quarter fiscal year 

2021 sales taxes were up 7% and bed taxes were up 11% resulting in the highest first quarter that the City 

has ever seen. A considerable portion of the visitors are typically international and long-distance travelers; 

however, there has been a significant reduction in the number of tourists in these categories. The 

substantial increase in regional travelers has more than made up the difference in sales and bed tax 

revenues.

Despite the pandemic, both retail and construction sales tax collections for fiscal year 2020 were the 

highest ever. The increase in retail sales tax collections can be attributed to an increase in local sales 

activity, an increase in online sales activity, and the impacts of Wayfair v. South Dakota requiring all retail 

marketplaces to collect and remit taxes. The increase in construction sales tax can largely be attributed to 

the continued increase in interest in the Sedona area as a prime tourist and retirement destination.

Economic Outlook

Taxable Sales: The City of Sedona places a heavy reliance on sales tax revenues, and the economy is 

heavily driven by tourism and the generation of sales taxes from tourism-related activities and sales of 

high-end commodities such as art pieces and jewelry. Overall, total sales tax revenues comprise

DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����RI�WKH�*HQHUDO�)XQG�UHYHQXHV��7KH�&LW\¶V�XQUHVWULFWHG�VDOHV�WD[�UDWH�LV�FXUUHQWO\�DW�����

Unrestricted sales tax revenues decreased 7% compared to the prior fiscal year as result of the COVID-19
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closures. Since reopening, sales tax revenues have exceeded expectations and prior year levels. Due to 

the highly desirable location, sales tax revenues are expected to continue at these strong levels barring 

any substantial reclosures due to the pandemic.

The City also has a 3.5% bed tax (transient occupancy), a discriminatory sales tax, which is allocated to 

the General Fund. The bed tax rate was increased from 3% to 3.5% effective January 1, 2014. State 

statutes require the proceeds from the 0.5% rate increase be used exclusively for the promotion of tourism. 

At the time of the rate increase, the City Council committed 55% of the proceeds of the bed tax to the 

management and promotion of tourism, including a destination marketing program.  The marketing 

program was focused on increasing interest and visitation to Sedona as a destination with local options for 

many types of activities and attractions. The Sedona Tourism Bureau kicked off the program in mid-July 

2014. Since the program began, it exceeded all expectations. In addition, SB 1350 waseffective

January 1, 2017. The increases in revenue collections for transient occupancy have also been attributable 

to this legalization of short-term residential rentals. Since fiscal year 2019, the marketing efforts have been 

reduced and more effort has been placed on the management of tourism to achieve a sustainable balance. 

For fiscal year 2020, bed tax revenues were less than the prior year actuals by 13% due to the COVID-19 

closures. Since reopening, bed tax revenues have exceeded expectations and prior year levels and are 

expected to continue at these strong levels barring any substantial reclosures due to the pandemic.

State Shared Revenues:  The City of Sedona receives significant revenue allocations from the State. 

These ³6WDWH shared UHYHQXHV´ include allocations of the State-collected income tax, sales tax, gas tax and 

motor vehicle in-OLHX�WD[HV��$�VLJQLILFDQW�DPRXQW�RI�WKLV�UHYHQXH�LV�SODFHG�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�*HQHUDO�)XQG��

where it is used to support a largH�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�GD\-to-day activities. State shared revenue 

UHSUHVHQWV�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�WRWDO�*HQHUDO�)XQG�UHYHQXH��7KH�6WDWH�VKDUHG�UHYHQXH�

formulas generally allocate revenues based on the most recent annual population estimates from the U.S. 

&HQVXV�%XUHDX��6LQFH�WKH�&LW\¶V�SRSXODWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�UHODWLYHO\�IODW�DQG�PDQ\�RWKHU�PXQLFLSDOLWLHV�LQ�

$UL]RQD�DUH�JURZLQJ��LW�LV�H[SHFWHG�WKDW�WKH�&LW\¶V�SRUWLRQ�RI�6WDWH�VKDUHG�UHYHQXHV�ZLOO�GHFUHDVH�DQG�DQ\�

LQFUHDVHV�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�VKDUH�RI�WKH revenues will be a result of overall increases in the State shared 

revenue pools.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City regularly updates its long-term financial plan. In reviewing the long-term fiscal outlook for the 

City, the City has sufficient revenues to meet its demands for services and to fund day-to-day operations. 

6LQFH�WKH�&LW\¶V�SULPDU\�HFRQRPLF�GULYLQJ�IRUFH�LV�WRXULVP�DQG�VLQFH�WRXULVP�FDQ�EH�VLJQLILFDQWO\�DIIHFWHG�

E\�HFRQRPLF�F\FOHV��WKH�&LW\¶V�ORQJ-range forecasts include assumptions of future recessionary periods 

based on a combination of information from various economists.

The City maintains a ten-year capital budget planning process, which serves as its planning document to 

ensure that its facilities, equipment, and infrastructure are well maintained and operating in peak condition, 

LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�DGGUHVVLQJ�WKH�FDSLWDO�QHHGV�IRU�&RXQFLO�SULRULWLHV��7KH�&LW\¶V�JRDO�LV�WR�IRFXV�RQ�HQVXULQJ�

that a minimum of the first three years of the plan are fully funded. The $15.3 million capital improvement 

program for fiscal year 2021 includes $10.0 for streets and transportation related improvements, $1.4 

million for storm drainage projects, and $1.4 million for wastewater projects.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund at June 30, 2020 was 61% of General Fund operating 

expenditures. This amount well exceeded the policy guidelines set by the Council for budgetary and 

planning purposes of 30%. Allocation of General Fund surpluses to Council priorities (such as capital
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improvements, affordable housing initiatives, or potential implementation of a local transit system) will be 

determined in the next budget cycle process for fiscal year 2022.

Financial Policies

The long-UDQJH�IRUHFDVW�LV�XSGDWHG�DQQXDOO\�IRU�UHYHQXHV�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUHV�H[SHQVHV�IRU�WKH�&LW\¶V�PDMRU�

IXQGV��7KH�IRUHFDVWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�WR�H[DPLQH�WKH�&LW\¶V�DELOLW\�WR�DEVRUE�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV�GXH�WR�FKDQJHV�

in the economy, service demands, capital improvements, and implementation of new initiatives. The 

forecast includes revenue that is reasonably considered to be sustainable over the forecast period.

Expenditure projections include anticipated operating impacts of capital improvement expenditures that are 

included in the Capital Improvement Program. This long-range process serves to define the critical issues 

DQG�SULRULWLHV�DQG�LQFRUSRUDWHV�WKH�&LW\¶V�&RPPXQLW\�3ODQ�DQG�ORQJ-term vision. These strategies have 

allowed the City to maintain its strong operating cash position.

State statutes require adoption of a balanced annual budget; available beginning fund balances plus 

estimated revenues must be equal to or greater than budgeted expenditures. The fiscal year 2020 

adopted budget projected surplus balances at the end of the year of $20.2 million. At June 30, 2020, all of 

WKH�&LW\¶V�SROLF\�UHVHUYHV�DUH�IXOO\�IXQGHG��6XUSOXV�EDODQFHV�H[FHHGLQJ�SROLF\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�

the year were $24.0 million.

A portion of the fiscal year 2018 surplus General Fund balances were allocated to the affordable housing 

initiative, and the remaining surplus was transferred to the Capital Improvements Fund to support capital 

infrastructure projects.

Major Initiatives and Service Efforts and Accomplishments for the Year

During fiscal year 2020, the City continued to invest in programs and amenities that keep Sedona a livable 

community. The following are some of the service efforts and accomplishments of the City during fiscal 

year 2020:

Police

¾ Held 9 community police events, including Celebration of Women in Policing, Special Olympics, Tip 
a Cop, National Night Out, Coffee with a Cop, and a Hispanic Outreach.

¾ Implemented a Nextdoor communication program to enhance engagement with Sedona residents.

¾ Awarded a grant and purchased 4 Light Detection and Ranging (LIDAR) units to use while 
conducting speed enforcement as well as 12 speed enforcement details paid for by Governor's 
Office of Highway Safety (GOHS).

¾ Awarded a grant for DUI enforcement and patrols throughout the year to pay for officers to work 
special details in Sedona and throughout the Verde Valley.

¾ ([FHHGHG�WKH�VWDWH¶V�FOHDUDQFH�UDWHV�IRU�YLROHQW�FULPHV�E\ 18.9%.
¾ ([FHHGHG�WKH�VWDWH¶V�FOHDUDQFH�UDWHV�IRU�SURSHUW\�FULPHV�E\ 11.5%

¾ Over 4,000 hours donated by volunteers to provide prisoner/evidence transportation, house watch, 
crime scene/traffic control assistance and special event services.

Public Works

¾ Continued implementation of Transportation Master Plan projects.

¾ Completed exterior restoration work for buildings at the Ranger Station Park.
¾ Completed approximately 5 miles of streets rehabilitation and pavement preservation projects.
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¾ Increased the number of days of traffic control operations for days experiencing high congestion on 
6WDWH�5RXWHV���$�DQG������WKH�&LW\¶V�PDLQ arterials.

¾ Eliminated contracted custodial services and hired 2 in-house custodians.

Management Services

¾ Completed the Greater Sedona/Oak Creek Canyon transit system development and 
implementation plan.

¾ Formed a citizen work group to evaluate expenditure limitation options, including exploration of a 
city-initiated Permanent Base Adjustment for public vote on the August 2020 ballot, culminating in a 
recommendation and decision by Council that Home Rule is the option that makes most sense for 
Sedona.

¾ 'HYHORSHG�VWUDWHJLHV�WR�LPSURYH�WKH�&LW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�WKURXJK�WKH�FUHDWLRQ�RI�D�0XQLFLSDO�
Sustainability Plan and initiated a community-based climate action and resiliency plan.

¾ Completed comprehensive Lean training for approximately 20 internal team members and 
implemented a committee structure to oversee the completion of Lean projects.

Economic Development

¾ Completed the five-year Sedona Economic Diversification Plan.
¾ Acquired $500,000 of grant funds from the Arizona Commerce Authority to upgrade Shelby Road.

¾ Partnered with Verde Valley Regional Economic Organization to promote and host the second 
annual Pioneer Pitch competition in March 2020.

Community Development

¾ Continued an in-house training program for plan reviews and inspections.

¾ Completed a comprehensive update to the Building Code.
¾ Over 400 code enforcement cases processed.

¾ Completed approximately 4,000 building inspections.
¾ Initiated a Housing Needs Assessment and Five-Year Affordable Housing Action Plan.

Parks & Recreation

¾ Offered 21 days of events.

¾ Installed rubberized playground surfacing for both playgrounds.
¾ Completed additional phases of the Bike Skills Park to include the Drop Zone and SkillsZone.

Wastewater

¾ Continued a wastewater rate study.

¾ Completed construction of 2 lift station upgrade projects.
¾ Completed construction of the tertiary filter upgrades project.

¾ Began construction of the State Route 179 sewer main replacement project.

¾ Developed an in-house CCTV program.
¾ Collected and processed approximately 1.14 million gallons of wastewater per day.

For the Future

7KH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLRQDO�SODQV�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�VXSSRUW�EDVLF�JRYHUQPHQW�VHUYLFHV�LQFOXGLQJ�

roads, police, wastewater, and parks and recreation. In addition, the Council has continued the process to 

assist in the identification, prioritization, and management of emerging strategic issues that, by virtue of their 

scope, complexity, and/or potential impact, require a coordinated multi-department action plan and budget.
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The City Council works closely with City management to implement specific objectives and tasks designed 

to meet these goals.

The City Council updated the current list of priorities as part of the fiscal year 2021 budget process. The 

&LW\�&RXQFLO�FDWHJRUL]HG�SULRULWLHV�DV�HLWKHU�³KLJK�´�³PHGLXP�´�RU�³ORZ�´�6RPH�RI�WKH�ILVFDl year 2021 

priorities include completing various transportation improvements, developing community focus area (CFA) 

specific area plans, developing strategies for environmental stewardship/sustainability, monitoring and 

assessing impacts of short-term rentals, developing a plan for addressing affordable housing issues, 

improving citizen communications and relations, enhancing economic diversification, developing an 

emergency preparedness plan, and evaluating options for support of Sedona Recycles, Inc.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Sedona, Arizona for its 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This was the 21st 

year that the City of Sedona has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 

Achievement, the City had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both 

generally accepted accounting principles and applicable program requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. 

We believe our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 

5HSRUWLQJ�3URJUDP¶V�UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�ZH�DUH submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 

another certificate.

7KH�&LW\�DOVR�UHFHLYHG�WKH�*)2$¶V�'LVWLQJXLVKHG�%XGJHW�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�$ZDUG�IRU�LWV�DQQXDO�EXGJHW�

document for fiscal year 2020. To qualify for the Distinguished Budget PresentDWLRQ�$ZDUG��WKH�&LW\¶V�

budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, 

and a communications device.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated 

services of the staff of the Financial Services Department. We also wish to thank the members of the City 

Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the City in a 

responsible and progressive manner.

Sincerely,

Justin Clifton 

City Manager

Cherie R. Wright, CPA, CGFM 

Director of Financial Services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS� REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona
Sedona, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sedona, 
Arizona (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City�s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors� Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors� judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity�s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.
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The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sedona, Arizona as of June 30, 2020, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, Streets Fund, and Transportation Sales Tax 
Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management�s discussion and analysis, pension schedules and OPEB schedules as listed in the table 
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management�s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City�s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and schedules and the introductory and statistical sections are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.
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(15)

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 29, 2020, on our consideration of the City�s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City�s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City�s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

!
Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

This section of the City of Sedona, Arizona’s (the City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents a narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and the
basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at

the close of the fiscal year 2020 and 2019 by $169.1 million and $157.6 million (net position), respectively. Of these

amounts, $31.6 million and $33.9 million (unrestricted net position), respectively, may be used to meet the

government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

 Total net position increased by $11.5 million during fiscal year 2020 and increased $14.0 million during fiscal year

2019.

 As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $37.2

million and $35.6 million, respectively, which were comprised of nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and

unassigned fund balances.

 At the close of fiscal year 2020, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $12.0 million, or 59.0% of actual

expenditures.  

 During fiscal year 2020, the City’s total bonded debt decreased by $2.4 million due to scheduled principal payments.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements are comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements, and
3. Notes to basic financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.
All changes in net position are reported at the time the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining to uncollected court fines and expenses pertaining to earned but
unused vacation and sick leave.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
basic services such as general government, public safety, and streets. The business-type activities of the City include wastewater
operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also three
legally separate entities: the Sedona Wastewater Municipal Property Corporation (SWMPC) and the Fairfield and Summit II
Community Facilities Districts (Districts). Although legally separate from the City, these component units are blended with the
primary government because of their governance or financial relationship to the City.

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 31 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the City’s funds can be divided into the following two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds – Governmental funds account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund
financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This information may be useful in determining what financial resources are
available in the near future to fund the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (general fund, special revenue, and
capital projects). Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Streets Fund, Transportation Sales Tax
Fund, and Capital Improvements Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements in a separate section of this report. The basic governmental fund financial
statements begin on page 33 of this report.

Proprietary Funds – The City maintains two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for the wastewater operations of the City.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various
functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its information technology operations.  Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the wastewater operations which is considered a major
fund of the City.  Conversely, the internal service fund, although presented in the proprietary fund financial statements, is not
cosidered a major fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements begin on page 40 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements and should be read with the financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements begin on page 43 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes and other schedules, this report presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) benefits to its employees, including the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension/OPEB Liability, Schedule of Changes in the City’s Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule of
City Pension/OPEB Contributions. This information can be found beginning on page 79 of this report.

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules

The combining statements referred to earlier, in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information on pensions and OPEB.  The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 89 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position

While this document contains information about the funds used by the City to provide services to our citizens, the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities serve to provide an answer to the question of how the City, as a whole, did
financially throughout the year. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by the private sector. The basis for this
accounting takes into account all of the current year revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and the changes in net position. The change in net position is important
because it tells the reader whether the financial position of the City as a whole has improved or diminished. However, in
evaluating the overall net position of the City, nonfinancial information such as changes in the City’s tax base and the condition
of the City’s capital assets will also need to be evaluated.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Net Position (Continued)

Net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Net position was $169.1 million and $157.6
million at the close of the fiscal year 2020 and 2019, respectively.

CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets $ 40,924,589 $ 40,625,512 $ 22,348,925 $ 23,628,179 $ 63,273,514 $ 64,253,691

Capital assets
Nondepreciable 18,441,041 13,252,609 11,539,902 12,584,624 29,980,943 25,837,233
Depreciable (net) 35,520,047 33,735,186 92,076,882 90,212,385 127,596,929 123,947,571

Total assets 94,885,677 87,613,307 125,965,709 126,425,188 220,851,386 214,038,495

Deferred outflows of resources 3,495,417 3,770,183 280,334 336,818 3,775,751 4,107,001

Other liabilities 2,619,533 4,075,222 5,540,686 5,307,754 8,160,219 9,382,976
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 1,474,568 1,488,233 4,364,084 1,453,421 5,838,652 2,941,654
Due in more than one year 19,700,201 19,572,023 20,789,328 27,096,392 40,489,529 46,668,415

Total liabilities 23,794,302 25,135,478 30,694,098 33,857,567 54,488,400 58,993,045

Deferred inflows of resources 922,660 1,391,039 76,960 124,368 999,620 1,515,407

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 45,125,594 36,964,267 87,704,542 82,872,611 132,830,136 119,836,878
Restricted 4,722,195 3,904,561 1,854 2,571 4,724,049 3,907,132
Unrestricted 23,816,343 23,988,145 7,768,589 9,904,889 31,584,932 33,893,034

Total net position $ 73,664,132 $ 64,856,973 $ 95,474,985 $ 92,780,071 $ 169,139,117 $ 157,637,044

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment, and
infrastructure) less depreciation and any related debt used to acquire those assets, of $132.8 million (78.5%) and $119.8 million
(76.0%) for the fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for appropriation. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated for these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $4.7 million (2.8%) for fiscal year 2020 and $3.9 million (2.5%) for fiscal year
2019, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net position for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, $31.6 million (18.7%), and $33.9 million (21.5%) respectively, may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of both the current and previous fiscal years, the City was able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net position for the governmental activities and business-type activities.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Changes in Net Position

The City’s net position increased by $11.5 million and $14.0 million during the fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. These
changes are explained in the governmental and business-type activities discussion below.

CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 1,172,142 $ 1,447,667 $ 6,043,445 $ 6,251,954 $ 7,215,587 $ 7,699,621
Operating grants and contributions 2,671,868 1,724,973 - - 2,671,868 1,724,973
Capital grants and contributions 1,588,597 1,546,883 1,074,988 573,380 2,663,585 2,120,263

General revenues
Local taxes 25,810,203 27,643,256 - - 25,810,203 27,643,256
State revenue sharing 3,068,575 2,954,258 - - 3,068,575 2,954,258
Investment earnings 815,918 1,003,210 435,820 620,971 1,251,738 1,624,181
Other 194,965 87,431 13,128 18,207 208,093 105,638

Total revenues 35,322,268 36,407,678 7,567,381 7,464,512 42,889,649 43,872,190

Expenses
General government 3,100,633 2,974,989 - - 3,100,633 2,974,989
Public safety 7,848,655 6,836,072 - - 7,848,655 6,836,072
Public works and streets 5,617,752 5,488,876 - - 5,617,752 5,488,876
Culture and recreation 2,497,360 2,521,273 - - 2,497,360 2,521,273
Economic development 2,618,729 2,424,664 - - 2,618,729 2,424,664
Health and welfare 612,522 492,083 - - 612,522 492,083
Public transportation 255,418 202,363 - - 255,418 202,363
Housing 280,621 - - - 280,621 -
Interest on long-term debt 236,419 281,913 - - 236,419 281,913
Wastewater - - 8,319,467 8,691,487 8,319,467 8,691,487

Total expenses 23,068,109 21,222,233 8,319,467 8,691,487 31,387,576 29,913,720

Increase (decrease) in net position before transfers 12,254,159 15,185,445 (752,086) (1,226,975) 11,502,073 13,958,470

Transfers (3,447,000) (4,599,709) 3,447,000 4,599,709 - -

Change in net position 8,807,159 10,585,736 2,694,914 3,372,734 11,502,073 13,958,470

Net position - beginning 64,856,973 54,271,237 92,780,071 89,407,337 157,637,044 143,678,574

Net position - ending $ 73,664,132 $ 64,856,973 $ 95,474,985 $ 92,780,071 $ 169,139,117 $ 157,637,044

Governmental Activities – In fiscal year 2020, governmental activities increased the net position of the City by $8.8 million.
Total revenues decreased $1.1 million (3.0%) from fiscal year 2019. Program revenues, which are comprised of charges for
services, operating and capital grants and contributions, increased $0.7 million (15.1%) primarily due to one-time Cares Act
funding. General revenues, which include local taxes, state revenue sharing, investment income, and other revenues, decreased
$1.8 million  (5.7%) due to decreases in tax revenues as a result of the COVID-19 closures. 
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Expenses increased $1.8 million, or 8.7%. Public safety expenses increased $1.0 million primarily due to an increase in the
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) liability, an increase in depreciation expense, and an increase in
information technology costs attributable to the police department.

Economic development expenses increased $0.2 million due to increases in the tourism management program and the economic
diversification program.

Housing expenses increased $0.3 million due to the initiation of an affordable housing study and grant funded expenses related
to transitional housing for the homeless.  

Business-Type Activities – Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $2.7 million in fiscal year 2020.
Revenue increased $0.1 million and expenses decreased by $0.4 million. The increase in revenue was primarily due to an
increase in capacity fees received for new development and commercial connections to the wastewater system. The decrease in
expenses was primarily related to a reduction in operational maintenance cost needs.

As noted earlier, City of Sedona, Arizona uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds – Funds are created and segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. Activity not required to be reported in a separate
fund is included in the General Fund.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of resources
that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year, as they represent the portion of fund balance which has not been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an
external party, the city itself, or been assigned for particular purposes by the City Council or management.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $37.2
million, an increase of $1.6 million, or a 4.4% increase in comparison with the prior year. The combined ending fund balances
for fiscal year 2019 were $35.6 million.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2020, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund
was $12.0 million, or 32.2% of the combined governmental fund balance. The unassigned fund balance of the General Fund at
June 30, 2019 was $9.5 million or 26.5% of combined governmental fund balance.  As a measure of the General Fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare General Fund unassigned fund balance to General Fund expenditures. The General Fund
unassigned balance of $12.0 million represents 59.0% of General Fund expenditures. 

The General Fund fund balance increase of $2.2 million from fiscal year 2019 is partly due to an increase in
intergovernmental  revenue of $1.3 million primarily due to Cares Act funding. In addition, fund balance increased due to a
reduction of amounts transferred to the Wastewater Fund of $1.2 million.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS (Continued)

The Streets Fund is used to account for the state shared revenues restricted for street and highway purposes. The fund balance at
June 30, 2020 was $1.3 million. The Streets Fund received a transfer of $0.2 million from the General Fund to supplement the
cost of street improvement projects. The Streets Fund fund balance increased by $0.5 million from the prior year due to the
timing of streets projects.  While the City plans to perform street rehabilitation and pavement preservation for an average of 4.5
to 5.0 miles per year, the actual miles maintained each year are expected to vary based on the projects of highest priority need.

The Transportation Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the half-cent sales tax dedicated to transportation projects and related
administrative and operation costs.  The fund balance at June 30, 2020 was $6.9 million.  The Transportation Sales Tax Fund
fund balance increased $2.9 million due to the prioritization of balances in the Capital Improvements Fund assigned to
transportation projects to be used first. 

The Capital Improvements Fund fund balance decreased $3.7 million to $9.9 million, due to the utilization of balances
accumulated for planned capital projects.  

The nonmajor governmental funds reported a decrease in fund balance of $0.3 million. This decrease was a result of the
planned use of accumulated monies for capital projects.        

Proprietary Funds – The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

At the end of the fiscal year, the unrestricted net position for the Wastewater Fund was $7.7 million. For fiscal year 2020, the
change in net position for the Wastewater Fund was $2.7 million. The increase was due to reductions in operation cost needs
and an increase in capacity fees received for new development and commercial connections to the wastewater system.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, there were changes in appropriations between the original and final budget; however, none were significant.
They mostly represented miscellaneous transfers between departments, and use of contingency funds.

The actual expenditures reflected a favorable variance to the final budget in the amount of $3.6 million (14.9%) less than the
total appropriations. In fiscal year 2019, actual expenditures showed a favorable variance to final budget in the amount of $2.2
million (10.0% less).

Unspent contingencies were approximately $1.7 million.  City Manager expenditures were under the budgeted amount by $0.3
million due to a reduction of anticipated tourism management costs and deferral of costs related to the communication and
sustainability programs.  Police Department expenditures were under the budgeted amount by $0.3 million primarily due to the
vacancy savings. Municipal Court expenditures were under the budgeted amount by $0.2 million primarily due to delays in the
court relocation project.  

Total revenues reflect an unfavorable variance to budget in the amount of $0.8 million (2.7%) for fiscal year 2020 and a
favorable variance of $1.4 million (5.0%) in fiscal year 2019.

Sales tax revenues was less than the budget amount by $1.5 million as a result of COVID-19 closures.  Contributions were less
than the budget amount by $0.6 due to one-time budgeted in-lieu contributions that were collected for affordable housing just
before the end of the previous fiscal year. 
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 amount to $157.6
million and $149.8 million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). The net increase in capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) was $7.8 million, due to large construction projects in progress for roadway and drainage
improvements. Capital assets include land and improvements, building and improvements, wastewater systems, machinery,
vehicles, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.

For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to
the end of the current fiscal year. Fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as expenditures.

CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land $ 9,685,130 $ 8,790,846 $ 11,159,413 $ 11,159,413 $ 20,844,543 $ 19,950,259
Construction in progress 8,755,911 4,461,763 380,489 1,425,211 9,136,400 5,886,974
Land Improvements 8,142,272 7,588,772 50,114 36,018 8,192,386 7,624,790
Buildings and improvements 4,741,594 5,034,020 - - 4,741,594 5,034,020
Wastewater system - - 91,245,055 89,802,856 91,245,055 89,802,856
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 1,261,845 1,183,946 781,713 373,511 2,043,558 1,557,457
Infrastructure 21,374,336 19,928,448 - - 21,374,336 19,928,448

Total capital assets $ 53,961,088 $ 46,987,795 $ 103,616,784 $ 102,797,009 $ 157,577,872 $ 149,784,804

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

 Land purchases.

 Various road and pedestrian access improvement projects.

 Solar carport project.

 Various drainage improvement projects.

 Lift station improvement projects.

 Sewer main replacement project.

 Wastewater reclamation plant tertiary filter upgrades project.

 Wastewater administration building remodel/expansion project.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 beginning on page 55 of this report.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Long-Term Debt

At the end of fiscal year 2020, the City, had total bonded debt outstanding of $20.5 million (including related premium). At the
end of fiscal year 2019, the City had bonded debt totaling $22.9 million. All of the fiscal year 2020 total bonded debt was
related to revenue bonds. An additional $10.3 million of debt is outstanding that is related to capital appreciation bonds issued
in fiscal year 1998 that will be paid in fiscal years 2021 through 2024. Capital leases and installment purchases outstanding as
of June 30, 2020 were $0.7 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue bonds $ 6,665,000 $ 7,550,000 $ 13,816,499 $ 15,302,582 $ 20,481,499 $ 22,852,582

Capital appreciation bond interest - - 10,273,769 12,189,283 10,273,769 12,189,283

Installment purchase 78,943 - - - 78,943 -

Capital leases 644,188 619,579 28,021 - 672,209 619,579

Total outstanding debt $ 7,388,131 $ 8,169,579 $ 24,118,289 $ 27,491,865 $ 31,506,420 $ 35,661,444

The City's total debt decreased by $4.2 million (11.7%) during the current fiscal year.  During the current year the City entered
into new leases for vehicles for $0.3 million and installment purchases for holiday decorations for $0.1 million.  The new
issuances were offset by the regularly scheduled payments on the existing outstanding debt. 

During the fiscal year, the City's bond rating from Standard & Poor's was increased from "A" to "AA-" based on the City's
stable outlook.

State statutes impose certain debt limitations on the City of 6% and 20% of the outstanding secondary assessed valuation of the
City depending on the type of general obligation bonds.  Since the City has no general obligation bonds, the debt limit and the
available debt margin at June 30, 2020, was $26.3 million in the 6% capacity and $87.8 million in the 20% capacity. In fiscal
year 2019, the 6% capacity limit was $23.7 million, and the 20% capacity limit was $79.0 million. Additional information on
the debt limitations and capacities may be found on page 113 in the statistical section of this report. 

See Notes 8 through 11 on pages 57 - 60 of the financial statements for further information regarding long-term debt.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City of Sedona, Arizona, as well as other Arizona cities, remains dependent on State shared revenues and local sales taxes
for resources. These revenue sources are economically sensitive taxes and subject to slowdowns in the economy and legislative
appropriations.  Sedona's economy is heavily based on tourism.  An estimated 77% of sales tax revenues are generated by the
City's tourism industry.

Fiscal year 2020-21 budgeted General Fund expenditures (including interfund transfers) are balanced with anticipated revenue.
The total adopted fiscal year 2020-21 budget is $51.2 million, which includes capital projects of $15.3 million. The budget for
fiscal year 2021 includes the following considerations:
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2020

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES (Continued)

 The fiscal year 2020-21 budget process included consideration of multiple tiered scenarios projecting the possible impacts

of the financial crisis caused by mandated business closures as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  The City’s financial

management plan based on the tiered scenarios developed is intended to be fluid and responsive to everchanging

conditions. 

 The tourism industry, Sedona’s primary industry, is one of the most heavily impacted by COVID-19.  The fiscal year 2020-

21 budget was developed based on a best-case scenario in case the pandemic ended quickly; however, many budgetary

items were frozen pending more information regarding the impacts to the City’s financial position.  The impacts to the

City’s sales tax revenues are monitored regularly to evaluate the continued need for budget freezes.  Freezes may be lifted

on a case-by-case basis when a critical business need is identified. 

 The fiscal year 2020-21 budget does not include any new taxes but does include preliminary estimations of increases in

wastewater capacity fees, a one-time fee charged to connect to the wastewater system.  A wastewater fee study is in

process, and currently no revenue increases for monthly service rates are proposed. 

 The fiscal year 2020-21 budget includes estimated revenue losses of $5.8 million in sales taxes and $0.1 million in state

shared revenues. 

 No pay increases were included in the fiscal year 2020-21 budget. 

 Increases in health insurance rates, pension contributions, and workers compensation rates have been included; however,

the additional contribution originally planned to pay down the unfunded liability in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement

System (PSPRS) has been suspended for fiscal year 2020-21. 

 A Housing Manager position and a part-time Court Security Officer position were added.  In addition, the Magistrate Judge

position was increased from part-time to full-time. 

 Enhancements to the City’s environmental stewardship/sustainability program and economic diversification program were

included in the fiscal year 2020-21 budget; however, these enhancements were frozen until the City’s financial position

demonstrates the ability to move forward with these Council priorities. 

 The fiscal year 2020-21 budget incorporates various Council priorities, including traffic/transportation improvement

projects, environmental stewardship/sustainability, affordable housing, sustainable tourism, economic diversification, and

storm drainage improvement projects. 

 As previously mentioned, the fiscal year 2020-21 budget was developed based on a best-case scenario.  Under that

scenario, the budget anticipated all fund balance reserve requirements to be fully funded with a surplus in the General Fund

of approximately $0.6 million (as compared to surpluses projected in prior years of approximately $2-$3 million).  Actual

surpluses determined subsequent to year-end are allocated in the next budget process to Council priorities and/or capital

improvement projects.  Since Sedona’s tourism and sales tax revenues have returned to near “normal” levels after

businesses reopened mid-May 2020, the more severe revenue losses anticipated in the other scenarios may not occur. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of those with an interest in the
City’s finances and to demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds. Questions about any of the information provided
in this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 

City of Sedona 
Financial Services Department

102 Roadrunner Drive
Sedona, AZ 86336 

(928) 204-7185 

Or, visit our website at www.SedonaAZ.gov/finance.  
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Assets
Cash and investments $ 36,861,886 $ 21,691,329 $ 58,553,215
Restricted assets 3,000 16,750 19,750
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles

Taxes, net 3,019,657 - 3,019,657
Accounts, net 425,322 564,281 989,603
Accrued interest 89,157 43,138 132,295

Internal balances (31,433) 31,433 -
Due from other government units 376,889 - 376,889
Prepaid items 30,083 140 30,223
Net pension/OPEB asset 150,028 1,854 151,882
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 18,441,041 11,539,902 29,980,943
Depreciable 35,520,047 92,076,882 127,596,929

Total assets 94,885,677 125,965,709 220,851,386

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions/OPEB 3,151,030 172,406 3,323,436
Deferred charges on debt refunding 344,387 107,928 452,315

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,495,417 280,334 3,775,751

Liabilities
Accounts payable 439,638 143,669 583,307
Construction contracts payable 673,773 589,817 1,263,590
Accrued wages and benefits 241,420 29,050 270,470
Interest payable 73,235 3,098,888 3,172,123
Matured debt principal payable 885,000 1,400,000 2,285,000
Retainage payable 232,388 185,833 418,221
Due to other governmental units 38,737 - 38,737
Deposits payable 19,350 16,750 36,100
Unearned revenue 15,992 76,679 92,671
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 1,474,568 4,364,084 5,838,652
Due in more than one year 19,700,201 20,789,328 40,489,529

Total liabilities 23,794,302 30,694,098 54,488,400

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions/OPEB 922,660 76,960 999,620

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 45,125,594 87,704,542 132,830,136
Restricted for

Net pension/OPEB asset 150,028 1,854 151,882
Streets 481,211 - 481,211
Court improvements 52,286 - 52,286
Criminal case processing 50,901 - 50,901
Police Department programs 54,937 - 54,937
Parks improvements 2,536,892 - 2,536,892
Flood control 1,767 - 1,767
Police improvements 37,095 - 37,095
Summit CFD improvements 390,605 - 390,605
Fairfield CFD improvements 119,818 - 119,818
Affordable housing 840,099 - 840,099
Public art 6,556 - 6,556

Unrestricted 23,816,343 7,768,589 31,584,932

Total net position $ 73,664,132 $ 95,474,985 $ 169,139,117

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital 

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for

Services
Grants and

Contributions
Grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total

Primary Government
Governmental activities

General government $ 3,100,633 $ 686,472 $ 30,787 $ - $ (2,383,374) $ - $ (2,383,374)
Public safety 7,848,655 385,984 1,226,037 55,924 (6,180,710) - (6,180,710)
Public works and streets 5,617,752 19,068 1,154,143 1,247,667 (3,196,874) - (3,196,874)
Culture and recreation 2,497,360 80,158 12,700 285,006 (2,119,496) - (2,119,496)
Economic development 2,618,729 - - - (2,618,729) - (2,618,729)
Health and welfare 612,522 - - - (612,522) - (612,522)
Public transportation 255,418 460 33,139 - (221,819) - (221,819)
Housing 280,621 - 215,062 - (65,559) - (65,559)
Interest on long-term debt 236,419 - - - (236,419) - (236,419)

Total governmental activities 23,068,109 1,172,142 2,671,868 1,588,597 (17,635,502) - (17,635,502)

Business-type activities
Wastewater 8,319,467 6,043,445 - 1,074,988 - (1,201,034) (1,201,034)

Total primary government $ 31,387,576 $ 7,215,587 $ 2,671,868 $ 2,663,585 (17,635,502) (1,201,034) (18,836,536)

General Revenues
Taxes

Sales taxes $ 24,329,794 $ - $ 24,329,794
Franchise taxes 809,673 - 809,673
In lieu taxes 670,736 - 670,736

Unrestricted state revenue sharing 1,336,465 - 1,336,465
Unrestricted state sales tax revenue sharing 1,067,529 - 1,067,529
Unrestricted auto lieu tax revenue sharing 664,581 - 664,581
Investment earnings 815,918 435,820 1,251,738
Other 194,965 13,128 208,093

Transfers (3,447,000) 3,447,000 -

Total general revenues and transfers 26,442,661 3,895,948 30,338,609

Change in net position 8,807,159 2,694,914 11,502,073

Net position - beginning 64,856,973 92,780,071 157,637,044

Net position - ending $ 73,664,132 $ 95,474,985 $ 169,139,117

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

General Streets
Transportation

Sales Tax
Capital

Improvements
Nonmajor

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Assets
Cash and investments $ 14,095,079 $ 1,324,032 $ 6,599,118 $ 10,543,724 $ 3,556,963 $ 36,118,916
Receivables, net of allowance for

uncollectibles
Taxes 2,658,366 - 330,039 - 31,252 3,019,657
Accounts 350,322 - - 75,000 - 425,322
Accrued interest 34,492 3,323 16,520 24,197 9,143 87,675

Due from other government units 89,779 77,048 - - 210,062 376,889
Due from other funds 92,547 - - - - 92,547
Prepaid items 29,826 - - - - 29,826
Restricted assets 3,000 - - - - 3,000

Total assets $ 17,353,411 $ 1,404,403 $ 6,945,677 $ 10,642,921 $ 3,807,420 $ 40,153,832

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 241,575 $ - $ 2,422 $ - $ 162,726 $ 406,723
Construction contracts payable 16,713 147,661 - 507,494 1,905 673,773
Accrued wages and benefits 224,236 - 2,162 - - 226,398
Interest payable 73,235 - - - - 73,235
Matured debt principal payable 885,000 - - - - 885,000
Retainage payable - - - 173,080 59,308 232,388
Due to other funds - - - - 92,547 92,547
Due to other government units 38,737 - - - - 38,737
Deposits payable 19,350 - - - - 19,350
Unearned revenue 4,745 - - - 11,247 15,992

Total liabilities 1,503,591 147,661 4,584 680,574 327,733 2,664,143

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - unavailable revenue 257,634 - - 62,500 - 320,134

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonspendable 29,826 - - - - 29,826
Restricted 943,286 332,018 - - 3,296,861 4,572,165
Committed 1,403,370 - 6,941,093 - 154,450 8,498,913
Assigned 1,232,035 924,724 - 9,899,847 29,823 12,086,429
Unassigned 11,983,669 - - - (1,447) 11,982,222

Total fund balances (deficits) 15,592,186 1,256,742 6,941,093 9,899,847 3,479,687 37,169,555

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances
(deficits) $ 17,353,411 $ 1,404,403 $ 6,945,677 $ 10,642,921 $ 3,807,420 $ 40,153,832

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds $ 37,169,555

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Sales tax audit revenues, CFD fee-in-lieu taxes, court receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts),
intergovernmental revenues, and other miscellaneous revenues are deferred in the governmental fund
financial statements but recognized when earned in the Statement of Activities when they are available to
finance current resources. 320,134

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets 83,179,271
Accumulated depreciation (29,355,901)

Capital assets used in governmental activities 53,823,370

Net pension/OPEB assets held in trust for future benefits are not available for City operations and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 148,966

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB and deferred charges on debt
refundings are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred charges on debt refunding 344,387
Deferred outflows related to pensions/OPEB 3,072,647
Deferred inflows related to pensions/OPEB (878,587)

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds.
The assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the internal
service fund are included in governmental activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Net position 273,379
Amount attributable to the business-type activities (31,433)

 Long term liabilities, including bonds payable and the net pension/OPEB liability, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Revenue bonds (6,665,000)
Installment purchase payable (78,943)
Compensated absences (580,632)
Capital leases (644,778)
Net pension/OPEB liability (12,608,933)

Net position of governmental activities $ 73,664,132

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

General Streets
Transportation

Sales Tax
Capital

Improvements
Nonmajor

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues
Taxes

Sales taxes $ 21,475,760 $ - $ 2,804,005 $ - $ - $ 24,279,765
Franchise taxes 809,673 - - - - 809,673
In lieu taxes 502,647 - - - 168,089 670,736

Intergovernmental 4,280,447 1,154,143 - 427,761 244,881 6,107,232
Fines and forfeitures 196,524 - - - - 196,524
Licenses and permits 311,569 - - - - 311,569
Charges for services 671,406 - - - 956 672,362
Contributions - - - 50,000 25,029 75,029
Impact fees - - - - 478,597 478,597
Investment earnings 269,421 34,042 135,028 278,270 86,287 803,048
Other revenues 167,679 - - - - 167,679

Total revenues 28,685,126 1,188,185 2,939,033 756,031 1,003,839 34,572,214

Expenditures
Current

General government 2,586,061 - - - 5,067 2,591,128
Public safety 7,354,475 - - - 29,744 7,384,219
Public works and streets 2,603,594 924,656 42,018 - - 3,570,268
Culture and recreation 2,264,584 - - - 12,714 2,277,298
Economic development 2,611,622 - - - - 2,611,622
Health and welfare 602,680 - - - - 602,680
Public transportation 192,544 - - - - 192,544
Housing 65,559 - - - 215,062 280,621

Debt service
Principal retirement 1,153,970 - - - - 1,153,970
Interest and fiscal charges 187,221 - - - - 187,221

Capital outlay 686,387 - - 7,377,126 1,047,491 9,111,004

Total expenditures 20,308,697 924,656 42,018 7,377,126 1,310,078 29,962,575

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures 8,376,429 263,529 2,897,015 (6,621,095) (306,239) 4,609,639

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 18,564 190,760 - 2,929,739 49,348 3,188,411
Transfers out (6,595,311) - - (21,384) (46,236) (6,662,931)
Issuance of capital lease 257,392 - - - - 257,392
Issuance of installment purchase 115,720 - - - - 115,720
Proceeds from sale of assets 42,873 - - - - 42,873

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,160,762) 190,760 - 2,908,355 3,112 (3,058,535)

Net change in fund balances 2,215,667 454,289 2,897,015 (3,712,740) (303,127) 1,551,104

Fund balances - beginning of year 13,376,519 802,453 4,044,078 13,612,587 3,782,814 35,618,451

Fund balances - end of year $ 15,592,186 $ 1,256,742 $ 6,941,093 $ 9,899,847 $ 3,479,687 $ 37,169,555

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1,551,104

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets 8,847,196
Less: Current year depreciation (2,584,535)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. capital contributions) is to
increase net position. 735,000

Revenues will be collected subsequent to year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current
period's expenditures, and therefore are deferred inflows of resources in governmental funds.

Unavailable revenue - June 30, 2019 (361,945)
Unavailable revenue - June 30, 2020 320,134

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued,
whereas these amounts are amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Principal payments on revenue bonds 885,000
Issuance of capital lease (257,392)
Issuance of installment purchase (115,720)
Amortization on deferred amount on refunding (49,198)
Principal payments on installment purchase 36,777
Principal payments on capital lease 232,193

Governmental funds report City pension/OPEB contributions as expenditures when made. However, in the
Statement of Activities, pension/OPEB expense is the cost of benefits earned, adjusted for member
contributions, the recognition of changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions/OPEB, and the investment experience. 

Pension/OPEB expense 1,946,689
Pension/OPEB contributions (2,374,649)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Increase in compensated absences (101,107)

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of information technology activities to
individual funds.  The net revenue of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities in
the Statement of Activities. 97,612

Change in net position - governmental activities $ 8,807,159

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET

AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Original Final Actual
Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes

Sales taxes $ 22,986,400 $ 22,986,400 $ 21,475,760 $ (1,510,640)
Franchise taxes 825,100 825,100 809,673 (15,427)
In lieu taxes 496,500 496,500 502,647 6,147

Intergovernmental 3,021,900 3,021,900 4,280,447 1,258,547
Fines and forfeitures 221,060 221,060 196,524 (24,536)
Licenses and permits 399,750 399,750 311,569 (88,181)
Charges for services 681,600 681,600 671,406 (10,194)
Contributions 625,000 625,000 - (625,000)
Investment earnings 131,410 131,410 269,421 138,011
Other revenues 98,000 98,000 167,679 69,679

Total revenues 29,486,720 29,486,720 28,685,126 (801,594)

Budgetary expenditures
City Council 75,970 75,970 61,916 14,054
City Manager 3,602,560 3,596,540 3,290,584 305,956
Human Resources 302,850 302,850 257,735 45,115
Financial Services 1,162,060 1,179,560 1,072,175 107,385
City Attorney 763,240 735,530 646,088 89,442
City Clerk 267,860 267,860 266,079 1,781
Parks and Recreation 763,240 759,240 599,068 160,172
General Services 1,881,006 1,881,006 1,717,418 163,588
Community Development 1,501,210 1,606,210 1,448,895 157,315
Public Works 3,878,085 3,644,444 3,451,201 193,243
Economic Development 256,030 253,830 220,817 33,013
Police 5,522,757 5,521,792 5,222,984 298,808
Municipal Court 626,180 631,464 404,403 227,061
Indirect costs 653,880 653,880 603,500 50,380
Contingency 2,300,000 1,706,700 - 1,706,700
Debt service 1,036,750 1,036,750 1,034,470 2,280

Total expenditures 24,593,678 23,853,626 20,297,333 3,556,293

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 4,893,042 5,633,094 8,387,793 2,754,699

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - 18,564 18,564
Transfers out (6,086,173) (6,086,173) (6,595,311) (509,138)
Sale of capital assets 11,200 11,200 42,873 31,673

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,074,973) (6,074,973) (6,533,874) (458,901)

Add back equipment replacement reserve 386,950 386,950 361,748 (25,202)

Net change in fund balance (794,981) (54,929) 2,215,667 2,270,596

Fund balance - beginning of year 11,700,060 11,700,060 13,376,519 1,676,459

Fund balance - end of year $ 10,905,079 $ 11,645,131 $ 15,592,186 $ 3,947,055

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET

AND ACTUAL
STREETS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Original and
Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 1,001,830 $ 1,154,143 $ 152,313
Investment earnings 13,430 34,042 20,612

Total revenues 1,015,260 1,188,185 172,925

Expenditures
Current

Public works and streets 1,206,020 924,656 281,364

Total expenditures 1,206,020 924,656 281,364

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (190,760) 263,529 454,289

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 190,760 190,760 -

Net change in fund balance - 454,289 454,289

Fund balance - beginning of year 635,012 802,453 167,441

Fund balance - end of year $ 635,012 $ 1,256,742 $ 621,730

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET

AND ACTUAL
TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Original Final Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget

Revenues
Sales taxes $ 3,028,700 $ 3,028,700 $ 2,804,005 $ (224,695)
Investment earnings 27,800 27,800 135,028 107,228

Total revenues 3,056,500 3,056,500 2,939,033 (117,467)

Expenditures
Current

Public works and streets 93,870 98,620 42,018 56,602

Total expenditures 93,870 98,620 42,018 56,602

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 2,962,630 2,957,880 2,897,015 (60,865)

Fund balance - beginning of year 4,037,246 4,037,246 4,044,078 6,832

Fund balance - end of year $ 6,999,876 $ 6,995,126 $ 6,941,093 $ (54,033)

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Business-Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Wastewater
Enterprise Fund

Internal Service
Fund

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments $ 21,691,329 $ 742,970
Restricted assets 16,750 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles

Accounts 564,281 -
Accrued interest 43,138 1,482

Prepaid items 140 257

Total current assets 22,315,638 744,709

Noncurrent assets
Net pension/OPEB asset 1,854 1,062
Capital assets

Nondepreciable 11,539,902 -
Depreciable (net) 92,076,882 137,718

Total noncurrent assets 103,618,638 138,780

Total assets 125,934,276 883,489

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions/OPEB 172,406 78,383
Deferred charges on debt refunding 107,928 -

Total deferred outflows of resources 280,334 78,383

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 143,669 32,915
Construction contracts payable 589,817 -
Accrued wages and benefits 29,050 15,022
Interest payable 3,098,888 -
Matured debt principal payable 1,400,000 -
Compensated absences payable, current 47,691 21,029
Retainage payable 185,833 -
Bonds payable, current 1,330,000 -
Capital appreciation bond interest, current 2,980,000 -
Capital lease payable, current 6,393 -
Deposits payable 16,750 -
Unearned revenue 76,679 -

Total current liabilities 9,904,770 68,966

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable 20,595 21,778
Capital appreciation bond interest 7,293,769 -
Bonds payable 12,486,499 -
Capital leases payable 21,628 -
Net pension/OPEB liability 966,837 553,676

Total noncurrent liabilities 20,789,328 575,454

Total liabilities 30,694,098 644,420

Deferred inflows related to pensions/OPEB 76,960 44,073

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 87,704,542 137,718
Restricted for net pension/OPEB asset 1,854 1,062
Unrestricted 7,737,156 134,599

Total net position 95,443,552 $ 273,379

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of the activity between the internal
service fund and the enterprise fund over time 31,433

Net position of business-type activities (page 31) $ 95,474,985

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business-Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Wastewater
Enterprise Fund

Internal Service
Fund

Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 6,042,785 $ 1,567,343
Other revenues 13,788 622

Total operating revenues 6,056,573 1,567,965

Operating Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 1,374,787 716,025
Supplies and other 2,068,362 708,073
Depreciation 3,575,002 79,130

Total operating expenses 7,018,151 1,503,228

Operating income (loss) (961,578) 64,737

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings 435,820 12,870
Interest expense (1,308,831) -

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (873,011) 12,870

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (1,834,589) 77,607

Capital contributions - capacity fees 997,558 -
Capital contributions - developer-contributed sewer lines 77,430 -
Transfers in 3,447,000 27,520

Change in net position (a) 2,687,399 105,127

Net position, beginning of year 92,756,153 168,252

Net position, end of year $ 95,443,552 $ 273,379

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity between the internal service fund and the
enterprise fund (b) 7,515

Changes in net position of business-type activities (a) - (b) (page 32) $ 2,694,914

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business-Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Wastewater
Enterprise

Fund
Internal Service

Fund

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers $ 6,060,963 $ 503
Receipts from other funds for goods and services provided 34,159 1,566,840
Receipt of customer deposits 9,000 -
Other receipts - 622
Payments to suppliers and service providers (1,368,666) (573,121)
Payments for employee wages and benefits (1,401,118) (595,644)
Payments to other funds for services provided (787,036) (116,910)
Return of customer deposits (9,000) -

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 2,538,302 282,290

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers from other funds 3,447,000 27,520

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capacity fees 997,558 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,257,466) (54,762)
Principal paid on capital debt (4,003,942) -
Interest paid on capital debt (408,440) -

 Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (7,672,290) (54,762)

 Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on investments 436,015 12,561

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,250,973) 267,609

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year (including $16,750 for Wastewater Fund reported in restricted accounts) 22,959,052 475,361

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year (including $16,750 for Wastewater Fund reported in restricted accounts) $ 21,708,079 $ 742,970

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Operating income (loss) $ (961,578) $ 64,737
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation expense 3,575,002 79,130
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable, net 35,024 -
Prepaid items (140) 7,203
Net pension/OPEB asset 717 132
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB 38,496 28,503
Accounts payable (87,200) 10,839
Accrued wages and benefits 4,689 5,416
Unearned revenue 3,525 -
Compensated absences payable (568) 5,903
Net pension/OPEB liability (22,257) 94,136
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB (47,408) (13,709)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 2,538,302 $ 282,290

Noncash investing, capital, and noncapital financing activities
Amortization of bond premiums $ (86,083) $ -
Amortization of deferred amounts on refunding 17,988 -
Amortization of capital appreciation bonds 994,486 -
Contributions of capital assets 77,430 -
Capital lease inception 31,963 -

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Sedona, Arizona have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. A summary of the City's more significant accounting policies follows.

A. Reporting entity

The City was incorporated on January 4, 1998, under the provisions of Article 13, Sections 1 through 6, of the Constitution of
Arizona and Title 9 of the Arizona Revised Statutes. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The
accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s
operations, even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds
of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.  The City has no discretely presented
component units.

The City has blended the following entities into its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report:

The Sedona Wastewater Municipal Property Corporation’s (SWMPC) board of directors consists of three members which
are appointed by the Sedona City Council. The SWMPC, which is a nonprofit corporation incorporated under the laws of the
State of Arizona, was formed for the purpose of assisting the City in obtaining financing for various projects of the City. The
City has a “moral obligation” for the repayment of the SWMPC bonds. All related receivables and payables between the City
and the SWMPC have been eliminated. The SWMPC has a June 30 year-end and is reported and combined with the financial
statements of the Wastewater Fund, an enterprise fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the SWMPC.

The Fairfield and Summit II Community Facilities Districts (Districts) were formed for the purposes of assisting the City
with the financing and providing general infrastructure and capital assets within the District boundaries. The City Council
serves as the board of directors for the Districts. As special purpose districts and separate political subdivisions under the
Arizona Constitution, the Districts are authorized to levy ad valorem tax on the assessed value of all real and personal property
in the district and issue bonds independently of the City. Property owners in the designated areas are assessed a special tax for
the costs of operating the Districts, as defined in the individual development agreements. The operational responsibility for the
Districts rests with the management of the City.  The Districts have June 30 year-ends.   For financial reporting purposes,
transactions of the Districts are combined and reported within the governmental fund financial statements. Separate financial
statements are not issued for the Districts.

B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial statements. The government-wide
statements focus on the City as a whole, while the fund financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the information’s
usefulness. 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information
on all activities of the primary government and its component units. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements except for interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the consolidation.  Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.  
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

These statements distinguish between the City's governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which are
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges to external parties.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect expenses
are allocated to functions and segments based on the benefits received.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds, including blended component units.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City, except those
accounted for in another fund. 

The Streets Fund accounts for the City’s streets maintenance costs associated with road rehabilitation and pavement
preservation. Funding is provided by the City’s portion of state shared highway user revenue fund (HURF) and support from the
General Fund. The state shared HURF is primarily funded with tax on gasoline and other fuels but also includes other
transportation related fees.

The Transportation Sales Tax Fund accounts for the City's half-cent sales tax dedicated to transportation projects and related
administrative and operational costs. The tax is currently in effect for 10 years, expiring February 29, 2028.

The Capital Improvements Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

The Wastewater Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s wastewater collection and treatment facilities and associated
financing. 

The City also reports the following fund types: 

The internal service fund accounts for information technology services provided to the City’s departments on a cost-
reimbursement basis. 
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at
year end are reported as due from/to other funds. Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources
between funds reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements,
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount
is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise fund) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in
the business-type activities column. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only
the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of accounting.
Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources.
The basis of accounting indicates the timing of recognition in the financial statements of various kinds of transactions or events.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they have been earned and they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting, except expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recorded only when
payment is due. However, since debt service resources are provided during the current year for payment of long-term principal
and interest due early in the following year, the expenditures and related liabilities have been recognized in the General Fund.
General capital asset acquisitions, including entering into contracts giving the City the right to use leased assets,   are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.  Issuances of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are
reported as other financing sources. 

Taxes, intergovernmental grants and aid, charges for services, court fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements
are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received
during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-driven
grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements
have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60
days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
City. 
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, cash and investments held by the
State Treasurer, deposits in other types of accounts or cash management pools that have the general characteristic of demand
deposit accounts, and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The City Council-approved investment policy authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the U. S. Government and are
guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury; certificates of deposit or other deposits in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
insured banks; repurchase agreements with a maximum maturity of 180 days; and the Local Government Investment Pools
managed by the Arizona State Treasurer. All investments are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as
adjustments to interest earnings. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction at
year end. The reported value of the state treasurer’s pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

2. Restricted Cash and Investments

The City reports restricted cash and investments in the General Fund and Wastewater Fund for customer deposits.

3. Receivables

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

4. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when
consumed rather than when purchased.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets are tangible and intangible assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), and are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  As prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 for phase II
governments, only infrastructure assets acquired subsequent to 1980 were included in the government-wide financial
statements.

As the City constructs or acquires capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at
historical cost.  The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are amounts spent in relation to capital
assets that do not increase the asset's capacity or efficiency or increase its estimated useful life.  Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.  Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with
equivalent service potential on the date of the donation.  Intangible assets follow the same capitalization policies as tangible
capital assets and are reported with tangible assets in the appropriate capital asset class.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed prior to July 1, 2017.  After the implementation of GASB Statement No. 89, the City no longer
records interest incurred during the construction phase of business-type activities capital assets as part of the capitalized asset
value.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other tangible and intangible property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure of the City are depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Capital Asset Classes
Useful Life

(Years)

Buildings 30 Years
Improvements Other than Buildings 6 to 50 Years
Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Infrastructure 20 to 50 Years
Wastewater Plant 6 to 50 Years
Wastewater Lines 6 to 50 Years
Machinery, Equipment, and Vehicles 3 to 6 Years
Public Art 30 Years

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. Deferred
outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. They
are the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position, and deferred amounts related to
pension and other post employment benefits (OPEB). The deferred charge on refunding resulted from the difference between
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt. The deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB relate to differences between estimated
and actual investment earnings, changes in actuarial assumptions, and other pension and OPEB related changes.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred
inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. Unavailable
revenue is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from the
following sources: sales taxes, court fines, grant reimbursements received after the period of availability, and capital
participation agreements. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available. In the government-wide financial statements, the City reports deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB.

7. Compensated Absences

For governmental funds, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position and as expenses in the
government-wide statement of activities. No expenditures are reported for these amounts in the governmental fund financial
statements unless they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Vested or accumulated
vacation in the proprietary fund is recorded as an expense and a liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to the employees.  
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 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

7. Compensated Absences (Continued)

The liability of compensated absences includes salary related benefits, where applicable.

Compensated absences are paid from various funds in the same proportion that those funds pay payroll costs.  During fiscal
year 2020, the City paid for compensated absences as follows: 84% from the General Fund, 12% from major funds, and 4%
from other funds. 

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary type statement of net position.
Bond premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
bond premium. Bond issuance costs and fiscal charges are expensed.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, as well as bond issuance costs and fiscal
charges, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs and fiscal charges, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net pension and other post employment benefits (OPEB) assets and liabilities, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB and pension and OPEB expense, information
about the plans’ fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

10. Net Position

For government-wide reporting as well as in proprietary funds, the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is called net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

 Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and reduced by

outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement

of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this component of net position.

 Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those

assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed on asset use either by external parties or by law through

constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

 Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of

resources that does not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. 
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 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

10. Net Position (Continued)

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted net position is applied.

11. Fund Balance Classifications

In governmental fund types, the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources is called “fund balance.” Fund balances of the governmental funds are reported separately within
classifications based on a hierarchy of the constraints placed on the use of those resources. The classifications are based on the
relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The classifications are nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications.

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form such as inventories, advances to other funds, other long-term notes receivable, and prepaid items, or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions on their usage by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations. Restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of the
resource provider. 

Committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations approved by the City Council through ordinance, which is the highest
level of decision-making authority within the City. Only the City Council can remove or change the constraints placed on
committed fund balances through adoption of another ordinance to remove or revise the limitation. Fund balances must be
committed before the end of the fiscal year.

Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted
nor committed. By adopted policy, the City Council has authorized the City Manager to make assignments of resources for
specific purposes. The City Council may also assign fund balance, as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap
between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.  

The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable amounts not reported
in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund balances of the other governmental funds are reported as unassigned.

As previously mentioned, sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted 
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 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

11. Fund Balance Classifications (Continued)

fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed
by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.  

The City has also established a fund balance policy as noted below:

 The unassigned fund balance target for the General Fund shall be 30% of the total adopted budgeted operating

expenditures of the Fund.

 The fund balance range for the Streets Fund (excluding any other committed or assigned fund balances for specific

purposes) shall be not less than 0% and not more than 10% of the total budgeted expenditures of the Fund.

 The budgetary fund balance range for the Wastewater Fund, including maintenance, operations, and administration, shall

be not less than 25% (90 days) and not more than 33.3% (120 days) of the total budgeted operating expenses of the Fund.

This shall be in addition to a separate budgetary fund balance with a target equal to the average of one year of remaining

enterprise fund debt service repayment requirements for any debt issuances that do not have specified reserve requirements

and are not covered by bond insurance, as well as a separate budgetary fund balance with a target of the higher of the next

fiscal year’s “pay-as-you-go” capital obligations or the average of the next five years “pay-as-you-go” capital obligations

based on the City’s adopted Capital Improvement Plan. 

 The Capital Improvements Fund, coupled with estimated revenues for the ensuing fiscal year, must be sufficient to fund the

"pay-as-you-go" capital fund obligations for the next fiscal year based on the City’s adopted Capital Improvement Plan.

 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes, the City Manager submits a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following July 1 to the City Council. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them for the upcoming year.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment.

3. Prior to the third Monday in August, the expenditure limitation for the City is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution. To ensure compliance with the expenditure limitation, a uniform expenditure report must be filed with the State
each year. This report, issued under a separate cover, reconciles total City expenditures from the audited financial
statements to total expenditures for reporting in accordance with the State’s uniform expenditure reporting system (A.R.S.
§41-1279.07).

4. Expenditures may not legally exceed the expenditure limitation, described above, of all fund types as a whole. For
management purposes, the City adopts a budget by department for the General Fund and in total by fund for other funds,
which is the legal level of budgetary control for these funds. The City Manager may at any time transfer any unencumbered
appropriation balance or portion thereof between a department or activity.
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 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General, Special
Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds on essentially the same modified accrual basis of accounting used to record actual
revenues and expenditures.

The City is subject to the State of Arizona’s spending limitation law for cities and towns. This law does not permit the City to
spend more than budgeted revenues plus the carryover unrestricted cash balance from the prior fiscal year. The limitation is
applied to the total of the combined funds. The City complied with this law during the year.

 3. Deposits and Investments

Arizona Revised Statutes authorize the City to invest public monies in the State Treasurer’s local government investment pools,
the County Treasurer’s investment pool, obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations of the State and
certain local government subdivisions, interest-bearing savings accounts and certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase
agreements, certain obligations of U.S. corporations, and certain other securities. The statutes do not include any requirements
for credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, or foreign currency risk for the City’s
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure the City’s deposits may not be
returned to the City. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year-end, the carrying amount of the
City’s deposits was $2,065,669 and the bank balance was $2,060,518. At year-end, $750,000 of the City’s deposits was covered
by federal depository insurance and the remaining $1,310,518 was collateralized by the Arizona State Treasurer's pooled
collateral program.

Total cash and investments at fair value as reported at June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Deposits
Cash on hand $ 11,497
Cash in bank 2,065,669

Investments
State Treasurer’s investment pool 28,651,644
Negotiable certificates of deposit 4,199,000
Money market funds 5,470,857
U.S. agency securities 18,174,298

Total deposits and investments 58,572,965

Restricted assets (19,750)

Total unrestricted deposits and investments $ 58,553,215

Investments - The State Investment Board provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools, and the Local Government
Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides consultation and advice to the Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s
position in the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The shares are not identified with specific
investments and are not subject to custodial credit risk. All other investments of the City are uninsured and unregistered with
the securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name.
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 3. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with the anticipated cash requirements for ongoing
operations and investing funds primarily in shorter-term securities or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity
of the portfolio. 

Investment maturities (in years)

Amount Less than 1 1 - 3 4-5

U.S. agency securities $ 18,174,298 $ 2,027,032 $ 14,144,168 $ 2,003,098
Money market funds 5,470,857 5,470,857 - $ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 4,199,000 1,482,000 2,470,000 247,000
State Treasurer’s investment pools 28,651,644 19,273,968 9,377,676 $ -

Total investments $ 56,495,799 $ 28,253,857 $ 25,991,844 $ 2,250,098

Credit Risk – The City limits its investments to the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, U.S. agency securities, and negotiable
certificates of deposit.  The City’s investment rating based on investment type is shown below:

Rating Rating Agency Fair Value

U.S. agency securities AA+ Moody's $ 18,174,298
Money market funds AAAm S&P 5,470,857
Negotiable certificates of deposit N/R N/R 4,199,000
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 5 AAAf/S1+ S&P 19,238,494
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 7 N/R N/R 35,474
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 500 N/R N/R 9,377,676

$ 56,495,799

Concentration of Credit Risk – The City policy allows a maximum of 5% of the fair value of the portfolio be invested in debt
issued by any single entity. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in debt backed by the United States
Treasury. See table summarizing the City’s investment percentages:

Amount

Percent of
City

Investments

U.S. agency securities $ 18,174,298 %32.17
Money market funds 5,470,857 %9.68
Negotiable certificates of deposit 4,199,000 %7.43
State Treasurer’s investment pools 28,651,644 %50.72

Total investments $ 56,495,799 %100.00

Fair Value Measurements. The City uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and
liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. Investments valued using the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent)
are City investments in the Arizona State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (LGIP) and unlike more traditional investments,
generally do not have readily obtainable fair values.  Investments valued at NAV utilized net asset values as provided by State
of Arizona Treasurer’s Office at June 30, 2020. 
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It is the investment strategy of the Arizona State Treasurer to maintain safety in principal, maintain liquidity to meet cash flow
needs, and provide competitive investment returns.  LGIP Pool 5 and LGIP Pool 7 investments can be redeemed on any
business day while and LGIP Pool 500 can only be redeemed on the first business day of each month.  There are no unfunded
commitments, no circumstances in which otherwise redeemable investments might not be redeemable, and no other significant
restrictions at the measurement date on the ability to sell investments.  The portfolio manager strives to maintain a NAV of
$1.00 for Pools 5 and 7, but for Pool 500 the NAV is a floating price and will fluctuate from its $1 target based on factors such
as pool cash flows and market activity.   

The City follows an accounting standard that defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, establishes a
fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with this standard, the City has categorized its investments, based on the priority of the
inputs to the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level
III). If the inputs used to measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities recorded on the statement of net position are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level I – Financial assets and liabilities are valued using inputs that are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets accessible at
the measurement date of identical financial assets and liabilities. The inputs include those traded on an active exchange, such as
the New York Stock Exchange, as well as U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government and agency mortgage-backed securities
that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets. 

Level II – Financial assets and liabilities are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs that are observable,
either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term through corroboration with observable market data. 

Level III – Financial assets and liabilities are valued using pricing inputs which are unobservable for the asset, inputs that
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset.

The City’s investments were measured as follows at June 30, 2020:

Fair Value Measurements Using

June 30, 2020

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets 

(Level I)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs 

(Level II)

Significant
Observable

Inputs 
(Level III)

Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt Securities

U.S. agency securities $ 18,174,298 $ - $ 18,174,298 $ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 4,199,000 - 4,199,000 -

Total investments by fair value level 22,373,298 $ - $ 22,373,298 $ -

Investments Measured at Fair Value
State Treasurer’s Investment Pools 28,651,644

Total investments measured at fair value 51,024,942

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
Money market funds 5,470,857

Total investments $ 56,495,799
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Investments in the State Treasurer's investment pools are valued at the pool's share price multiplied by the number of shares the
City held.  The fair value of a participant's position in the pools approximates the value of the participant's pool shares.  The
State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer's investment pools.  Other investments are categorized by
method of fair value measurement into three levels: level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, level 2 -
significant other observable inputs, and level 3 - significant unobservable inputs.  All of the City's investments fall in level 2 and
are valued using market quotes from the safekeeping agent.

 4. Receivables

Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also report unearned revenue in connection with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred
inflows of resources and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

General Fund
Court fines receivable $ 180,401 $ -
Sales tax receivable 74,306 -
Federal reimbursement receivables 2,927 -
Miscellaneous unearned fees - 4,745

Capital Improvements Fund
Miscellaneous receivable 62,500 -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Grant advances prior to meeting all

eligibility requirements - 11,247

Governmental funds balance sheet total $ 320,134 $ 15,992

Approximately $135,000 of the court fines receivable reported in the General Fund is not expected to be collected within the
next year.  Also, based on the payment schedule for the Capital Improvements Fund receivable, $25,000 of the amount reported
is not expected to be collected within the next year.

54

Page 89



CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 5. Capital Assets

A. Governmental Activities

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Balance as of
June 30, 2019 Additions Deductions

Balance as of
June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 8,790,846 $ 894,284 $ - $ 9,685,130
Construction in progress 4,461,763 7,275,096 (2,980,948) 8,755,911

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 13,252,609 8,169,380 (2,980,948) 18,441,041

Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 10,475,712 846,772 - 11,322,484
Building and improvements 9,312,429 95,404 - 9,407,833
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 4,694,078 525,402 (43,974) 5,175,506
Infrastructure 36,718,627 2,980,948 - 39,699,575

Total capital assets, being depreciated 61,200,846 4,448,526 (43,974) 65,605,398

Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements (2,886,940) (293,272) - (3,180,212)
Building and improvements (4,278,407) (387,832) - (4,666,239)
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (3,510,139) (447,496) 43,974 (3,913,661)
Infrastructure (16,790,174) (1,535,065) - (18,325,239)

Total accumulated depreciation (27,465,660) (2,663,665) 43,974 (30,085,351)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 33,735,186 1,784,861 - 35,520,047

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 46,987,795 $ 9,954,241 $ (2,980,948) $ 53,961,088

B. Business-Type Activities

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Balance as of
June 30, 2019 Additions Deductions

Balance as of
June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 11,159,413 $ - $ - $ 11,159,413
Construction in progress 1,425,211 3,611,497 (4,656,219) 380,489

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 12,584,624 3,611,497 (4,656,219) 11,539,902

Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 36,755 14,945 - 51,700
Wastewater system 139,027,648 4,811,100 - 143,838,748
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 5,443,805 613,454 (25,579) 6,031,680

Total capital assets, being depreciated 144,508,208 5,439,499 (25,579) 149,922,128

Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements (737) (849) - (1,586)
Wastewater system (49,224,792) (3,368,901) - (52,593,693)
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (5,070,294) (205,252) 25,579 (5,249,967)

Total accumulated depreciation (54,295,823) (3,575,002) 25,579 (57,845,246)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 90,212,385 1,864,497 - 92,076,882

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 102,797,009 $ 5,475,994 $ (4,656,219) $ 103,616,784
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 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

C. Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

General government $ 270,000
Public safety 339,832
Public works and streets 1,802,938
Culture and recreation 171,765
Internal service fund 79,130

Total governmental activities
depreciation expense $ 2,663,665

Business-type Activities

Wastewater $ 3,575,002

 6. Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects at June 30, 2020. At fiscal year end, the City’s commitments with contractors were as
follows:

                                      Project Spent-to-date
Remaining

Commitment

Governmental activities
Sunset Drive Crossing Drainage $ 115,070 $ 125,368
Thunder Mountain Road Drainage 1,453,199 1,309,567
Uptown Roadway Improvements 5,096,899 41,364
Portal Lane/Ranger Road Connection 69,280 42,730
Uptown Lighting Projects 2,500 54,500
Police Department Radio Signal Project 229,980 4,939
Police Facility Expansion 118,339 107,852
Shooting Range Improvements 178,787 189,507
Pedestrian Crossing at Tlaquepaque 253,065 299,499
Forest Road Connection 204,603 386,680

Total governmental activities $ 7,721,722 $ 2,562,006

                                      Project Spent to Date
Remaining

Commitment

Business-type activities
State Route 179 Sewer Main Replacement $ 380,489 $ 1,754,335

Total business-type activities $ 380,489 $ 1,754,335

 7. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The City pools cash and investments for cash management purposes and improved performance.  At June 30, 2020, the Grants
& Donations Fund, a nonmajor governmental fund, had a deficit balance of $92,547 that represents internal borrowing of
pooled assets.  An interfund receivable and payable has been recorded between the Grants & Donations Fund and the General
Fund to reflect this internal borrowing.  Due to its short-term nature, the interfund receivable and payable have been labeled as
due to/from other funds in the fund financial statements.
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 7. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Transfers from

Transfers to General Fund

Capital
Improvements

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

General Fund $ - $ - $ 18,564 $ 18,564
Streets Fund 190,760 - - 190,760
Capital Improvements Fund 2,902,067 - 27,672 2,929,739
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 27,964 21,384 - 49,348
Wastewater Fund 3,447,000 - - 3,447,000
Internal Service Fund 27,520 - - 27,520

Totals $ 6,595,311 $ 21,384 $ 46,236 $ 6,662,931

During the year, transfers are used to (1) move General Fund resources assigned each year to support the Capital Improvements
Fund ($1,500,000), (2) move General Fund resources to provide an annual subsidy to the Wastewater Fund ($3,447,000) and
the Streets Fund ($190,760), (3) fund the Art in Public Places Fund, a nonmajor governmental fund, with 1% of construction
projects funded with unrestricted monies ($21,384), and (4) move paid parking revenues to the Internal Service Fund for
information technology costs associated with the paid parking program ($27,520). 

Further, during the year ended June 30, 2020, the City made the following one-time transfers: 

 A transfer of surplus balances from the General Fund to the Capital Improvements Fund ($384,319) and a transfer of

paid parking revenues pledged for improvements in Uptown to cover capital project costs ($1,017,748). 

 Close out of miscellaneous accounts in the nonmajor governmental funds. 

 8. Obligations Under Installment Purchase Contracts

The City has acquired holiday decorations under a contract agreement at a total purchase price of $115,720. The assets acquired
are as follows:

Governmental
activities

Holiday decorations $ 115,720
Less: accumulated depreciation (19,603)

Carrying Value $ 96,117

The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s installment purchase contracts payable at
June 30, 2020:

Governmental Activites

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2021 $ 38,545 $ 3,297 $ 41,842
2022 40,398 1,445 41,843

Total $ 78,943 $ 4,742 $ 83,685
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 9. Obligations Under Capital Leases

The City has acquired vehicles and building improvements under the provisions of various long-term lease agreements
classified as capital leases for accounting purposes because they provide for a bargain purchase option or a transfer of
ownership by the end of the lease term.

The following assets were acquired through capital leases:

Governmental
Activities

Business
Activities Totals

Motor vehicles $ 990,467 $ 35,795 $ 1,026,261

Building improvements 373,498 - 373,498

Less: accumulated depreciation (736,662) (5,994) (742,656)

Carrying Value $ 627,303 $ 29,801 $ 657,103

Future principal and interest payments due on capital leases are as follows:

Year ending June 30

Governmental
Activities

Business
Activities Totals

2021 $ 168,102 $ 7,436 $ 175,538

2022 96,511 7,436 103,948

2023 97,250 7,436 104,686

2024 98,003 7,436 105,439

2025 60,726 2,851 63,577

2026 to 2030 206,325 - 206,325

2031 to 2032 39,110 - 39,110

Total minimum payments 766,027 32,595 798,623

Less: Amount representing interest (121,250) (4,575) (125,824)

Present value of net minimum payments $ 644,778 $ 28,021 $ 672,799
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 10. Bonds Payable

The following is a list of revenue obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2020.

Description
Original Issue

Amount Interest rate Maturity date Amount

Governmental activities
Revenue bonds

Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Second
Series 2015 $ 8,030,000 1.94% 7/1/21-27 $ 6,665,000

Business-type activities
Revenue bonds

Excise Tax Revenue Bonds Series 1998 41,035,000 5.2-5.24% 7/1/21-24 4,905,000

Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 8,395,000 4.5% 7/1/25-26 8,395,000

Total business-type activities revenue bonds 49,430,000 13,300,000

Total revenue bonds $57,460,000 $ 19,965,000

The City has pledged future excise taxes to repay the excise tax revenue obligations as listed above. Proceeds of the bonds were
used for various construction improvements and to refund and refinance various bonds and certificates of participation. The
bonds are payable solely from excise taxes. Maturity dates are from July 1, 2020 to July 1, 2027. The future excise tax revenues
pledged, which include sales tax, franchise tax, vehicle license fees, unrestricted fines and forfeitures and permits, will repay
$19,965,000 in excise tax revenue refunding bonds, plus $14,943,635 of interest. Total principal and interest payments on the
bonds are expected to require less than 40% of pledged revenues. Pledged revenue for the current year was $25,742,670. In the
current year, total principal paid was $2,285,000 and interest paid was $3,434,245.

Debt service requirements on bonds payable at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 $ 900,000 $ 129,301 $ 1,330,000 $ 3,357,775
2022 920,000 111,841 1,255,000 3,432,775
2023 935,000 93,993 1,190,000 3,497,775
2024 945,000 75,854 1,130,000 3,557,775
2025 970,000 57,521 4,105,000 377,775
2026-2027 1,995,000 58,200 4,290,000 193,050

Totals $ 6,665,000 $ 526,710 $ 13,300,000 $ 14,416,925
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 11. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Due within

one year

Governmental activities
Bonds payable

Revenue bonds $ 7,550,000 $ - $ (885,000) $ 6,665,000 $ 900,000
Other liabilities

Compensated absences 516,429 441,053 (334,043) 623,439 392,256
Installment purchases - 115,720 (36,777) 78,943 38,545
Capital leases 619,579 257,392 (232,193) 644,778 143,767
Net pension/OPEB liability 12,374,248 788,361 - 13,162,609 -

Total other liabilities 13,510,256 1,602,526 (603,013) 14,509,769 574,568

Total governmental activities
long-term obligations $ 21,060,256 $ 1,602,526 $ (1,488,013) $ 21,174,769 $ 1,474,568

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Due within

one year

Business-type activities
Bonds payable and related

interest
Revenue bonds $ 14,700,000 $ - $ (1,400,000) $ 13,300,000 $ 1,330,000
Capital appreciation bond

interest 12,189,283 994,486 (2,910,000) 10,273,769 2,980,000
Premiums 602,582 - (86,083) 516,499 -

Total bonds payable and related
interest 27,491,865 994,486 (4,396,083) 24,090,268 4,310,000

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 68,854 12,876 (13,444) 68,286 47,691
Capital leases - 31,963 (3,942) 28,021 6,393
Net pension/OPEB liability 989,094 - (22,257) 966,837 -

Total other liabilities 1,057,948 44,839 (39,643) 1,063,144 54,084

Total business-type activities
long-term obligations $ 28,549,813 $ 1,039,325 $ (4,435,726) $ 25,153,412 $ 4,364,084
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 12. Fund Balance

The following represents the classifications of the City’s fund balance for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:

General Fund Streets Fund
Transportation
Sales Tax Fund

Capital
Improvements

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

Nonspendable
Prepaid items $ 29,826 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 29,826

Restricted
Streets - 332,018 - - 149,193 481,211
Court improvements 52,286 - - - - 52,286
Criminal case processing 50,901 - - - - 50,901
Police Department programs - - - - 54,937 54,937
Parks capital improvements - - - - 2,536,890 2,536,890
Flood control - - - - 1,767 1,767
Police capital improvements - - - - 37,095 37,095
Summit CFD capital improvements - - - - 390,606 390,606
Fairfield CFD capital improvements - - - - 119,817 119,817
Affordable housing 840,099 - - - - 840,099
Public art - - - - 6,556 6,556

Committed
Affordable housing 1,224,888 - - - - 1,224,888
Court enhancements 178,482 - - - - 178,482
Military Park - - - - 8,401 8,401
Transportation projects - - 6,941,093 - - 6,941,093
Art in public places - - - - 146,049 146,049

Assigned
Budget carryovers 217,000 - - - - 217,000
Streets - 924,724 - - - 924,724
Capital improvements - - - 9,899,847 - 9,899,847
Equipment replacement 1,015,035 - - - - 1,015,035
Employee Programs - - - - 1,811 1,811
Special events - - - - 21,268 21,268
Park improvements - - - - 1,121 1,121
Police Explorers program - - - - 1,935 1,935
Police Department programs - - - - 3,668 3,668
Recreation programs - - - - 20 20

Unassigned
11,983,669 - - - (1,447) 11,982,222

Totals $ 15,592,186 $ 1,256,742 $ 6,941,093 $ 9,899,847 $ 3,479,687 $ 37,169,555

 13. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City’s insurance protection is provided by the Arizona Municipal Risk
Retention Pool (AMRRP), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program
for approximately 73 members. The limit for basic coverage is for $2,000,000 per occurrence on a claims-made basis with a
$6,000,000 annual aggregate limit. Excess coverage is for an additional $8,000,000 per occurrence on a follow form, claims-
made basis. No significant insurance coverage reduction in insurance coverage occurred during the year and no settlements
exceeded insurance coverage during any of the past three fiscal years.  AMRRP is structured such that member’s premiums are
based on an actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow AMRRP to meet its expected financial obligations.
AMRRP has the authority to assess its member’s additional premiums should reserves and annual premiums be insufficient to
meet the obligations.
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 13. Risk Management (Continued)

The City joined the Arizona Public Employers Health Pool (APEHP) for risks of loss related to employee health and accident
claims. APEHP is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for towns
and cities in the State. The City pays monthly premiums to APEHP for its employee health and accident insurance coverage. 

The agreement provides that APEHP will be self-sustaining through members’ premiums and will reinsure through commercial
companies for claims in excess of specified amounts for each insured event.

The City joined the Arizona Municipal Workers’ Compensation Pool (AMWCP) together with other governments in the state
for risks of loss related to workers’ compensation claims. AMWCP is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program for towns and cities in the State. The City is responsible for paying a premium, based
on an experience rating formula that allocates pool expenditures and liabilities among members.  

 14. Retirement Plans

The City contributes to the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) and the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System
(PSPRS) for police officers. The plans are component units of the State of Arizona.

At June 30, 2020, the City reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions and other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) for all plans to which it contributes:

Governmental
activities

Business-type
activities Total

Statement of net position and statement of activities
Net pension and OPEB asset $ 150,028 $ 1,854 $ 151,882
Net pension and OPEB liability 13,162,609 966,837 14,129,446
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 3,151,030 172,406 3,323,436
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB 922,660 76,960 999,620
Pension and OPEB expense 2,025,658 137,896 2,163,554

The City's accrued payroll and employee benefits includes $40,823 of outstanding pension and OPEB contribution amounts
payable to all plans for the year ended June 30, 2020. Also, the City reported $1,584,507 of pension and OPEB contributions as
expenditures in the governmental funds and $122,849 of pension and OPEB contributions as expenses in the enterprise fund
and $50,004 of pension and OPEB contributions as expenses in the internal service fund related to all plans to which it
contributes.

A. Arizona State Retirement System

Plan Description – City employees not covered by the other pension plan described on the following pages participate in the
Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB); and a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement System Board governs the ASRS
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes its financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at
www.azasrs.gov.
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 14. Retirement Plans (Continued)

A. Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)

Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, long-term disability, and survivor
benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:

Retirement initial membership date:
Before July 1, 2011 On or After July 1, 2011

Years of service and age required to
receive benefit Sum of years and age equals 80 30 years, age 55

10 years, age 62 25 years, age 60
5 years, age 50* 10 years, age 62
any years, age 65 5 years, age 50*

any years, age 65
Final average salary is based on Highest 36 consecutive months of

last 120 months
Highest 60 consecutive months of
last 120 months

Benefit percent per year of service 2.1% to 2.3% 2.1% to 2.3%

* with actuarially reduced benefits

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to automatic cost-of-living
adjustments based on excess investment earnings. Members with a membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not
eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For retired members, the
retirement benefit option chosen determines the survivor benefit. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the
member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus interest earned. 

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of credited service. The benefits
are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance premiums for which the member is responsible. For members with
10 or more years of service, benefits range from $100 per month to $260 per month depending on the age of the member and
dependents. For members with 5 to 9 years of service, the benefits are the same dollar amounts as above multiplied by a vesting
fraction based on completed years of service. 

Active members are eligible for a monthly long-term disability benefit equal to two-thirds of monthly earnings. Members
receiving benefits continue to earn service credit up to their normal retirement dates. Members with long-term disability
commencement dates after June 30, 1999, are limited to 30 years of service or the service on record as of the effective disability
date if their service is greater than 30 years.
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A. Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)

Contributions - In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active member and employer
contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of
benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year
ended June 30, 2020, statute required active ASRS members to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 12.11 percent
(11.94 percent for retirement and 0.17 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll, and statute
required the City to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 12.11 percent (11.45 percent for retirement, 0.49 percent for
health insurance premium benefit, and 0.17 percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual covered payroll. In
addition, the City was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 10.41 percent (10.29 percent for
retirement, 0.05 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 0.07 percent for long-term disability) of annual covered
payroll of retired members who worked for the City in positions that an employee who contributes to the ASRS would typically
fill. The City’s contributions to the pension, health insurance premium benefit, and long-term disability plans for the year ended
June 30, 2020, were $747,790, $30,414, and $11,240, respectively.

During fiscal year 2020, the City paid for ASRS pension and OPEB contributions as follows: 78.1 percent from the General
Fund, 15.6 percent from major funds, and 6.3 percent from other funds. 

Liability - At June 30, 2020, the City reported the following asset and liabilities for its proportionate share of the ASRS’ net
pension/OPEB asset or liability.

Net
pension/OPEB
(asset) liability

Pension $ 8,828,191
Health insurance premium benefit (17,008)
Long-term disability 39,855

The net asset and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019. The total liability used to calculate the net asset or net
liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the total liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2018, to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. 

The City’s proportion of the net asset or net liability was based on the City’s actual contributions to the plan relative to the total
of all participating employers’ contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019. The City’s proportions measured as of June 30,
2019, and the change from its proportions measured as of June 30, 2018, were:

Proportion
June 20, 2019

Increase/Decrease
from June 30,

2018

Pension %0.06067 %(0.00113)
Health insurance premium benefit %0.06154 %(0.00090)
Long-term disability %0.06118 %(0.00073)

Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized the following pension and OPEB expense.

Pension/OPEB
expense

Pension $ 1,230,445
Health insurance premium benefit 21,354
Long-term disability 13,018
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A. Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the following sources:

Pension
Health insurance premium

benefit Long-term disability

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 159,484 $ 1,660 $ - $ 20,330 $ 4,709 $ -

Changes of assumptions or other
inputs 37,317 351,556 33,445 - 5,962 -

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on plan
investments - 198,427 - 22,116 - 850

Changes in proportion and
differences between City
contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 212,428 110,612 132 41 1,053 295

City contributions subsequent to
the measurement date 747,790 - 30,414 - 11,240 -

Total $ 1,157,019 $ 662,255 $ 63,991 $ 42,487 $ 22,964 $ 1,145

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions and OPEB resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the
year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows:

Year ending June 30 Pension

Health
insurance
premium
benefit

Long-term
disability

2021 $ 19,506 $ (7,335) $ 1,095
2022 (287,570) (7,335) 1,095
2023 (38,106) 2,098 1,925
2024 53,144 4,145 2,077
2025 - (483) 1,760
Thereafter - - 2,627
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A. Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)

Actuarial assuptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension/OPEB liability are as follows:

ASRS
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 7.5%
Projected salary increases 2.7-7.2% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Inflation 2.3%
Permanent benefit increase Included for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Mortality rates 2017 SRA Scale U-MP for pensions and health

insurance premium benefit
Recovery rates 2012 GLDT for long-term disability
Healthcare cost rend rate Not applicable

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-
year period ended June 30, 2016.

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS plan investments was determined to be 7.5 percent using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in
the following table:

Target
allocation

Long-term expected geometric
real rate of return

Asset class
Equity %50 6.09%
Credit %20 5.36%
Interest rate sensitive

bonds %10 1.62%
Real estate %20 5.85%

%100

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension/OPEB liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based on
the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rate
under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability.
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A. Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the ASRS net pension/OPEB (asset) liability to changes in the discount
rate - The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB (asset) liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB (asset) liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.5 percent)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease (6.5%)
Current discount rate

(7.5%) 1% Increase (8.5%)

City's Proportionate share of the
Net pension liability $ 12,564,561 $ 8,828,191 $ 5,705,548
Net insurance premium benefit liability (asset) 86,148 (17,008) (104,899)
Net long-term disability liability 44,109 39,855 35,731

Plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
ASRS financial report.

B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System

Plan descriptions - City police employees who are regularly assigned hazardous duty participate in the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) or employees who became members on or after July 1, 2017, may participate in the Public Safety
Personnel Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP). The PSPRS administers agent and cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plans and agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium
benefit (OPEB) plans. A nine-member board known as the Board of Trustees and the participating local boards govern the
PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. Employees who were PSPRS members before July
1, 2017, participate in the agent plans, and those who became PSPRS members on or after July 1, 2017, participate in the cost-
sharing plans (PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool) which are not further disclosed because of their relative insignificance to the City's
financial statements.

The PSPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the PSPRS plans. The report is available on the PSPRS website at www.psprs.com. 
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B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

Benefits Provided – The PSPRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, disability, and survivor benefits.
State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average
monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

Initial membership date:

Before January 1, 2012
On or After January 1, 2012 and

before July 1, 2017

Retirement and disability
Years of service and age required

to receive benefit
   20  years of service, any age

15 years of service, age 62
25 years of service or 15 years of
credited service, age 52.5

Final average salary is based on Highest 36 consecutive months of last
20 years

Highest 60 consecutive months of last
20 years

Benefit percent
Normal retirement 50% less 2.0% for each year of

credited service less than 20 years OR
plus 2.0% to 2.5% for each year of
credited service over 20 years, not to
exceed 80%

1.5% to 2.5% per year of credited
service, not to exceed 80%

Accidental disability retirement 50% of normal retirement, whichever is greater

Catostrophic disability
retirement

90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 62.5% or normal
retirement, whichever is greater

Ordinary disability retirement Normal retirement calculated with actual years of credited service or 20 years
of credited service, whichever is greater, multiplied by years of credited

service (not to exceed 20 years) divided by 20

Survivor benefit
Retired members 80% to 100% of retired member’s pension benefit

Active members 80% to 100% of accidental disability retirement benefit, or 100% of average
monthly compensation if death was the result of injuries received on the job

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on inflation. PSPRS also provides
temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of the member’s compensation for up to 12 months.

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of credited service. The benefits
are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance premiums for which the member is responsible. Benefits range from
$100 per month to $260 per month depending on the age of the member and dependents.

68

Page 103



CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

 14. Retirement Plans (Continued)

B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

Employees covered by benefit terms - At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the agent plans’ benefit
terms:

PSPRS Police
Pension Health

Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 13 13

Inactive employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 7 1

Active employees 23 23

Total 43 37

Contributions - State statutes establish the pension contribution requirements for active PSPRS employees. In accordance with
State statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine employer contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health
insurance premium benefits. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of
benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contribution rates
for the year ended June 30, 2020, are indicated below. Rates are a percentage of active members’ annual covered payroll.

Active member -
pension

City -
pension

City - health insurance
premium benefit

PSPRS Police 7.65%-11.65% %31.12 %0.00

In addition, statute required the City to contribute at the actuarially determined rate indicated below of annual covered payroll
of retired members who worked for the City in positions that an employee who contributes to the PSPRS would typically fill
and employees participating in the PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool and PSPDCRP members in addition to the City's required
contributions to the PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool and PSPDCRP.

Pension
Health Insurance
premium benefit

PSPRS Police %18.74 %0.00

The City’s contributions to the plans for the year ended June 30, 2020, were: 

Pension
Health insurance
premium benefit

PSPRS Police $ 967,916 $ -

During fiscal year 2020, the City paid for PSPRS pension and OPEB contributions as follows: 99.9% from the General Fund
and 0.1% from the Grants and Donations Fund.
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B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

Liability - At June 30, 2020, the City reported the following assets and liabilities. 

Net Pension
(asset) liability

Net OPEB (asset)
liability

PSPRS Police $ 5,261,400 $ (134,874)

The net assets and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total liability used to calculate the net asset or
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The total liabilities as of June 30, 2019, reflect changes of
actuarial assumptions to decrease the investment rate of return from 7.4 percent to 7.3 percent and update the mortality rates. 

During the fiscal year 2020 budget process, management recommended paying down the unfunded liability using a level-
payment approach resulting in annual payments of approximately $1 million over the remaining 18-year unfunded liability
amortization period.  The City Council approved an additional contribution of approximately $456,000 over the actuarially
required contribution amount for fiscal year 2020. 

Actuarial assumptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension/OPEB liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 7.3%
Wage inflation 3.5% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Price inflation 2.5% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Cost-of-living adjustment 1.75% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB
Mortality rates PubS-2010 tables
Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-
year period ended June 30, 2016.
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B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS plan investments was determined to be 7.3 percent using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset class
Target

Allocation

Long-term expected
geometric real rate of

return

Short term investments %2 0.25%
Risk parity %4 4.01%
Fixed income %5 3.00%
Real assets %9 6.75%
GTS %12 4.01%
Private credit %16 5.36%
Real estate %10 4.50%
Private equity %12 8.40%
Non-U.S. equity %14 5.00%
U.S. equity %16 4.75%

Total %100

Discount rate - At June 30, 2019, the discount rate used to measure the PSPRS total pension/OPEB liabilities was 7.3 percent,
which was a decrease of 0.1 from the discount rate used as of June 30, 2018. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rate and the member
rate. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability.
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B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

Changes in the net pension/OPEB liability

Pension increase (decrease)
Health insurance premium benefit

increase (decrease)

Total
pension
liability

(a)

Plan
fiduciary net

position
(b)

Net pension
(asset)
liability
(a) - (b)

Total OPEB
liability

(a)

Plan
fiduciary net

position
(b)

Net OPEB
(asset)
liability
(a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2019 $12,298,407 $ 7,586,338 $ 4,712,069 $ 185,505 $ 307,092 $ (121,587)
Changes for the year

Service cost 370,528 - 370,528 6,453 - 6,453
Interest on the total liability 913,618 - 913,618 13,924 - 13,924
Differences between expected

and actual experience in the
measurement of the liability 394,857 - 394,857 (19,338) - (19,338)

Changes of assumptions or
other inputs 360,590 - 360,590 1,877 - 1,877

Contributions - employer - 894,934 (894,934) - - -
Contributions - employee - 148,600 (148,600) - - -
Net investment income - 455,645 (455,645) - 16,488 (16,488)
Benefit payments, including

refunds of employee
contributions (645,490) (645,490) - (7,596) (7,596) -

Administrative expense - (8,917) 8,917 - (285) 285

Net changes 1,394,103 844,772 549,331 (4,680) 8,607 (13,287)

Balances at June 30, 2020 $13,692,510 $ 8,431,110 $ 5,261,400 $ 180,825 $ 315,699 $ (134,874)

Sensitivity of the City’s net pension/OPEB (asset) liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table presents
the City’s net pension/OPEB (assets) liabilities calculated using the discount rate of 7.3 percent, as well as what the City’s net
pension/OPEB (asset) liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.3 percent)
or 1 percentage point higher (8.3 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease (6.3%)
Current discount rate

(7.3%) 1% Increase (8.3%)

PSPRS Police
Net pension (asset) liability $ 7,219,931 $ 5,261,400 $ 3,674,661
Net OPEB (asset) liability $ (111,657) $ (134,874) $ (154,208)

Plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PSPRS financial report.

Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized the following pension and OPEB expense: 

Pension expense OPEB expense

PSPRS Police $ 907,770 $ (9,033)
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B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (Continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the following sources:

Pension
Health insurance premium

benefit

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 368,781 $ 260,126 $ 2,155 $ 27,000

Changes of assumptions or other
inputs 675,310 - 1,608 6,607

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on plan
investments 62,750 - 942 -

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 967,916 - - -

Total $ 2,074,757 $ 260,126 $ 4,705 $ 33,607

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the
year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows:

Year ending June 30 Pension

Health
insurance
premium
benefit

2021 $ 268,491 $ (7,266)
2022 148,805 (7,265)
2023 163,609 (5,012)
2024 139,902 (4,476)
2025 125,908 (2,388)
Thereafter - (2,495)

PSPDCRP plan - The PSPDCRP is a defined contribution pension plan. The PSPRS Board of Trustees governs the PSPDCRP
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4.1. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, are
established by State statute.  

For the year ended June 30, 2020, active PSPDCRP members were required by statute to contribute at least 5 percent of the
members’ annual covered payroll, and the City was required by statute to contribute 5 percent of active members’ annual
covered payroll to an individual employee account. Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and the
earnings on those contributions. Employees vest in a portion of the City's contributions each year as set forth in statute. The
plan retains nonvested County contributions when forfeited because of employment terminations. For the year ended June 30,
2020, the City recognized pension expense of $35,826.
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 15. Contingent Liabilities

The City participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended.  Accordingly, the City’s compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at a future date.  The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the City anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial. 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion
of the City Attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

 16. Budgetary Basis

The City’s adopted budget is prepared on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, with the
following exceptions: 

1. The General Fund as reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance includes the
proceeds from capital leases and installment purchases as other financing sources and offsetting expenditures. This activity
is not included in the City’s adopted budget approved by Council. 

2. The General Fund as reported in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule includes departmental contributions to an equipment
replacement reserve as expenditures.

The following adjustments are necessary to present expenditures and other financing sources and uses on a budgetary basis in
order to present the General Fund for budgetary purposes.

Total
Expenditures

Other
Financing
Sources
(Uses)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances $ 20,308,697 $ (6,160,762)
Capital lease and installment purchase proceeds and expenditures included in Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (373,112) (373,112)
Equipment replacement reserve charge included for budgetary basis presentation 361,748 -

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund $ 20,297,333 $ (6,533,874)

 17. Subsequent Events

In August 2020, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement for $185,261 for the replacement of the Police Department’s
video system to include a pilot program for body-worn video cameras. 

In September 2020, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement for $67,442 for the replacement of a Police Department
vehicle. 

In September 2020, the City purchased land for the sum of $947,500 for potential use as a roadway connection and/or the future
location of a transit hub to complement the development of a transit program within the City of Sedona and the surrounding
area. 

In September 2020, the City entered into a construction contract for $2,058,728 for mill and overlay, drainage improvements,
and the addition of a shared-use path along Thunder Mountain Road/Sanborn Drive. 
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 17. Subsequent Events (Continued)

In October 2020, the City entered into a construction contract for $956,960 for drainage improvements at the low-water
crossing of the Carroll Canyon Wash across Sunset Drive.

In November 2020, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement for $183,119 for the replacement of three addtional Police
Department vehicles.

In November 2020, the City entered into a design contract for $1,518,050 for a parking garage in the Uptown area.

In December 2020, the City entered into a construction contract for $731,565 for a shared-use path along Dry Creek Road. 
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION/OPEB LIABILITY
COST SHARING PLANS

(Unaudited)
Reporting fiscal year
(measurement date)

2020
2019

2019
2018

2018
2017

2017
2016

2016
2015

2015
2014

2014 through
2011

ASRS-Pension

City’s proportion of the net pension liability %0.060670 %0.061800 %0.058470 %0.054700 %0.051940 %0.050427
Information

not available
City’s proportionate share of the net pension

liability $ 8,828,191 $ 8,618,925 $ 9,108,486 $ 8,829,130 $ 8,090,772 $ 7,461,507
City’s covered payroll $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189 $ 5,180,296 $ 4,898,994 $ 4,658,483
City’s proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a percentage of its covered payroll %139.05 %141.68 %160.52 %170.44 %165.15 %160.17
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability %73.24 %73.40 %69.92 %67.06 %68.35 %69.49

Reporting fiscal year
(measurement date)

2020
(2019)

2019
(2018)

2018
(2017)

2017 through
2011

ASRS - Health insurance premium benefit

City’s proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) %0.061540 %0.062440 %0.058890
Information
not available

City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) $ (17,008) $ (22,484) $ (32,060)
City’s covered payroll $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189
City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered

payroll %(0.27) %(0.37) %(0.57)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability %101.62 %102.20 %103.57

Reporting fiscal year
(measurement date)

2020
(2019)

2019
(2018)

2018
(2017)

2017 through
2011

ASRS - Long-term Disability

City’s proportion of the net OPEB liability %0.06118 %0.06191 %0.05851
Information

not available
City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability $ 39,855 $ 32,348 $ 21,209
City’s covered payroll $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189
City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a percentage of its covered payroll %0.63 %0.53 %0.37
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability %72.85 %77.83 %84.44

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S NET PENSION/OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AGENT PLANS

Reporting fiscal year
 (measurement date)

PSPRS Police
2020

(2019)
2019

(2018)
2018

(2017)
2017

(2016)
2016

(2015)
2015

(2014)
2014 through

2011

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 370,528 $ 356,017 $ 418,975 $ 292,709 $ 299,781 $ 226,906
Information
not available

Interest on the total pension liability 913,618 868,127 798,874 710,713 690,996 603,199
Changes of benefit terms - - 135,940 485,931 - 141,278
Differences between expected and actual

experience in the measurement of the
pension liability 394,857 (232,384) (31,720) 108,055 (309,534) (285,532)

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 360,590 - 277,336 411,683 - 872,086
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (645,490) (493,585) (482,678) (465,793) (387,285) (564,587)

Net change in total pension liability 1,394,103 498,175 1,116,727 1,543,298 293,958 993,350
Total pension liability - beginning 12,298,407 11,800,232 10,683,505 9,140,207 8,846,249 7,852,899

Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 13,692,510 $ 12,298,407 $ 11,800,232 $ 10,683,505 $ 9,140,207 $ 8,846,249

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 894,934 $ 879,735 $ 444,238 $ 483,472 396,718 $ 287,018
Contributions - employee 148,600 204,147 178,624 182,485 185,850 158,370
Net investment income 455,645 510,813 722,712 35,088 193,322 647,862
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (645,490) (493,585) (482,678) (465,793) (387,285) (564,587)
Administrative expense (8,917) (8,475) (6,795) (5,449) (5,098) -
Other changes - (146,820) (17,256) 8,784 4,796 (241,967)

Net change in plan fiduciary net
position 844,772 945,815 838,845 238,587 388,303 286,696

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 7,586,338 6,640,523 5,801,678 5,563,091 5,174,788 4,888,092

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 8,431,110 $ 7,586,338 $ 6,640,523 $ 5,801,678 $ 5,563,091 $ 5,174,788

City’s net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 5,261,400 $ 4,712,069 $ 5,159,709 $ 4,881,827 $ 3,577,116 $ 3,671,461

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability %61.57 %61.69 %56.27 %54.31 %60.86 %58.50

Covered payroll $ 1,688,863 $ 1,816,663 $ 1,620,810 $ 1,983,869 1,881,985 1,651,848

City’s net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll %311.54 %259.38 %318.34 %246.08 %190.07 %222.26

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S NET PENSION/OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AGENT PLANS

(Concluded)
Reporting fiscal year
(measurement date)

PSPRS Health Insurance Premium Benefit
2020

(2019)
2019

(2018)
2018

(2017)
2017 through

2011

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 6,453 $ 6,095 $ 6,791 Information

not available
Interest on the total OPEB liability 13,924 12,499 13,717
Changes of benefit terms - - 419
Differences between expected and actual experience in the

measurement of the OPEB liability (19,338) 3,179 (18,591)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 1,877 - (11,785)
Benefit payments (7,596) (4,244) (4,140)

Net change in total OPEB liability (4,680) 17,529 (13,589)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 185,505 167,976 181,565

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 180,825 $ 185,505 167,976

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ - $ - $ 30,977
Net investment income 16,488 20,233 (4,140)
Benefit payments (7,596) (4,244) (274)
Administrative expense (285) (308) -
Other changes - 1 -

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 8,607 15,682 26,563
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning $ 307,092 $ 291,410 $ 264,847

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 315,699 $ 307,092 291,410

City’s net OPEB (asset) liability - ending (a) - (b) $ (134,874) $ (121,587) (123,434)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability %174.59 %165.54 %173

Covered payroll $ 1,688,863 1,816,663 $ 1,620,810

City’s net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of
covered payroll %(7.99) %(6.69) %(7.62)

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CITY PENSION/OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
(Unaudited)

Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2013 through

2011

ASRS - Pension

Statutorily required contribution $ 747,790 $ 715,706 $ 664,293 $ 612,991 $ 570,333 $ 520,998 $ 509,997
Information
not available

City’s contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution 747,790 715,706 664,293 612,991 570,333 520,998 509,997

City’s contribution deficiency
(excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

City’s covered payroll $ 6,811,200 $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189 $ 5,180,296 $ 4,898,994 $ 4,658,483
City’s contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll %10.98 %11.27 %10.92 %10.80 %11.01 %10.63 %10.95

Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017
2016 through

2011

ASRS - Health insurance premium benefit

Statutorily required contribution $ 30,414 $ 29,448 $ 26,816 $ 31,844
Information
not available

City’s contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution 30,414 29,448 26,816 31,844

City’s contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -

City’s covered payroll $ 6,811,200 $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189
City’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %0.45 %0.46 %0.44 %0.56

Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017
2016 through

2011

ASRS - Long-term disability

Statutorily required contribution $ 11,240 $ 10,243 $ 9,751 $ 7,961
Information
not available

City’s contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution $ 11,240 $ 10,243 $ 9,751 $ 7,961

City’s contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -

City’s covered payroll $ 6,811,200 $ 6,348,867 $ 6,083,565 $ 5,674,189
City’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %0.17 %0.16 %0.16 %(0.14)

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.

82

Page 117



CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CITY PENSION/OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
(Concluded)

Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2013 through

2011

PSPRS - Police

Actuarially determined contribution $ 511,870 $ 636,952 $ 607,984 $ 431,195 $ 431,873 $ 293,040 $ 287,018
Information
not available

City’s contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution 967,916 994,591 659,507 504,595 431,873 293,040 287,018

City’s contribution deficiency
(excess) $ (456,046) $ (357,639) $ (51,523) $ (73,400) $ - $ - $ -

City’s covered payroll $ 1,896,886 $ 1,688,863 $ 1,816,663 $ 1,620,810 $ 1,983,869 $ 1,881,985 $ 1,651,848
City’s contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll %51.03 %58.89 %36.30 %31.13 %21.77 %15.57 %17.38

Reporting Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017
2016 through

2011

PSPRS Health Insurance Premium Benefit

Actuarially determined contribution $ - $ - $ - $ -
Information
not available

City’s contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution - - - -

City’s contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -

City’s covered payroll $ 1,896,886 $ 1,688,863 $ 1,816,663 $ 1,620,810
City’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %- %- %- %-

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO PENSION/OPEB PLAN SCHEDULES

JUNE 30, 2020

 1. Actuarially Determined Contribution Rates

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in
which contributions are made.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as
follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent-of-pay, closed
Remaining amortization period as of

the 2018 actuarial valuation 18 years
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market value; 80%/120% market corridor
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was
decreased from 7.5% to 7.4%.  In the 2016 actuarial valuation the
investment rate of return was decreased from 7.85% to 7.5%.  In the
2013 actuarial valuation the investment rate of return was decreased
from 8.0% to 7.85%.

Projected salary increases In the 2017 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were
decreased from 4.0%-8.0% to 3.5%-7.5%.  In the 2014 actuarial
valuation projected salary increases were decreased from 4.5%-8.5%
to 4.0%-8.0%.  In the 2013 actuarial valuation, projected salary
increases were decreased from 5.0%-9.0% to 4.5%-8.5%.

Wage growth In the 2017 actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 4%
to 3.5%. In the 2014 actuarial valuation wage growth was decreased
from 4.5% to 4.0%.  In the 2013 actuarial valuation wage growth was
decreased from 5.0% to 4.5%.

Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility
condition.  Last updated for the 2012 valuation persuant to an
experience study of the period July 1, 2006 - July 30, 2011.

Mortality rates In the 2017 actuarial valution, changed to RP-2014 tables, with 75%
of MP-2016 fully generational projection scales. RP-2000 mortality
table (adjusted by (105% for both males and females)

 2. Factors that affect trends

Arizona courts have ruled that provisions of a 2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding permanent pension benefit
increases and increased employee pension contribution rates were unconstitutional or a breach of contract because those
provisions apply to individuals who were members as of the law’s effective date. As a result, the PSPRS changed benefit terms
to reflect the prior mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases for those members and revised actuarial assumptions to
explicitly value future permanent benefit increases. PSPRS also reduced those members’ employee contribution rates. These
changes are reflected in the plans’ pension liabilities for fiscal year 2015 (measurement date 2014) for members who were
retired as of the law’s effective date and fiscal year 2018 (measurement date 2017) for members who retired or will retire after
the law’s effective date. These changes also increased the PSPRS-required pension contributions beginning in fiscal year 2016
for members who were retired as of the law’s effective date. These changes increased the PSPRS-required contributions
beginning in fiscal year 2019 for members who retired or will retire after the law’s effective date.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Grants & Donations Fund - To account for federal, state and other grants and contributions which are 
restricted for a specific use.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Summit II Community Facilities District Fund - To account for the operations of the Summit II 
Community Facilities District that provides general infrastructure and capital assets for the property 
ZLWKLQ�WKH�'LVWULFW¶V�ERXQGDULHV�

Fairfield Community Facilities District Fund - To account for the operations of the Fairfield 
Community Facilities District that provides general infrastructure and capital assets for the property 
ZLWKLQ�WKH�'LVWULFW¶V�ERXQGDULHV�

Art in Public Places Fund - To account for monies transferred from capital projects to be used for art 
LPSURYHPHQWV� DQG� PRQLHV� UHFHLYHG� IURP� GHYHORSHUV� LQ� OLHX� RI� FRPSO\LQJ� ZLWK� WKH� &LW\¶V� SXEOLF� DUW�
requirements.  Council policy requires 1% of certain capital projects budgets to be used for art in public 
places.

Development Impact Fees Fund ± To account for development impact fees earmarked for costs incurred 
by the City, generally for capital acquisition or related debt service necessitated by new development. The 
&LW\¶V�/DQG�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH�2UGLQDQFH��VHF����������&��SURYLGHV�WKDt any portion of the development 
impact fee that has not been spent within ten years for improvements that provide a beneficial use to the 
GHYHORSPHQW�WKDW�SDLG�WKH�IHH�VKDOO�EH�UHIXQGHG��$UL]RQD�6WDWH�FDVH�ODZ��+RPH�%XLOGHUV�$VV¶Q�RI�&HQW��
Arizona v. City of Scottsdale, 187 Ariz. 479 (1997)) held that the enabling statute for imposition of 
development impact fees only implicitly requires that a municipality develop plans indicating a good faith 
intent to use the fees to provide services within a reasonable time.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Special
Revenue

Fund Capital Projects Funds

Grants &
Donations

Summit II
Community

Facilities
District

Fairfield
Community

Facilities
District

Art in Public
Places

Development
Impact Fees

Total
Nonmajor

Funds

Assets
Cash and investments $ - $ 389,389 $ 88,935 $ 152,224 $ 2,926,415 $ 3,556,963
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles

Taxes - 592 30,660 - - 31,252
Accrued interest 235 975 222 381 7,330 9,143

Due from other government units 210,062 - - - - 210,062

Total assets $ 210,297 $ 390,956 $ 119,817 $ 152,605 $ 2,933,745 $ 3,807,420

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 13,342 $ 350 $ - $ - $ 149,034 $ 162,726
Construction contracts payable - - - - 1,905 1,905
Retainage payable - - - - 59,308 59,308
Due to other funds 92,547 - - - - 92,547
Unearned revenue 11,247 - - - - 11,247

Total liabilities 117,136 350 - - 210,247 327,733

Fund Balances (Deficits)
Restricted 54,937 390,606 119,817 6,556 2,724,945 3,296,861
Committed 8,401 - - 146,049 - 154,450
Assigned 29,823 - - - - 29,823
Unassigned - - - - (1,447) (1,447)

Total fund balances (deficits) 93,161 390,606 119,817 152,605 2,723,498 3,479,687

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) $ 210,297 $ 390,956 $ 119,817 $ 152,605 $ 2,933,745 $ 3,807,420
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Special
Revenue

Fund Capital Projects Funds

Grants &
Donations

Summit II
Community

Facilities
District

Fairfield
Community

Facilities
District

Art in Public
Places

Development
Impact Fees

Total
Nonmajor

Funds

Revenues
In lieu taxes $ - $ 45,618 $ 122,471 $ - $ - $ 168,089
Intergovernmental 244,881 - - - - 244,881
Charges for services 956 - - - - 956
Contributions 25,029 - - - - 25,029
Impact fees - - - - 478,597 478,597
Investment earnings 2,351 8,615 2,024 3,478 69,819 86,287

Total revenues 273,217 54,233 124,495 3,478 548,416 1,003,839

Expenditures
Current

General government 5,067 - - - - 5,067
Public safety 29,744 - - - - 29,744
Culture and recreation 12,714 - - - - 12,714
Housing 215,062 - - - - 215,062

Capital outlay 11,000 14,428 160,000 - 862,063 1,047,491

Total expenditures 273,587 14,428 160,000 - 862,063 1,310,078

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (370) 39,805 (35,505) 3,478 (313,647) (306,239)

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in - - - 21,384 27,964 49,348
Transfers out (18,564) - - - (27,672) (46,236)

Total other financing sources (18,564) - - 21,384 292 3,112

Net change in fund balances (18,934) 39,805 (35,505) 24,862 (313,355) (303,127)

Fund balances - beginning of year 112,095 350,801 155,322 127,743 3,036,853 3,782,814

Fund balances - end of year $ 93,161 $ 390,606 $ 119,817 $ 152,605 $ 2,723,498 $ 3,479,687
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ 427,761 $ 77,761
Contributions 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Investment earnings 231,000 231,000 278,270 47,270

Total revenues 631,000 631,000 756,031 125,031

Expenditures
Capital outlay 7,354,550 8,087,206 7,377,126 710,080

Total expenditures 7,354,550 8,087,206 7,377,126 710,080

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,723,550) (7,456,206) (6,621,095) 835,111

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 2,416,627 2,416,627 2,929,739 513,112
Transfers out (52,320) (52,320) (21,384) 30,936

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,364,307 2,364,307 2,908,355 544,048

Net change in fund balance (4,359,243) (5,091,899) (3,712,740) 1,379,159

Fund balance - beginning of year 12,794,975 12,794,975 13,612,587 817,612

Fund balance - end of year $ 8,435,732 $ 7,703,076 $ 9,899,847 $ 2,196,771
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANTS & DONATIONS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 742,815 $ 742,815 $ 244,881 $ (497,934)
Charges for services 1,900 1,900 956 (944)
Contributions 23,950 23,950 25,029 1,079
Investment earnings 1,690 1,690 2,351 661

Total revenues 770,355 770,355 273,217 (497,138)

Expenditures
Current

General government 335,215 333,915 5,067 328,848
Public safety 46,000 46,000 29,744 16,256
Culture and recreation 16,200 17,500 12,714 4,786
Housing - 330,000 215,062 114,938

Capital outlay 415,000 85,000 11,000 74,000

Total expenditures 812,415 812,415 273,587 538,828

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (42,060) (42,060) (370) 41,690

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out - - (18,564) (18,564)

Net change in fund balance (42,060) (42,060) (18,934) 23,126

Fund balance - beginning of year 118,247 118,247 112,095 (6,152)

Fund balance - end of year $ 76,187 $ 76,187 $ 93,161 $ 16,974
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SUMMIT II COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

(Negative)

Revenues
In lieu taxes $ 48,700 $ 45,618 $ (3,082)
Investment earnings 4,750 8,615 3,865

Total revenues 53,450 54,233 783

Expenditures
Capital outlay 20,000 14,428 5,572

Total expenditures 20,000 14,428 5,572

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 33,450 39,805 6,355

Fund balance - beginning of year 346,199 350,801 4,602

Fund balance - end of year $ 379,649 $ 390,606 $ 10,957
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FAIRFIELD COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

(Negative)

Revenues
In lieu taxes $ 122,200 $ 122,471 $ 271
Investment earnings 700 2,024 1,324

Total revenues 122,900 124,495 1,595

Expenditures
Capital outlay 260,000 160,000 100,000

Total expenditures 260,000 160,000 100,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (137,100) (35,505) 101,595

Fund balance - beginning of year 153,398 155,322 1,924

Fund balance - end of year $ 16,298 $ 119,817 $ 103,519
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ART IN PUBLIC PLACES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Investment earnings $ 1,530 $ 1,530 $ 3,478 $ 1,948

Total revenues 1,530 1,530 3,478 1,948

Expenditures
Capital outlay 130,000 - - -

Total expenditures 130,000 - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (128,470) 1,530 3,478 1,948

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 52,320 52,320 21,384 (30,936)

Net change in fund balance (76,150) 53,850 24,862 (28,988)

Fund balance - beginning of year 132,512 132,512 127,743 (4,769)

Fund balance - end of year $ 56,362 $ 186,362 $ 152,605 $ (33,757)
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Impact fees $ 626,350 $ 626,350 $ 478,597 $ (147,753)
Investment earnings 44,820 44,820 69,819 24,999

Total revenues 671,170 671,170 548,416 (122,754)

Expenditures
Capital outlay 2,212,057 2,303,192 862,063 1,441,129

Total expenditures 2,212,057 2,303,192 862,063 1,441,129

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,540,887) (1,632,022) (313,647) 1,318,375

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 31,786 31,786 27,964 (3,822)
Transfers Out - - (27,672) (27,672)

Total other financing sources (uses) 31,786 31,786 292 (31,494)

Net change in fund balance (1,509,101) (1,600,236) (313,355) 1,286,881

Fund balance - beginning of year 2,977,652 2,977,652 3,036,853 59,201

Fund balance - end of year $ 1,468,551 $ 1,377,416 $ 2,723,498 $ 1,346,082
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for services $ 6,231,083 $ 6,231,083 $ 6,042,785 $ (188,298)
Capacity fees 1,227,000 1,227,000 997,558 (229,442)
Investment earnings 321,330 321,330 435,820 114,490
Other revenues 33,800 33,800 13,788 (20,012)

Total revenues 7,813,213 7,813,213 7,489,951 (323,262)

Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 1,522,960 1,531,460 1,405,807 125,653
Supplies and other 2,968,695 2,788,660 2,068,362 720,298
Capital outlay 4,630,600 4,757,335 4,285,384 471,951
Debt service 4,703,425 4,703,425 4,696,382 7,043
Contingency 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
Addition to equipment replacement reserve 524,000 524,000 520,400 3,600
Addition to major maintenance reserve 109,350 109,350 73,150 36,200

Total expenditures 14,559,030 14,514,230 13,049,485 1,464,745

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,745,817) (6,701,017) (5,559,534) 1,141,485

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 3,447,000 3,447,000 3,447,000 -

Add back equipment replacement reserve 524,000 524,000 520,400 (3,600)
Add back major maintenance reserve 109,350 109,350 73,150 (36,200)

Net change in fund balance (2,665,467) (2,620,667) (1,518,984) 1,101,685

Fund balance - beginning of year, as adjusted 17,599,586 17,599,586 18,293,936 694,350

Fund balance - end of year $ 14,934,119 $ 14,978,919 $ 16,774,952 $ 1,796,035

Reconciliation to Net Position per Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:

Net Position, end of year, budgetary basis $ 16,774,952
Adjustments to reconcile to net position:

Adjustments from prior years 74,462,217
Capital contribution - developer-contributed sewer lines 77,430
Depreciation (3,575,002)
Capital outlay 4,285,384
Principal paid on long-term debt 1,403,942
Premium on long-term debt 86,083
Decrease in deferred charges on refunding (17,988)
Increase in long-term interest payable 1,915,514
Increase in compensated absences 568
Decrease in net pension/OPEB asset (717)
Decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions/OPEB (38,496)
Decrease in net pension/OPEB liability 22,257
Increase in deferred inflows related to pensions/OPEB 47,408

Net Position, end of year $ 95,443,552
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget

Variance
with Final

Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for services $ 1,679,440 $ 1,679,440 $ 1,567,343 $ (112,097)
Investment earnings 2,400 2,400 12,870 10,470
Other revenues - - 622 622

Total revenues 1,681,840 1,681,840 1,580,835 (101,005)

Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 603,870 603,870 601,060 2,810
Supplies and other 864,700 893,301 708,073 185,228
Capital outlay 64,450 64,450 54,762 9,688
Addition to equipment replacement reserve 177,950 177,950 177,950 -

Total expenditures 1,710,970 1,739,571 1,541,845 197,726

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (29,130) (57,731) 38,990 96,721

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - 27,520 27,520
Add back equipment replacement reserve 177,950 177,950 177,950 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 177,950 177,950 205,470 27,520

Net change in fund balance 148,820 120,219 244,460 124,241

Fund balance - beginning of year 326,331 326,331 452,312 125,981

Fund balance - end of year $ 475,151 $ 446,550 $ 696,772 $ 250,222

Reconciliation to Net Position per Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position

Net Position, end of year, budgetary basis $ 696,772
Adjustments to reconcile to net position:

Adjustments from prior years (284,060)
Depreciation (79,130)
Capital outlay 54,762
Increase in compensated absences (5,903)
Decrease in net pension/OPEB asset (132)
Decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions (28,503)
Increase in net pension liability (94,136)
Decrease in deferred inflows 13,709

Net position of governmental activities $ 273,379
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of  Sedona, Arizona‘s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help readers assess the City’s most significant local revenue source, sales
tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current level of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019
(Restated)

2018
(Restated)

2017
(Restated)

2016
(Restated)

2015
(Restated)

2014
(Restated)

2013
(Restated)

2012
(Restated)

2011

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets $ 45,125,594 $ 36,964,267 $ 34,194,446 $ 30,918,472 $ 27,547,603 $ 25,882,022 $ 21,865,051 $ 18,019,228 $ 17,287,440 $ 17,056,529
Restricted 4,722,195 3,904,561 3,491,426 4,554,465 6,399,927 7,782,359 6,770,279 10,514,851 9,015,587 9,048,404
Unrestricted 23,816,343 23,988,145 16,585,365 13,326,749 10,840,148 7,433,194 17,575,929 14,612,403 17,968,102 17,799,316

Total governmental activities net position $ 73,664,132 $ 64,856,973 $ 54,271,237 $ 48,799,686 $ 44,787,678 $ 41,097,575 $ 46,211,259 $ 43,146,482 $ 44,271,129 $ 43,904,249

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets $ 87,704,542 $ 82,872,611 $ 81,693,704 $ 78,633,941 $ 74,595,947 $ 62,473,972 $ 67,436,106 $ 65,088,810 $ 63,266,363 $ 59,467,700
Restricted 1,854 2,571 3,486 - - - - - - -
Unrestricted 7,768,589 9,904,889 7,710,147 7,443,554 7,840,256 7,449,791 10,300,251 10,366,261 11,054,014 12,356,418

Total business-type activities net position $ 95,474,985 $ 92,780,071 $ 89,407,337 $ 86,077,495 $ 82,436,203 $ 69,923,763 $ 77,736,357 $ 75,455,071 $ 74,320,377 $ 71,824,118

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $ 132,830,136 $ 119,836,878 $ 115,888,150 $ 109,552,413 $ 102,143,550 $ 88,355,994 $ 89,301,157 $ 83,108,038 $ 80,553,803 $ 76,524,229
Restricted 4,724,049 3,907,132 3,494,912 4,554,465 6,399,927 7,782,359 6,770,279 10,514,851 9,015,587 9,048,404
Unrestricted 31,584,932 33,893,034 24,295,512 20,770,303 18,680,404 14,882,985 27,876,180 24,978,664 29,022,116 30,155,734

Total primary government net position $ 169,139,117 $ 157,637,044 $ 143,678,574 $ 134,877,181 $ 127,223,881 $ 111,021,338 $ 123,947,616 $ 118,601,553 $ 118,591,506 $ 115,728,367

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019
(Restated)

2018
(Restated)

2017
(Restated)

2016
(Restated)

2015
(Restated)

2014
(Restated)

2013
(Restated)

2012
(Restated)

2011

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 3,100,633 $ 2,974,989 $ 2,809,253 $ 6,103,129 $ 6,564,561 $ 5,802,810 $ 5,314,798 $ 5,231,759 $ 5,602,556 $ 5,688,858
Public safety 7,848,655 6,836,072 7,542,130 5,357,797 4,353,279 4,208,855 3,691,142 2,654,768 2,486,555 3,009,197
Public works and streets 5,617,752 5,488,876 5,336,542 4,534,423 3,025,476 3,352,131 3,986,709 5,635,022 3,204,078 2,531,632
Community and economic development - - - - - 2,200,510 932,919 1,834,854 - -
Community services - - - - - - 426,571 974,564 2,004,255 1,357,077
Culture and recreation 2,497,360 2,521,273 2,501,727 1,928,332 1,810,593 557,038 - - - -
Economic development 2,618,729 2,424,664 2,355,663 2,261,269 1,336,234 - - - - -
Health and welfare 612,522 492,083 251,997 - - - - - - -
Public transportation 255,418 202,363 188,604 - - - - - - -
Housing 280,621 - - - - - - - - -
Interest on long-term debt 236,419 281,913 292,714 296,144 319,545 442,506 563,158 559,672 567,901 583,175

Total governmental activities 23,068,109 21,222,233 21,278,630 20,481,094 17,409,688 16,563,850 14,915,297 16,890,639 13,865,345 13,169,939

Business-Type Activities:
Wastewater 8,319,467 8,691,487 8,217,210 7,590,660 7,394,559 8,416,450 8,147,798 8,345,260 7,874,116 7,873,298

Total primary government expenses $ 31,387,576 $ 29,913,720 $ 29,495,840 $ 28,071,754 $ 24,804,247 $ 24,980,300 $ 23,063,095 $ 25,235,899 $ 21,739,461 $ 21,043,237

Program revenues
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services
General government $ 686,472 $ 674,910 $ 824,299 $ 661,395 $ 674,762 $ 318,200 $ 89,021 $ 78,355 $ 289,510 $ 189,417
Public safety 385,984 617,090 607,666 24,743 31,570 49,218 134,164 154,786 202,465 200,129
Public works 19,068 16,044 16,614 4,690 4,745 3,870 70,943 90,065 27,583 139,856
Community and economic development - - - - - 402,483 381,803 22,270 - -
Community services - - - - - 95,716 57,697 68,367 64,714 57,475
Culture and recreation 80,158 138,768 131,359 121,295 104,217 - - - - -
Public transportation 460 855 - - - - - - - -

Operating grants and contributions 2,671,868 1,724,973 1,133,423 1,213,350 1,056,235 1,119,695 1,844,336 1,970,762 1,776,788 1,732,206
Capital grants and contributions 1,588,597 1,546,883 1,037,264 1,924,413 1,177,321 1,640,791 758,272 779,462 688,239 918,037

Total governmental activities program revenues 5,432,607 4,719,523 3,750,625 3,949,886 3,048,850 3,629,973 3,336,236 3,164,067 3,049,299 3,237,120

Business-Type Activities: 
Charges for services

Wastewater 6,043,445 6,251,954 6,180,360 5,934,888 6,349,506 6,093,385 5,908,088 5,884,685 5,159,442 4,393,291
Capital grants and contributions 1,074,988 573,380 523,013 1,167,388 - - - - - -

Total business-type activities program revenues 7,118,433 6,825,334 6,703,373 7,102,276 6,349,506 6,093,385 5,908,088 5,884,685 5,159,442 4,393,291

Total primary government program revenues $ 12,551,040 $ 11,544,857 $ 10,453,998 $ 11,052,162 $ 9,398,356 $ 9,723,358 $ 9,244,324 $ 9,048,752 $ 8,208,741 $ 7,630,411
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONCLUDED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019
(Restated)

2018
(Restated)

2017
(Restated)

2016
(Restated)

2015
(Restated)

2014
(Restated)

2013
(Restated)

2012
(Restated)

2011

(Concluded)

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities $ (17,635,502) $ (16,502,710) $ (17,528,005) $ (16,531,208) $ (14,360,838) $ (12,933,877) $ (11,579,061) $ (13,726,572) $ (10,816,046) $ (9,932,819)
Business-type activities (1,201,034) (1,866,153) (1,513,837) (488,384) (1,045,053) (2,323,065) (2,239,710) (2,460,575) (2,714,674) (3,480,007)

Total primary government net expense $ (18,836,536) $ (18,368,863) $ (19,041,842) $ (17,019,592) $ (15,405,891) $ (15,256,942) $ (13,818,771) $ (16,187,147) $ (13,530,720) $ (13,412,826)

General Revenues and Transfers
Governmental activities

Taxes
Sales taxes $ 24,329,794 $ 26,180,070 $ 22,795,216 $ 19,983,931 $ 18,004,940 $ 12,050,907 $ 10,400,704 $ 8,824,918 $ 7,729,483 $ 7,799,486
Franchise taxes 809,673 807,465 813,573 786,882 789,754 766,728 738,631 720,455 713,577 699,088
In lieu taxes 670,736 655,721 643,087 630,532 622,224 488,937 500,968 692,049 380,270 -

Unrestricted state revenue sharing 1,336,465 1,251,688 1,287,767 1,270,897 1,207,731 1,214,315 1,118,082 1,024,645 846,624 1,064,334
Unrestricted state sales tax revenue sharing 1,067,529 1,039,635 998,202 950,879 948,696 916,721 873,126 821,056 783,825 830,562
Unrestricted auto lieu tax revenue sharing 664,581 662,935 642,895 606,030 577,681 534,404 508,519 483,343 476,438 543,380
Investment earnings 815,918 1,003,210 99,315 159,363 307,030 210,386 255,995 127,098 215,593 166,085
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - - 11,806 - - - - -
Other 194,965 87,431 70,639 107,960 78,629 22,863 164,187 64,367 37,116 88,974
Transfers (3,447,000) (4,599,709) (4,351,138) (4,038,211) (4,497,550) 88,235 83,626 63,842 - -

Total governmental activities general revenues
and transfers 26,442,661 27,088,446 22,999,556 20,458,263 18,050,941 16,293,496 14,643,838 12,821,773 11,182,926 11,191,909

Business-type activities
Sales taxes - - - - - 4,046,986 4,478,074 4,638,664 5,002,648 5,413,073
Investment earnings 435,820 620,971 100,891 78,287 179,734 73,193 126,548 111,930 208,284 134,460
Miscellaneous 13,128 18,207 391,650 13,116 - - - - - -
Transfers 3,447,000 4,599,709 4,351,138 4,038,211 4,497,550 (88,235) (83,626) (63,842) - -

Total business-type activities general revenues
and transfers 3,895,948 5,238,887 4,843,679 4,129,614 4,677,284 4,031,944 4,520,996 4,686,752 5,210,932 5,547,533

Total primary government general revenues and
transfers $ 30,338,609 $ 32,327,333 $ 27,843,235 $ 24,587,877 $ 22,728,225 $ 20,325,440 $ 19,164,834 $ 17,508,525 $ 16,393,858 $ 16,739,442

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 8,807,159 10,585,736 5,471,551 3,927,055 3,690,103 3,359,619 3,064,777 (904,799) 366,880 1,259,090
Business-type activities 2,694,914 3,372,734 3,329,842 3,641,230 3,632,231 1,708,879 2,281,286 2,226,177 2,496,258 2,067,526

Total primary government change in net
position $ 11,502,073 $ 13,958,470 $ 8,801,393 $ 7,568,285 $ 7,322,334 $ 5,068,498 $ 5,346,063 $ 1,321,378 $ 2,863,138 $ 3,326,616

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

General Fund
Nonspendable $ 29,826 $ 11,683 $ 15,604 $ 15,409 $ 86,203 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Restricted 943,286 95,416 86,591 81,828 77,855 1,794,750 - - - -
Committed 1,403,370 1,619,954 701,913 421,696 389,240 - 1,626,131 - - -
Assigned 1,232,035 2,195,394 2,032,174 2,018,050 1,585,000 - - - - -
Unassigned 11,983,669 9,454,072 6,915,095 8,491,539 7,611,935 11,449,459 15,888,042 14,295,777 12,783,938 12,403,438

Total General Fund $15,592,186 $13,376,519 $ 9,751,377 $11,028,522 $ 9,750,233 $13,244,209 $17,514,173 $14,295,777 $12,783,938 $ 12,403,438

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ - $ - $ 1,575 $ - $ 15,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Restricted 3,628,879 3,667,645 3,252,827 4,472,637 6,321,238 7,692,180 6,770,279 10,561,911 9,015,587 9,048,404
Committed 7,095,543 4,180,816 1,147,912 11,268,308 9,692,916 5,367,842 66,607 - 4,464,502 4,468,706
Assigned 10,854,394 14,432,612 15,334,100 750,137 525,863 26,199 - - - -
Unassigned (1,447) (39,141) (31,246) (54,281) (36,684) (19,373) - - - -

Total All Other Governmental Funds $21,577,369 $22,241,932 $19,705,168 $16,436,801 $16,518,333 $13,066,848 $ 6,836,886 $10,561,911 $13,480,089 $ 13,517,110

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017
        
2016

(Restated)
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Revenues
Taxes $ 25,760,174 $ 27,636,568 $ 24,290,404 $ 21,523,901 $ 19,412,559 $ 13,628,451 $ 11,205,625 $ 9,756,849 $ 8,594,131 $ 8,538,593
Licenses and permits 311,569 380,721 455,498 475,216 496,517 468,722 466,937 334,756 276,000 179,555
Intergovernmental 6,107,232 4,887,798 4,935,807 4,831,007 4,505,596 5,034,197 5,205,547 4,825,104 4,131,915 4,473,983
Contributions 75,029 724,645 290,500 86,376 230,296 23,711 - 51,945 39,342 6,452
Charges for services 672,362 933,927 770,108 202,854 162,130 190,565 99,231 89,118 125,142 98,339
Fines and forfeitures 196,524 227,761 249,893 140,840 147,984 172,694 134,164 154,786 202,465 200,129
Impact fees 478,597 292,546 207,076 618,741 231,772 216,039 450,798 278,480 297,107 154,162
Investment earnings 803,048 995,455 99,675 159,363 307,030 238,592 303,098 139,854 284,730 221,786
Other 167,679 102,221 75,089 107,960 78,629 38,707 276,872 521,353 120,851 292,300

Total revenues 34,572,214 36,181,644 31,374,050 28,146,258 25,572,513 20,011,678 18,142,272 16,152,245 14,071,683 14,165,299

Expenditures
Current

General government 2,591,128 2,860,186 2,703,709 5,760,492 6,179,381 5,471,132 5,881,473 5,639,357 5,132,317 5,021,720
Public safety 7,384,219 7,051,249 6,854,047 4,972,449 4,198,335 3,770,380 3,609,678 2,723,035 2,550,703 2,947,190
Public works and streets 3,570,268 3,651,588 3,798,641 3,118,403 1,824,816 2,280,656 3,642,185 3,332,977 2,265,572 2,031,023
Culture and recreation 2,277,298 2,354,627 2,293,792 1,820,211 1,769,992 2,193,308 389,420 1,803,515 1,914,570 1,654,380
Economic development 2,611,622 2,426,505 2,368,755 2,261,269 1,336,234 550,762 - - - -
Health and welfare 602,680 493,249 251,997 - - - - - - -
Public transportation 192,544 202,363 188,604 - - - - - - -
Housing 280,621 - - - - - - - - -

Capital outlay 9,111,004 5,134,771 5,211,057 4,592,490 5,237,935 3,546,030 4,337,561 4,486,413 1,286,046 1,577,185
Debt service:

Principal retirement 1,153,970 1,419,977 1,413,004 602,019 515,000 345,000 346,889 354,309 378,130 -
Interest and fiscal charges 187,221 208,035 234,775 222,266 245,667 418,606 561,020 538,964 547,193 562,465

Total expenditures 29,962,575 25,802,550 25,318,381 23,349,599 21,307,360 18,575,874 18,768,226 18,878,570 14,074,531 13,793,963

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenditures 4,609,639 10,377,665 6,055,669 4,796,659 4,265,153 1,435,804 (625,954) (2,726,325) (2,848) 371,336

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of capital assets 42,873 9,024 18,182 - 11,806 22,863 - - - -
Issuance of long-term debt 373,112 373,498 268,509 438,309 8,030,000 - 1,879,700 - - -
Payment to escrow agent - - - - (7,934,739) - (1,845,000) - - -
Transfers out (6,662,931) (6,746,385) (10,023,287) (7,142,658) (11,928,810) (7,955,237) (1,136,498) 857,675 (838,373) (316,125)
Transfers in 3,188,411 2,146,676 5,672,149 3,104,447 7,431,260 8,043,472 1,220,124 (793,833) 838,373 316,125

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,058,535) (4,217,187) (4,064,447) (3,599,902) (4,390,483) 111,098 118,326 63,842 - -

Net change in fund balances $ 1,551,104 $ 6,161,906 $ 1,991,222 $ 1,196,757 $ (125,330) $ 1,546,902 $ (507,628) $ (2,662,483) $ (2,848) $ 371,336

Debt services as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures %6.35 %7.79 %8.14 %4.39 %4.73 %5.08 %6.29 %6.21 %7.24 %4.60

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
GENERAL GOVERNMENT PRINCIPAL SALES TAX REMITTERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year 2020 Fiscal Year 2011

Tax Payer Tax Liability Rank
Percentage

of Total Tax Liability Rank
Percentage
of Total 

Hotels & Other Lodging $ 8,352,702 1 %34.4 $ 4,177,664 1 %32.4
Retail Trade 7,208,267 2 29.7 3,207,107 2 24.9
Restaurants & Bars 3,711,859 3 15.3 1,771,269 3 13.7
Construction 1,828,859 4 7.5 1,196,486 4 9.3
Rental/Leasing/Licensing 1,553,226 5 6.4 800,883 6 6.2
All Other 893,336 6 3.7 1,055,093 5 8.2
Transportation/Communication/Utilities 731,516 7 3.0 691,194 7 5.4

$ 24,279,765 %100.0 $ 12,899,696 %100.1

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue and Revenue Discovery Systems

Note: Due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest tax remitters cannot be presented.  The categories presented are
intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources of the City's transaction privilege tax revenues.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
GENERAL GOVERNMENT TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Sales Taxes Occupancy Taxes Franchise Tax
Other Taxes

(In Lieu) Total

2020 $ 20,119,581 $ 4,160,184 $ 809,673 $ 670,736 $ 25,760,174
2019 21,381,693 4,788,239 810,915 655,721 27,636,568
2018 18,393,517 4,431,680 822,122 643,086 24,290,405
2017 16,268,459 3,811,727 783,413 660,302 21,523,901
2016 14,999,612 3,010,334 781,223 621,390 19,412,559
2015 9,589,003 2,659,290 764,473 439,949 13,452,715
2014 8,114,951 2,097,290 738,631 254,753 11,205,625
2013 6,999,858 1,857,455 720,455 179,081 9,756,849
2012 5,841,697 1,867,282 713,577 171,575 8,594,131
2011 6,203,878 1,472,193 699,088 163,434 8,538,593

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
SALES TAXES COLLECTIONS BY CATEGORY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Sales Category
Construction $ 1,828,859 $ 1,449,767 $ 1,270,064 $ 1,335,883 $ 1,465,258 $ 1,043,214 $ 1,106,248 $ 799,034 $ 845,718 $ 1,196,484
Transportation, Communication

and Utilities
731,516 718,813 584,656 571,822 596,888 551,710 621,539 566,849 610,278 691,194

Retail Trade 7,208,267 7,104,613 6,185,202 5,632,490 5,552,332 4,359,761 4,375,792 3,941,680 4,238,541 4,177,664
Restaurants and Bars 3,711,859 4,366,956 3,859,442 3,268,739 2,829,512 1,959,886 2,197,587 1,769,999 1,822,094 1,771,269
Rental/Leasing/Licensing 1,553,226 1,621,589 1,396,438 1,302,833 1,058,690 630,449 928,205 747,856 770,388 800,883
Hotels and Other Lodging 8,352,702 9,628,166 8,484,719 7,057,005 5,619,566 4,317,072 1,980,589 3,142,085 3,583,876 3,207,107
All Other Outlets 893,336 1,280,028 1,044,676 911,414 887,700 1,053,920 612,380 513,538 649,880 1,055,093

Total $ 24,279,765 $ 26,169,932 $ 22,825,197 $ 20,080,186 $ 18,009,946 $ 13,916,012 $ 11,822,340 $ 11,481,041 $ 12,520,775 $ 12,899,694

Direct Sales Tax Rate %3.50 3.50 %               3.00 %
thru 2/28/18     
3.50 % starting
3/1/18

               3.00 % %3.00                3.00 % %3.00 %3.00 %3.00 %3.00

Transient Lodging Tax %3.50 %3.50                3.50 %              3.50 %                3.50 %                3.00 %
thru 12/31/13
3.50 % starting
1/1/14

%3.00 %3.00 %3.00 %3.00

Source:  Arizona Department of Revenue and Revenue Discovery Systems
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year
City Direct Sales Tax

Rate Yavapai County
Coconino
County State of Arizona

2020 %3.50 %0.75 %1.300 %5.60
2019 %3.50 %0.75 %1.300 %5.60
2018 3.00 % through 2/28/18

3.50 % starting 3/1/18
%0.75 %1.300 %5.60

2017 %3.00 %0.75 %1.300 %5.60
2016 %3.00 %0.75 %1.300 %5.60
2015 %3.00 %0.75 %1.125 %5.60
2014 %3.00 %0.75 %1.125 %5.60
2013 %3.00 %0.75 %1.125 %5.60
2012 %3.00 %0.75 %1.125 %5.60
2011 %3.00 %0.75 %1.125 %5.60

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year Revenue Bonds

Capital Leases and
Installment
Purchases Revenue Bonds Capital Leases

Capital
Appreciation Bond

Interest
Total Primary
Government

Percentage of
Personal Income

Per
Capita

2020 $ 6,665,000 $ 723,721 $ 13,816,499 $ 28,021 $ 10,273,769 $ 31,507,010 %6.91 $ 3,054
2019 7,550,000 619,579 15,302,582 - 12,189,283 35,661,444 %8.15 3,451
2018 8,790,000 426,058 19,388,665 - 11,259,315 39,864,038 %9.23 3,790
2017 10,025,000 320,990 23,394,748 - 10,376,075 44,116,813 %10.01 4,245
2016 10,509,700 - 28,072,186 - 9,537,228 48,119,114 %9.24 4,123
2015 10,339,062 - 32,929,325 - 8,740,542 52,008,929 %11.17 4,267
2014 10,684,842 - 37,333,514 - 7,983,887 56,002,243 %8.80 4,736
2013 11,135,500 16,889 41,889,499 - 7,265,246 60,307,134 %16.65 5,314
2012 11,163,896 41,198 45,060,343 - 6,582,715 62,848,152 %17.89 5,609
2011 11,498,188 64,328 48,430,295 - 5,934,491 65,927,302 %18.79 5,981

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(UNAUDITED)

Government Unit
Outstanding

Debt (1)

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable (2)

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

Coconino County $ - %6.74 $ -
Yavapai County 72,141,000 %7.53 5,432,217
Coconino County Community College District - %6.74 -
Yavapai County Community College District 2,670,000 %7.53 201,051
Sedona-Oak Creek Unified S.D. No. 9 37,774,854 %67.62 25,543,356
Sedona Fire District 802,460 %67.44 541,179

Total Overlapping Debt 31,717,803
City of Sedona 7,388,721 %100.00 7,388,721

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 39,106,524

Source:  Arizona State Treasurer’s Office, Arizona Report of Bonded Indebtedness

(1) Includes general obligation bonds outstanding.  The City of Sedona does not have any general obligation bonds.

(2) Proportion applicable to the City of Sedona, Arizona, is computed on the ratio of secondary assessed valuation for 2020
calendar year.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Excise Tax Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year
Excise Tax
Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage

2020 $ 25,742,670 $ 2,285,000 $ 3,434,245 $ 5,719,245 4.50
2019 27,603,656 5,240,000 611,587 5,851,587 4.72
2018 26,116,973 5,155,000 695,923 5,850,923 4.46
2017 23,808,679 5,050,000 791,691 5,841,691 4.08
2016 21,708,599 5,260,000 808,167 6,068,167 3.58
2015 20,054,429 4,485,000 1,498,946 5,983,946 3.35
2014 18,450,768 4,405,000 2,077,929 6,482,929 2.85
2013 15,029,208 4,210,000 2,279,329 6,489,329 2.32
2012 14,125,481 4,210,000 2,717,992 6,927,992 2.04
2011 14,410,369 3,835,000 2,696,830 6,531,830 2.21

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona’s Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
DEBT LIMITATIONS AND COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Coconino County $ 152,107,576 $ 141,743,200 $ 138,333,198 $ 134,528,591 $ 125,045,612 $ 121,388,325 $ 110,290,043 N/A N/A N/A
Yavapai County 286,913,435 253,159,989 238,835,422 227,245,423 191,649,855 183,416,070 177,099,032 N/A N/A N/A

Total Assessed Valuation $ 439,021,011 $ 394,903,189 $ 377,168,620 $ 361,774,014 $ 316,695,467 $ 304,804,395 $ 287,389,075 $ 298,617,510 $ 289,661,444 $ 289,661,444

20% Limitation

Debt Limit Equal to 20% of
Assessed Valuation $ 87,804,202 $ 78,980,638 $ 75,433,724 $ 72,354,803 $ 63,339,093 $ 60,960,879 $ 57,477,815 $ 59,723,502 57,932,289 57,932,289

Total Net Debt Applicable to
20% Limit - - - - - - - - - -

Legal 20% Debt Margin $ 87,804,202 $ 78,980,638 $ 75,433,724 $ 72,354,803 $ 63,339,093 $ 60,960,879 $ 57,477,815 $ 59,723,502 $ 57,932,289 $ 57,932,289

6% Limitations
Debt Limit Equal to 6% of

Assessed Valuation $ 26,341,261 $ 23,694,191 $ 22,630,117 $ 21,706,441 $ 19,001,728 $ 18,288,264 $ 17,243,345 $ 17,917,051 $ 17,379,687 $ 17,379,687
Total Net Debt Applicable to

6% Limit - - - - - - -

Legal 6% Debt Margin $ 26,341,261 $ 23,694,191 $ 22,630,117 $ 21,706,441 $ 19,001,728 $ 18,288,264 $ 17,243,345 $ 17,917,051 $ 17,379,687 $ 17,379,687

Source: Coconino County, Yavapai County

Note 1: Arizona’s Constitution states that a municipality cannot issue general obligation bonds in excess of 6% of the assessed valuation for general municipal purpose.

           Additional general obligation bonds for up to 20% of assessed valuation can be issued for specific purposes such as supplying water and sewer services and recreational and playground facilities.

N/A - Information not available
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Population Personal Income
Per Capita

Personal Income Median Age
School

Enrollment

Yavapai County
Unemployment

Rate

2020 10,315 $ 455,788,905 $ 44,187 59.4 916 9.20%
2019 10,335 437,315,190 42,314 58.7 1,023 4.90%
2018 10,336 424,220,448 41,043 58.3 1,007 4.40%
2017 10,397 440,708,036 42,388 57.9 989 4.70%
2016 10,388 440,326,544 42,388 58.0 1,097 5.00%
2015 10,281 392,754,762 38,202 56.3 1,082 5.80%
2014 10,140 387,368,280 38,202 56.1 968 6.50%
2013 9,981 318,608,492 31,922 56.1 1,219 8.70%
2012 10,031 314,471,850 31,350 56.1 1,250 9.10%
2011 10,031 319,206,482 31,822 50.5 1,209 9.40%

Sources: U.S. Census.gov, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Sedona Oak Creek School District, Sedona Charter School, and Sedona
Montessori School
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND NINE YEARS PRIOR
(UNAUDITED)

2020 2011

Employer
Employees

(1) Rank

Percentage of
Total

Employment
Employees

(1) Rank

Percentage of
Total

Employment

Enchantment Resorts (location outside
of City) 556 1 %9.81 383 2 %6.04

L'Auberge de Sedona Resort 550 2 %9.71 180 5 %2.84
Orchards Inn 220 3 %3.88 180 5 %2.84
City of Sedona 149 4 %2.63 100 9 %1.58
Arizona Elder Care 120 5 %2.12
Sedona/Oak Creek School District 115 6 %2.03 180 5 %2.84
Verde Valley Medical Center/Sedona

Emergency Department 110 7 %1.94
Picazzo's Healthy Italian Kitchen 80 8 %1.41 -
Cowboy Club 66 9 %1.16 -
Whole Foods Market 66 10 %1.16
Sunterra Resorts 400 1 %6.31
Diamond Resorts 275 3 %4.34
Hilton Resort & Spa (location outside

of City) 193 4 %3.05
Pink Jeep Tours 125 8 %1.97
Radisson Resort 99 10 %1.56

Total 2,032 %35.85 2,115 %33.37

Source: Sedona Chamber of Commerce; City of Sedona, Arizona

(1) Principal employers include the City of Sedona and surrounding region.
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Budgeted Positions

Function 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

General government
Mayor and Council 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Management services 19.2 18.8 18.8 18.2 17.6 18.4 18.4 17.6 16.6 15.7
Finance 8.7 8.2 8.2 8.2 8.0 8.0 8.0 6.0 6.0 5.0
Community Development 6.7 7.3 6.5 6.6 9.6 8.0 8.0 8.2 9.0 8.7
Facilities maintenance 3.8 1.8 1.6 1.6 2.4 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Court 4.7 4.7 4.3 4.3 3.7 3.7 4.3 4.3 4.3 4.2

Public safety
Building safety 3.7 3.2 4.7 4.8 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Code enforecment 2.2 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0
Police - sworn 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 25.0 27.0 27.0
Police - civilian 16.6 15.6 15.6 15.6 14.4 13.5 12.0 10.0 9.0 11.0

Public works
Engineering and project management 11.7 11.7 11.1 12.3 7.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 3.0 3.6
Other 9.3 9.5 8.3 4.5 4.3 15.2 15.2 14.4 14.2 10.1

Culture and recreation
Parks and recreation 13.4 12.6 12.5 11.0 15.2 6.0 5.9 6.1 6.4 19.8
Arts and culture 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 - - 1.1
Historic preservation 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4 - - - - - -

Economic development 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 - - - - -
Health and welfare 1.0 1.0 - - - - - - - -
Public transportation 1.0 - - - - - - - - -
Wastewater 13.0 12.0 12.0 10.6 10.6 9.8 9.8 10.7 10.9 11.3

Total 151.1 145.1 142.3 136.2 132.7 127.4 126.4 119.3 117.4 128.5

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona Financial Services Department
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

Function 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

General government
Building permits issued 542 512 557 646 617 518 500 476 472 463
Building inspections

conducted 3,515 3,954 2,899 1,889 1,733 1,953 1,907 1,781 1,453 1,277
Police

Physical arrests 340 301 391 464 383 432 325 364 497 537
Parking violations 2,350 2,568 2,819 728 737 317 191 587 195 149
Traffic violations N/A N/A N/A 2,011 3,553 3,827 1,145 2,340 2,268 2,617
Traffic stops 3,659 4,269 5,173 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Other public works
Street resurfacing (miles) 5.5 4.3 5.9 6.5 2.4 2.6 2.2 3.8 3.0 2.1
Right-of-way permits

issued 126 239 198 184 194 210 190 204 161 157
Wastewater

Average daily sewage
treatment (millions of
gallons) 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2

Source: City of Sedona, Arizona
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

Function 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Police
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Zone offices 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 17 17 19 19 16 15 15 17 13 13

Other public works
Streets (miles) 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6 92.6
Highways (miles) 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Streetlights 149 149 149 149 147 147 136 136 8 8

Parks and recreation
Acreage 123 123 123 123 123 123 123 93 93 93
Playgrounds 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Baseball and softball

diamonds 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Football and soccer fields 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Water
Fire hydrants 659 659 659 659 659 659 659 659 659 659

Wastewater
Sanitary sewers (miles) 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 75
Treatments capacity

(millions of gallons) 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

Source:  City of Sedona, Arizona

Note: The 2014 parks acreage includes addition of the wetlands preserve located at the wastewater treatment plant and the Brewer Road Park.
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(1)

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

Auditor General of the State of Arizona and
Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona
Sedona, Arizona

We have examined the accompanying Annual Expenditure Limitation Report of the City of Sedona, 
Arizona (City) for the year ended June 30, 2020. The City’s management is responsible for presenting 
this report in accordance with the Uniform Expenditure Reporting System as described in Note 1. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on this report based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether this report is presented in accordance with 
the Uniform Expenditure Reporting System in all material respects. An examination involves performing 
procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the report. The nature, timing, and 
extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the report, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Annual Expenditure Limitation Report referred to above is presented in accordance 
with the Uniform Expenditure Reporting System as described in Note 1 in all material respects.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
ANNUAL EXPENDITURE LIMITATION REPORT - PART I

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See accompanying Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report.

(2)

1. Economic Estimates Commission expenditure limitation -$                    
2. Voter approved alternative expenditure limitation 51,416,630     
3. Enter applicable amount from Line 1 or Line 2 51,416,630$   
4. Amount subject to the expenditure limitation (total amount

from Part II, Line C) 41,561,210     
5. Board-authorized expenditures necessitated by a disaster the 

Governor declared -                      
6. Board-authorized expenditures necessitated by a disaster the 

Governor did not declare -                      
7. Prior-year voter approved expenditures to exceed the

expenditure limitation for the reporting fiscal year -                      
8. Subtotal 41,561,210     
9. Board-authorized excess expenditures for the previous fiscal

year necessitated by a disaster the Governor did not declare and
the voters did not approve -                      

10. Total adjusted amount subject to the expenditure limitation 41,561,210     
11. Amount under (in excess of) the expenditure limitation 9,855,420$     

I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the information contained in this report is 
accurate and in accordance with the requirements of the uniform expenditure reporting system.

Signature:                                                      

Name and Title: Cherie R. Wright, CPA, CGFM, Director of Financial Services

Telephone Number: (928) 203-5193 Date: December 29, 2020
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
ANNUAL EXPENDITURE LIMITATION REPORT - PART II

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See accompanying Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report.

(3)

Governmental Enterprise Internal
Description  Funds  Funds  Service Funds  Total 

A. Amounts reported on the Reconciliation Line D 29,562,434$   10,410,854$   1,587,922$     41,561,210$   

B. Less exclusions claimed:

1 Debt Proceeds -                      -                      -                      -                      

2 Debt service requirements  -                      -                      -                      -                      

3 Dividends, interest and gains on sale or redemption 
of investment securities -                      -                      -                      -                      

4 Trustee or custodian -                      -                      -                      -                      

5 Grants and aid from the federal government -                      -                      -                      -                      

6

-                      -                      -                      -                      

7 Amounts received from the State of Arizona -                      -                      -                      -                      

8 -                      -                      -                      -                      

9

-                      -                      -                      -                      

10

-                      -                      -                      

11 Contracts with other political subdivisions -                      -                      -                      -                      

12 Refunds, reimbursements and other recoveries -                      -                      -                      -                      

13 Voter approved exclusions not identified above -                      -                      -                      -                      

14 Prior years carryforward -                      -                      -                      -                      

15

-                      -                      -                      -                      

16 Total exclusions claimed -                      -                      -                      -                      

C. Amounts subject to the expenditure limitation 29,562,434$   10,410,854$   1,587,922$     41,561,210$   

Qualifying capital improvement expenditure repaid in accordance with 
A.R.S. 41-1279.07

Grants, aid, contributions or gifts from private agency, organization or 
individual, except amounts received in lieu of taxes

Quasi-external interfund transactions

Amounts accumulated for purchase of land, purchase or construction of 
buildings or improvements

Highway user revenues in excess of those received in fiscal year 1979-
80
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
ANNUAL EXPENDITURE LIMITATION REPORT - RECONCILIATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See accompanying Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report.

(4)

 Governmental  Enterprise  Internal 
Description  Funds  Funds  Service Funds  Total 

A. Total expenditures/expenses/deductions and applicable other
financing uses, special items, and extraordinary items reported
within the fund financial statements. 29,962,575$   8,326,982       1,503,228$     39,792,785$   

B. Subtract:

1 Items not requiring use of working capital
Depreciation -                      3,575,002       79,130            3,654,132       
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) -                      -                      -                      -                      
Pension expense -                      137,896          78,969            216,865          

2 Expenditures of separate legal entities established under ARS -                      -                      -                      -                      

3 Required fees paid to the Arizona Department of Revenue 27,029            -                      -                      27,029            

4 Present value of net minimum capital lease and installment
purchase contract payments recorded as expenditures at the
agreements' inception 373,112          -                      -                      373,112          

5 Involuntary court judgments -                      -                      -                      -                      

6 Total subtractions 400,141          3,712,898       158,099          4,271,138       

C. Additions:

1 Principal payments on long-term debt -                      1,403,942       -                      1,403,942       

2 Capital asset acquisitions -                      4,285,384       54,762            4,340,146       

3

-                      -                      -                      -                      
OPEB -                      -                      -                      -                      
Claims previously recognized as IBNR -                      -                      -                      -                      
Landfill closure and postclosure care costs -                      -                      -                      -                      

4 Pension contributions paid in the current year -                      107,444          188,031          295,475          

5 Total additions -                      5,796,770       242,793          6,039,563       

D. Amounts reported on Part II Line A 29,562,434$   10,410,854$   1,587,922$     41,561,210$   

Amounts paid in the current year but reported as expenses in previous 
years:
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CITY OF SEDONA, ARIZONA
NOTES TO ANNUAL EXPENDITURE LIMITATION REPORT

JUNE 30, 2020

(5)

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Annual Expenditure Limitation Report (AELR) is presented on the basis of accounting 
prescribed by the Uniform Expenditure Reporting System (UERS), as required by Arizona 
Revised Statutes §41-1279.07, and in accordance with the voter-approved alternative 
expenditure limitation adopted August 2018, as authorized by Arizona Constitution, 
Article IX, §20(9).

NOTE 2 REQUIRED FEES PAID TO THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

As part of the State of Arizona’s transaction privilege tax (TPT) simplification initiative, all 
TPT tax returns are filed with and processed by the State, with the State charging the City 
for the cost of providing this service. Under Arizona law, this expenditure, reported within 
the General Fund general government expenditures, is subtracted from total expenditures 
reported under the UERS. 

NOTE 3 PENSION RELATED ADJUSTMENTS

The $216,865 subtraction for pension and other post employment benefit (OPEB)
represents enterprise/internal service funds pension related operating expenses recognized 
in the current year, that did not result in an outlay of cash.  The $295,475 addition for 
pension and OPEB contributions paid in the current year consists of the required pension 
and OPEB contributions made to the Arizona State Retirement System from the 
enterprise/internal service funds, that were not included in enterprise/internal service funds 
operating expenses.  The schedule below reconciles the net effect the subtraction and 
addition have on the expenditures subject to the limitation to the amounts reported on the 
statement of cash flows’ net effect on cash.

Enterprise 

funds

Internal 

service 

funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Change in net pension and OPEB asset 717$               $             132 

(47,408)                   (13,709)
            38,496            28,503 

Change in net pension and OPEB liability            (22,257)            94,136 
Total  $        (30,452)  $      109,062 

AELR−Reconciliation
 $       107,444  $      188,031 
          137,896            78,969 

Total  $        (30,452)  $      109,062 

Change in deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB
Change in deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB

Pension/OPEB contributions − addition
Pension/OPEB expense(income) − subtraction
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We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sedona, Arizona (City) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 
2020. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards, and 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require 
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings

Qualitative aspects of accounting practices

Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City of Sedona, Arizona are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. 

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during 2020.

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial 
statements were:

 Management’s estimate of the useful lives and remaining useful lives of capital assets was 
based on prior experience and the condition of the assets. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimated useful lives and remaining useful lives in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

 Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts related to the City’s court, sales 
tax, utility and miscellaneous receivables is based on historical revenues, historical loss levels, 
and an analysis of the collectability of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole.
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 Management’s estimate of the compensated absences is based on vested leave time accrued 
through June 30, 2020 and an estimate of leave time that will vest. We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop the liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to 
the financial statements taken as a whole.

 Management’s estimate of the unfunded pension/OPEB asset or liability related to the Arizona 
State Retirement System and Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Plan benefits are
based on actuarial reports prepared by other professionals. We reviewed the key assumptions 
used to estimate the asset or liability in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement 
misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in management 
representation letter dated December 29, 2020.
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Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of 
the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our engagement.

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, 
we made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether 
the RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the 
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons 
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying 
the measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s 
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained 
during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide 
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) accompanying the financial 
statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we 
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
SEFA to determine that the SEFA complies with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the SEFA is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the SEFA to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2020.

With respect to the combining statements and schedules (collectively, the supplementary information) 
accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated 
December 29, 2020.
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The introductory and statistical sections accompanying the financial statements, which is the 
responsibility of management, was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it.

Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should 
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, 
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.

* * *

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management 
of the City of Sedona, Arizona and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
City of Sedona, Arizona (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated December 29, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE, AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Sedona, Arizona’s (City) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The City‘s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2020.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Sedona, Arizona as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2020, 
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the 
purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

 Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Circular 
A-133, Section .510(a)? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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(7)

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None noted.
.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
(8)

Federal
CFDA Project Federal Through to

Grantor Agency Number Number Expenditures Subreceipients

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Passed through State of Arizona Department of Housing:
Community Development Block Grants/State's Program 14.228 102-20 215,062$         -$                 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 215,062           -                   

U.S. Department of Transportation

Passed through Arizona Department of Transportation and City of Cottonwood:
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit Program 20.509 GRT-18-0007093-T 33,139             -                   

Passed through Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety:
State & Community Highway Safety 20.600 2020-AL-031 3,670               -                   
State & Community Highway Safety 20.600 2020-PTS-057 21,083             -                   
    Total State & Community Highway Safety - CFDA 20.600 24,753             -                   

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 57,892             -                   

U.S. Department of Treasury

Passed through Arizona Office of the Governor:
Coronavirus Relief Fund - CARES 21.019 ERMT-20-080 1,186,985        -                   

Passed through Arizona Department of Economic Security:
Coronavirus Relief Fund - CARES 21.019 2067300 2,927               -                   
    Total Coronavirus Relief Fund - CFDA 21.019 1,189,912        -                   

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 1,189,912        -                   

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,462,866$      -$                 
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NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of City of Sedona, Arizona under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the 
City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net 
position, or cash flows of City of Sedona, Arizona.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as 
to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or 
credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior 
years. City of Sedona, Arizona has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect 
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sedona, Arizona

We have examined the City of Sedona, Arizona’s (City) compliance as to whether expenditures made 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, from Highway User Revenue Fund monies received by the 
City pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2, and any other dedicated state 
transportation revenues received by the City were used solely for the authorized transportation 
purposes prescribed in Article IX, §14, of the Arizona Constitution. Management is responsible for the 
City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s 
compliance with the specified requirements based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all material respects, 
with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to 
obtain evidence about whether the City complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, 
and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risks 
of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with specified 
requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Sedona, Arizona complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned 
requirements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
December 29, 2020
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Governmental	Expenditures	by	Fund
CAFR pg.	35

$20.3$0.9
<$0.1
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$1.3
FY 2020 ‐ $30.0 million

General Fund Streets Fund

Transp. Sales Tax Fund Capital Impr. Fund

Nonmajor Funds

$20.1

$1.0

<$0.1
$4.5

$0.2
FY 2019 ‐ $25.8 million

General Fund Streets Fund

Transp. Sales Tax Fund Capital Impr. Fund

Nonmajor Funds

Governmental Funds expenditures increased $4.2 million or 16.1%.
• Health & Welfare expenditures increased $0.1 million or 22% primarily due to additional support provided to Sedona Recycles.
• Housing expenditures increased $0.3 million due to the initiation of an affordable housing study and grant funded expenditures related to transitional 

housing for the homeless.
• Debt Service expenditures decreased $0.3 million or 18% primarily due to a reduction in scheduled bond payments.
• Capital Outlay expenditures increased $4.0 million or 77% primarily due to an increase in capital improvement project expenditures.  The most 

significant projects were the Uptown roadway improvements ($4.3M) and the Thunder Mountain drainage improvements ($1.5M).
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Governmental	Expenditures	by	Function
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Governmental	Revenues	by	Fund
CAFR pg.	35
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Transp. Sales Tax Fund Capital Impr. Fund

Nonmajor Funds

Governmental Funds revenues decreased $1.6 million or 4.5%.
• Sales tax revenues decreased $1.9 million or 7% due to the impacts of the COVID‐19 closures.
• Intergovernmental revenues increased $1.2 million or 25% due to one‐time AZ CARES Act funding.
• Charges for Services revenues decreased $0.3 million or 28% primarily due to the suspension of paid parking fees during the Uptown roadway 

improvements construction.
• Contributions revenues decreased $0.6 million or 90% due to a one‐time in‐lieu contribution collected for affordable housing in the prior year.
• Impact Fees revenues increased $0.2 million or 64% due to significant one‐time fees for large development projects.
• Investment earnings decreased $0.2 million or 19% primarily due to smaller increases in fair market values compared to the prior year.
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Governmental	Revenues	by	Source
CAFR pg.	35
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Governmental	Fund	Balances
CAFR pg.	33	&	35

$15.6

$1.3

$6.9

$9.9

$3.5

FY 2020 ‐ $37.2 million

General Fund Streets Fund

Transp. Sales Tax Fund Capital Impr. Fund

Nonmajor Funds

$13.4

$0.8
$4.0

$13.6

$3.8

FY 2019 ‐ $35.6 million

General Fund Streets Fund

Transp. Sales Tax Fund Capital Impr. Fund

Nonmajor Funds

Governmental fund balances increased $1.6 million or 4%.
• The General Fund balance increased $2.2 million or 17% largely due to increases in intergovernmental revenues and a reduction in subsidies to the 

Wastewater Fund.
• The Streets Fund balance increased $0.5 million or 57% due to the timing of streets projects.  Actual miles maintained each year varies based on the 

projects of highest priority need.
• The Transportation Sales Tax Fund balance increased $2.9 million or 72% due to prioritization of spending balances in the Capital Improvements Fund 

first.
• The Capital Improvements Fund balance decreased $3.7 million or 27% mainly due to the utilization of balances accumulated for 

planned capital projects.
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General	Fund	Transfers	to	Other	Funds
CAFR pg.	35	&	57

Subsidies

Ongoing

Streets Fund subsidy $    190,760)

Wastewater Fund subsidy 3,447,000)

Affordable Housing support – Intrafund Transfer 100,000)

Capital Improvements Fund support 1,500,000)

Paid parking program costs in IT Fund 27,520)

One‐Time

Affordable Housing support – reallocated FY19 bed tax true‐up – Intrafund Transfer 457,131)

Affordable Housing support – portion of FY18 surplus to achieve $1M one‐time transfer – Intrafund Transfer 542,869)

Capital Improvements Fund support – balance of FY18 surplus  384,319)

Cover deficit in General Government DIF Fund 27,964)

Paid parking revenues dedicated to improvements in Uptown 1,017,748)

Less Intrafund Transfers (1,100,000)

Totals $6,595,311)
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General	Fund	Budget	Summary
CAFR pg.	37

•COVID‐19 closures

Sales tax revenues under budget by $1.5M

•One‐time budgeted in‐lieu contributions for affordable housing were collected just before the end of the previous fiscal year

Contributions revenues under budget by $0.6M

Unspent contingencies $1.7M

•Reduction of anticipated tourism management costs
•Deferral of costs related to communications and sustainability programs

City Manager expenditures under budget by $0.3M

•Vacancy savings

Police expenditures under budget by $0.3M

•Delays in court relocation project

Municipal Court expenditures under budget by $0.2M
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Wastewater	Fund	Expenses	by	Type
CAFR pg.	41

$3.4
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$1.3
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Cost of Services Depreciation Interest

$3.9

$3.5

$1.3

FY 2019 ‐ $8.7 million

Cost of Servces Depreciation Interest

Wastewater Fund expenses decreased $0.4 million or 4.5%.
• Cost of Services expenses increased $0.4 million or 11% largely due to reduction in operational maintenance cost needs.
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Wastewater	Fund	Revenues	by	Source
CAFR pg.	41
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$0.7
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Operating Revenues Capacity Fees Other

Wastewater Fund revenues increased $0.1 million or 1.4%.
• Operating revenues decreased $0.2 million or 3% due to accommodations made for customers for COVID‐19 closures.
• Capacity fee revenues increased $0.5 million or 97% due to new development and commercial connections to the wastewater system.
• Other revenues decreased $0.2 million or 25% primarily due to reduction in interest earnings resulting from smaller increases in fair market 

values compared to the prior year and a decrease in invested balances.
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Wastewater	Fund	Net	Position
CAFR pg.	40	&	41

$87.7

<$0.1
$7.7

FY 2020 ‐ $95.4 million

Net Invest. In Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

$82.9

<$0.1
$9.9

FY 2019 ‐ $92.8 million

Net Invest. In Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted

Wastewater Fund net position increased $2.7 million or 2.9%.
• Net Investment in Capital Assets increased $4.8 million or 6% due primarily to added capital assets including lift station improvements and 

tertiary filter upgrades, as well as reductions in outstanding bonds as a result of schedule debt payments.
• Unrestricted net position decreased $2.1 million or 22% due primarily to reductions in charges for services due to COVID‐19 closures, 

investment earnings, transfers from the General Fund to subsidize a portion of the debt payments.
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Wastewater	Fund	Budget	Summary
CAFR	pg.	97

• Accommodations made for customers during COVID‐19 closures

Charges for Services under budget by $0.2M

• One‐time capacity fees were not received during the year as originally anticipated

Capacity fees under budget by $0.2M

• Operations maintenance costs were less than anticipated

Supplies & Other expenditures under budget by $0.7M

• The SR179 sewer main replacement project was delayed and carried over to FY21.

Capital Outlay expenditures under budget by $0.5M

Page 190



Long‐Term	Obligations
CAFR pg.	27	&	60

$20.0
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$14.1

FY 2020 ‐ $46.3 million

Revenue Bonds CAB Interest
Bond Premium Compensated Absences
Cap. Lease/Install. Purch. Net Pension/OPEB Liab.

$22.3

$12.2$0.6
$0.6

$0.6

$13.4

FY 2019 ‐ $49.6 million

Revenue Bonds CAB Interest
Bond Premium Compensated Absences
Cap. Lease/Install. Purch. Net Pension/OPEB Liab.

Long‐term obligations decreased $3.3 million or 6.6%.
• Revenue bonds decreased $2.3 million or 10% due to scheduled bond payments made during the year.
• Interest on capital appreciation bonds decreased $1.9 million or 16% due to scheduled bond interest payments made during the year.
• Net pension/OPEB liability increased $0.8 million or 6% due to an increase of $0.2 million or 3% in the ASRS unfunded liability and an 

increase of $0.5 million or 12% in the PSPRS unfunded liability.

Page 191



Pledged	Revenue	Coverage
CAFR	pg.	59	&	112

• Sales tax, franchise tax, vehicle license tax, unrestricted fines and forfeitures and 
permits

Excise tax revenues pledged to pay revenue bonds

Minimum required coverage = 1.5 times

FY 2020 revenue coverage = 4.5 times
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Expenditure	Limitation	Summary
AELR pg.	2

FY 2020

Expenditure limit $51,416,630

Expenditures subject to limit 41,561,210

Amount under limit $  9,855,420
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Schedule	of	Expenditures	of	Federal	Awards
SAR	pg.	8

FY 2020

Single Audit Threshold $750,000

Major Program

Coronavirus Relief Program $1,189,912

Other Federal Awards 272,954

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $1,462,866
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Audit	Results
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Questions?
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2649 
February 9, 2021 

Regular Business 

 

Agenda Item: 8b 
Proposed Action & Subject:  Discussion/possible action regarding the donation of a 
bronze sculpture from Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial Sculptural Park to be placed 
within Jack Jamesen Memorial Park. 

 
 

Department Parks and Recreation 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item 

5 minutes 
30 minutes 

Other Council Meetings N/A 

Exhibits A. Biography, Photo/Info, Location 
B. Detailed information-statue 
C. Donation Agreement 

 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 0 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

Accept a donation for a 
bronze sculpture for 
Jack Jamesen 
Memorial Park. 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 0 

Account No. 
(Description) 

N/A 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

The Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial Sculptural Park (Friends) are interested in improving 
the park with the addition of a fourth bronze sculpture. 

Background: The Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial Sculptural Park (Friends) are interested 
in donating one bronze sculpture to be located within Jack Jamesen Memorial Park. According 
to the Friends, it was the initial intent of this pocket park to create a sculpture garden and was 
designed with “separate featured themed areas to highlight our dedicated citizens.” The 
Friends are proposing the donation of a life and a quarter (life size plus 1/4) monumental 
bronze sculpture of the character Puck from Shakespeare’s “A Midsummer Night’s Dream” in 
a magical pose. The piece is 22” wide by 35” tall. A Biography of the artist, photo/information 
about the sculpture, and proposed location within the park can be found in Exhibit A. Exhibit B 
has detailed information about the statue dimensions and mounting. The Friends are 
responsible for the installation of each sculpture. There is no anticipated cost to the City. The 
estimated value of this piece of art is $54,000. 

Community Plan Consistent: Yes - No - Not Applicable 
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Page 2 

Arts, Key Issues: Need to enhance Sedona’s role as an important arts community. There are 
two primary components of arts in Sedona: visual arts and performing arts. Both are key 
ingredients in defining and sustaining Sedona’s regional, national, and international appeal. 

Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 

Alternative(s): Approve a different location within Jack Jamesen Memorial Park. 

MOTION 

I move to: approve the acceptance of the donation of one sculpture to be located at Jack 
Jamesen Memorial Park and authorize the execution of the donation agreement 
subject to approval by the City Attorney. 
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The statue is a life and a quarter (life size plus 1/4) monumental 

bronze sculpture of the character Puck from Shakespeare’s Mid-

summer Nights Dream in a magical pose.  The piece is 22” wide by 

35” tall. 

The sculpture will site on an approximately 

55” by 72” with lichen or moss covered natu-

ral boulders and stone over the concrete 

footing and accented with plant materials 

similar to the ones on the statue.   The sculp-

ture will be attached to the foundation with a 

steel pipe and plate and bolted to the con-

crete footing. Beside the statue site there will 

be a bronze plaque with date of dedication 

and list of donors. 

Born and raised in the southwest, Christine DeSpain 

Schoeder spent her early years going to Indian res-

ervations and Pow Wows and took precious photo-

graphs  of children that she paints from.  One of the 

trademarks of her work, are the raised bead work in 

the costumes of  the children. Viewers think them as 

real and want to reach out and touch them. In her 

fantasy paintings, she comes from a completely 

different perspective. Of her fairy and angel 

paintings, she paints from the inside out. To capture 

the beauty in how she wants to show others. She 

loves old mythology and her painting “Stolen Child” 

is based on Yeat’s poem of the same name. 
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MOSS OR LICHEN COVERED

PLAN VIEW

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

4- 5 GAL HEDERA HELIX / ENGLISH

IVY

1- 15 GAL ROSA BANKSIAE 'LUTEA'

/ LADY BANKS ROSE (ESPALIER)

BRONZE PLAQUE MOUNTED ON A

4" DIAMETER STEEL PIPE WITH A

CONCRETE FOOTING. PLAQUE TO

INCLUDE DATE OF DEDICATION

AND LIST OF DONORS.

NATURAL BOULDERS (TYPICAL).

SELECTION AND PLACEMENT

APPROVED BY ARTIST.

1- 5 GAL LIRIOPE MUSCARI /

LILYTURF

DECORATIVE ROCK COVER

(3" MINIMUM).

STATUE WITH FOOTING LOCATION.

HEIGHT OF STATURE SHALL BE

5'-4" FROM EYES OF STATUE TO

FINISH SURFACE OF CONCRETE

WALKWAY.
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Donation Agreement Between 
City of Sedona 

and 
Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial Sculptural Park 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this ____ day of ____, 2021, is by and between the 
City of Sedona (the “City”), a municipal corporation, and Friends of Jack Jamesen 
Memorial Sculptural Park (the “Donor”), an Arizona nonprofit corporation. 

WHEREAS, the Donor and the City recognize the importance of park facilities and 
amenities; and 

WHEREAS, the Donor has offered to donate up to six bronze sculptures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Donor, for the consideration and under the 
described conditions and obligations, hereinafter set forth and agree as follows: 

Section 1. The donation, known as The Puck, as described below, is donated in its 
entirety to the citizens of Sedona to be hereafter owned by the City of 
Sedona and managed on behalf of the citizens by the Department of 
Parks and Recreation. 

Section 2. Description: The Puck.  This item is a life and ¼ sized bronze bust statue.  
The appearance is that of the character Puck from Shakespeare’s 
Midsummer Nights Dream, in a magical pose. Christine DeSpain 
Schroeder is the artist. 

 Park or Facility: Jack Jamesen Memorial Park 
 Location: On the east side of the existing walkway in the existing planter in 

the  Military Service Park. 
 Additional information: The bronze bust will be mounted on a 55”x72” 

lichen or moss covered natural stacked boulders over concrete footing.  

Section 3.  The City reserves the right to move/remove and/or retire the said donation 
following cessation of a five-year period.  The five-year period shall 
commence upon the date entered into and indicated above. 

Section 4. Maintenance: The City shall be responsible for maintenance of the item, 
including any reasonable repairs, and will have the discretion to not 
replace and/or repair the donation, if it is deemed damaged beyond 
reasonable repair and/or replacement, suffers repeated vandalism, and/or 
expires prior to cessation of the five-year period. Maintenance or 
replacement of the item will be at the City’s sole discretion. 

Section 5.  Term: The initial term of this agreement shall be five years. Following 
cessation of the five-year period, the City may treat the donation, as it 
would any other City property similar in nature. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officials on the date set forth above. 
 
 
              
Sandra J. Moriarty, Mayor    Jill Galea, Chairman 
City of Sedona Friends of Jack Jamesen Memorial 
 Sculptural Park 
102 Roadrunner Drive 44 Stutz Bearcat 
Sedona, Arizona 86336-3710   Sedona, AZ  86336 
        
         
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Susan L. Irvine, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form:                                                 
 
 
       
Kurt W. Christianson, City Attorney 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2646  
February 9, 2021 

Regular Business 

 

Agenda Item: 8c 

Proposed Action & Subject: Discussion/direction/possible action regarding proposed 
State legislation and its potential impact on the City of Sedona.  

 

Department Legal 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item  

15 Minutes 
30 Minutes 

Other Council Meetings January 26, 2021 

Exhibits  None 

 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 
KWC 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 0 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

None. 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 0 

Account No. 
(Description) 

N/A 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

Background: During the course of the State Legislative Session, many bills are introduced 
that have a potential impact on the City of Sedona. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
and City staff routinely monitor bills of interest as they progress through the legislative process. 

This item is scheduled to provide a summary update on relevant bills, to answer questions that 
the City Council may have regarding any individual bill, and to consider the need for the City 
Council to take a formal position in support or opposition of any particular bill. 

Community Plan Consistent: Yes - No - Not Applicable 

Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 

Alternative(s):  

MOTION 

I move to: for informational purposes only unless there is a preference to take a position on 
a particular issue. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL  

AB 2571  
February 9, 2021 

Regular Business 

 

Agenda Item: 8d 

Proposed Action & Subject: Discussion/possible direction regarding issues surrounding 
the COVID-19 pandemic and the City's response. 

 

Department City Manager 

Time to Present 
Total Time for Item  

15 minutes 
30 minutes 

Other Council Meetings March 24, 2020, April 14, 2020, April 28, 2020, May 12, 2020, 
May 26, 2020, June 9, 2020, June 23, 2020, July 14, 2020, 
July 28, 2020, August 11, 2020, September 8, 2020, 
September 22, 2020, October 13, 2020, October 27, 2020, 
November 10, 2020, November 24, 2020, December 9, 2020, 
January 12, 2021, January 26, 2021 

Exhibits  None 

City Attorney 
Approval 

Reviewed 2/1/2021 
KWC 

 Expenditure Required  

$ 0 

City Manager’s 
Recommendation 

For discussion and 
possible direction only. 

Amount Budgeted  

$ 0 

Account No. 
(Description) 

N/A 

Finance 
Approval 

 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

Background: This item was added to ensure opportunity to discuss the latest updates with 
the COVID-19 pandemic and the City’s response. 

The City continues regular communication with state and county health departments, hospitals, 
other healthcare providers, emergency responders, emergency managers, and policy experts.  

City staff continues to evaluate how the economic slowdown will impact City finances. Staff will 

be prepared to discuss the latest revenue data and forecasts. 

During the meeting staff will present up to date information on COVID-19 related data, 

regulatory changes, and news on city finances.  

Community Plan Consistent: Yes - No - Not Applicable 

Board/Commission Recommendation: Applicable - Not Applicable 

Alternative(s):  N/A
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Page 2 

MOTION 

I move to:  for discussion and possible direction only. 
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